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City of Shaker Haights, Ohlo
Schedule of Foderal Awards Expanditures
For tha Year Ended Dacember 34, 1989

Catalog of Faderal Federal Fedaral
Faderal Grantor/Pass-Through Domestic Pass-Through Program or Cash Cash
Grantor Program Titls Asgistance No.  Grantor's No.  Award Amount  Receipts Disbursements
—Passad Through the Ohio Dapartment on Aging
and the ste a Ares Adge 8. 3 L .
Title i B Senior Ad 93.044 N/A $48,451  $48,239 " $48,239
U.S. Deparment of Housing & Urhan Devetopment
Fair Housing Assistanca Program .
State and Local 14.401 FF205K68503¢ 73,800 73.8c0 22,459
FF205K995030 38,600 38,600
Total Direct Programs 112400 112,400 22.45¢
Passed Thraugh Cuyahoga County .
" i gvaianment Biack (AL (i g 8 3 . . B

CDBG -~ 1997 Extarior Maintanance Program 14.218 CE 08301A 75,000 15,568 0

CDBG - 1998 Exterior Maintenance Program 14.218 CE 09958A 75,000 59,564 39,831

CDBG - 1958 Exterior Maintenance Program 14.218 CE 10300-01 50,400 Q 50,400

CDBG - 1998 Chagrin Boulevard Sireatacape 14.218 CE 08821A 150,000 836 0
CDBG - 1997 Chagrin Boulsvard Strestscape 14.218 CE DB3BTA 140,000 507 [:]

CDBG - Chelton Park Fence 14.218 CE 09283A 10,000 8,284 770

Total Pass-Through Programs 500,400 84,769 91,001

Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Daveloprment 612,800 197,169 113,480
1L8. Depantment of Justica

COPS Universal Hirng Supplemental Award 16.710 S5CFWX 2844 75,000 17.903 17,572
COPS Community Policing o Combat Domestic Viclance 18.710 SEDVWX0095 30,469 2,451 0

Lacal Law Enforcement Block Grants Program
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program - FY 1897 18,592 I7LBVA26 18 28,811 28,611 28,611
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program - FY 1598 16.592 9BLBVX2618 24,862 24 862 2,784
Totat Direct Programs 158,042 73,827 48,967

-

Emummﬂmw "

Mmﬁnmmi il A hility 1 ve Block Grant £ ‘
Volunteer Magistrate 18.523 98-JB-002-A018 20,314 o 8,967

Total Pass-Through Program 20,314 o 8,867

Total U.S. Department of Justice 172,256 73,827 55,934
Exacutive Offica of the Presidant - Offica of National
Rrug Coniral Poficy )

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area - Ohio NA 18POHP501 T00,000 10,535 11,056
Repair and Resurfacing of Coventry Road 20.205 #9242, PID 15391 304,000 1.928 121,692
Repair and Resurfacing of Fairmount Boulevard 20,208 #9243, PID 15383 783,000 136,027 348,362
Repair and Resurfacing of Kemper Road 20.205 #8244, PiD 15394 121,600 1319 84,707

Tolal L.S. Dapartment of Transportation Federal Highway Administration 1,208,000 139,274 554,761
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE ) . $2,748,507 $467,044 $782,350

See accompanying Notes to the Schadule of Federal Awands Expenditures



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NOTE A: Significant Accounting Policies

The Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures summarizes the activity of the City of Shaker Height's federal
awards programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE B: Matching Requirements

Certain Federal programs require that the City confribute Non-Federal (matching) funds to support the
Federally Funded programs. The City has complied with the matching requirements. The expenditures of
Non-Federal matching funds is not included an the accompanying Schedule.

N/A - Not Applicable
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of City Council
City of Shaker Heights
Cuyahoga County

3400 Lee Road

Shaicer Heights, Ohic 44120

To the Members of Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio, (the City} as of and for the
year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated June 16, 2000. We conducted
ouraudit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grants, noncompliance with which couid have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement armounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

However, we noted a certain immaterial instance of non-compliance that does not require inclusion in this
report, that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated June 16, 2000,

internal Control Over Financlal Repotting

in planning and performing our audit, we considered City's internal control over financiai reporting in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Qur consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal controi components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be matetial in relation to the financial statements
being audited may ocour and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other maftters
involving the internal conirol over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have
reported fo the management of the City in a separate letter dated June 16, 2000.



City of Shaker Heights

Cuyahaoga County

Report on Compliance and on internal Control Required by
Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

This report is intended for the information and use of the finance committee, management, City Coungil,
federal awarding agencies and pass through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

June 16, 2000
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO ITS MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Members of City Council
City of Shaker Heights
Cuyahoga County

3400 Lee Road

Shaker Heights, Ohio 44120

To the Members of Council:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Shaker Heights, Ohlo, (the City) with the types of compliance
reqguirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplemant that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1989. The
City's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of law, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to its major federal program is the responsibility of the City's tnanagement. Our responsibilify is fo express
an opinicn on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence ahout the City’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. Ve believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audif does not provide a legal determination on the
City's compliance with those requirements,

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable ta its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1928,

Interna! Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opiition on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accotdance with OMB Circular A-133.
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City of Shaker Helghts

December 31, 1989

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
A-133 §.505
{d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
{dy{(1)(i) Ware there any material controf weakness conditions No
reported at the financial statement level (GAGAS)?
() 1)(in) Were there any other reportable control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
{d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported non-compliance at the No
financial statement level (GAGAS)}?
(d){1){(iv) Waere there any material internal control weakness No
conditions reported for major federal programs?
{d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable internal controf No
weakness conditions reported for major federal
programs?
(d)}{1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified
{d)1)vi) Are there any reportable findings under Sec. .510?7 No
{()y{1){vii) ajor Programs (list) Highway Planning and
Construction,
CFDA # 20.205
{cl3{ 1 ){viif) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: > $300,000
Type B: all others
{d){1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None.
3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
None.
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Jiv PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

Office of the Auditor of State of Ohio
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http://www.auditor.state.oh.us
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The City of Shaker Heights

Judith H. Rawson, Mayor

June 186, 2000

Mayor Judith H. Rawson,

Members of City Council and

Citizens of the City of Shaker Heights, Chio
Shaker Heights City Hall

3400 Lee Road

Shaker Heighis, Ohio 44120

Re: Submission of 1999 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Dear Mayor Rawsorn, Members of Council and Citizens of Shaker Heights:

I am pleased to submit for your review the City's 1899 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Commonly referred to as a "CAFR", this report is the City's official annual report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999. This CAFR is a more exiensive report than general-purpose financial statements and |
believe demonstrates the City's ongoing commitment o be accountable not only to its citizenry but also to
excellence in financial reporting. While no single report can be all things to all people, our goal in presenting
this report is to provide any person or entity interested in the City of Shaker Heights with at least the
minimum information needed to gain a fair understanding of the City's financial position, results of
operations and cash flows. While "{airness” may be considered a subjeclive concept, the accepted criteria
for faimess in governmenital financial reporting is considered to be generally accepted accounting principals
(GAAP). Accordingly, unless otherwise noted, the information presented in this CAFR is prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

Generally accepted accounfing principals are uniform minimum standards and guidelines for
financial accounting and reporting. GAAP governs the form and content of the City's financial statements.
The primary importance and benefit of GAAP is that it provides a consistent standard by which you, the user
of the financial statement, may measure the financial presentation. The application of GAAP helps to
assure that financial information is fairly presented in a consistent manner. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the primary authoritative body on the application of GAAP to state and local
governments.

When reading this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, bear in mind that the responsibility
for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the City. We believe that the report herewith presented is accurate in all material
respects and is designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
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funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding
of the Cify's financial activities have been included.

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of three parts. The Introductory Section provides
general information regarding the City's structure and personnel in the form of organizational charts. In addition,
an overview of the City's economic situation and financlal information is included in the form of this transmittal
letter. In presenting this overview, this transmittal letter utilizes in a less technicaj manner the information that is
presented in the report's remaining two sections. While we encourage the reader to utilize the entire report, the
average citizen may find this 1o be the most accessible section of the report.

The Financial Section inciudes the independent accountants’ report on the general purpose financial
statements, the general purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
financial statements and schedules. This section includes a wealth of defailed financial and budgetary
information that City Council and possibly the investment community may find to be particularly useful. When
reviewing the information presented in the financial statements, the reader should remember to also look to the
information presented in the notes to the financial statements as they are an integral part of the statements and
are intended to assist the reader in analyzing and understanding the numeric information being presented.

The Statistical Section provides a broad range of unaudited trend data covering the economic and
financlal history of the City as well as demographics and other statistics. The fables are presented on a multi-
year (generally the last ten: years) basis.

The City of Shaker Heights, covering approximately 6.3 square miles, is located approximately ten miles
southeast of downtown Cleveland in Cuyahoga County in northeastern Ohio. Incorporated under Ohic [aw as a
village in 1912, Shaker Heights became a city in 1931. As provided by Ohic law, the City operates under the
auspices of its own charter, which was adopted by the voters in 1931. The Charter provides for the City to
operate under the Mayor-Council form of govemment with the Mayor serving as the President of Council. The
Mayor serves as the City's Chief Executive Officer and appoinis and removes the City's Chief Administrative
Cfficer and all department heads.

Legisfative authority is vested in a seven member Council. All council members are elaected at-large and
serve for four-year terms. Council terms are staggered with four members being elected in one election and
three members being elected in the next election two years following. City Council holds its regular monthly
council mesting on the fourth Monday of the month. In addition, the Council holds a woerk session meeting on
the second Monday of the month. The various committees of council meet on at least a monthly basis at various
times throughout the month. The Finance Director also serves as Clerk of Council. The City department heads
attend all regular councit meetings and attend council work sesslons whenever required.

Primarily considered to be a residential community, Shaker Heights is the nation's oldest completely
planned community and is recognized in the National Register as the Shaker Village Historical District.
Combining the "Garden City" movement with comprehensive planning, the City was initially planned and
developed io include housing that was diverse in style and in price, large parcels of land for public and private
schools and churches, lakes, parks and a golf course. The City is served by a rail transit system to downtown
Cleveland. Originally City-owned and operated, the rail system is now owned and operated by the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority.
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Recognizing that the organizational structure of many governments has become increasingly complex, it
is necessary to define the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio as a financial reporting entity. In preparing this CAFR,
the City has reviewed its definition of reporting entity in order to ensure compliance with Staterent No. 14 of the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. All entities over which the elected officials of the City are
accountable to the citizens of Shaker Heights are included in this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Accordingly, this CAFR includes all funds and account groups of the City. In addition, we have reviewed the
City's relationships with other organizations to determine whether or not any of these organizations should be
included as a component of the City's reporiing enfity because the City Is either financially accountable for them
or because of the nature and significance of their relationship to the City the exclusion of the organization from
the City's reporting entity would cause the City's financial statemenis to be misleading or incomplete. In
performing this review, the following factors were considered:

A The financial interdependency of the entities - 1s the City responsible for financing the entity's
operating deficits or entiled to any operating surpluses? Is the City legally or morally
responsible for repaying the entity's debt in the event of a default?

B. The selection of the governing authority - Does the City or any of its elected officials make
authoritative appointments fo the entity's governing authority? An authoritative appointment is
one where the elected official maintains a significant ongoing relationship with the appointed
cfficial with respect to carrying out important public functions.

C. Designation of management - is the day to day management of the entlty appointed by or
accountable to the City?

D.  The City's ability to significantly influence operations. S

E. The entity's accountability to the City for fiscal malters - Does the City exercise absolute
authority over the entity’s funds? '

F. Is the entity closely refated to the City? - Does the nature and significance of the entity's

retationship with the City warrant its inclusion in the City's reporting entity?

Based upon the above, the City's reporting entity does not include any component units, joint ventures, jointly
governed organizations or other stand alone governments.

City Services

The City provides a variety of City services to its citizens, including: Police and Fire Protection,
Emergency Medical Service, Refuse Collection, Sireet Maintenance, Recreation, Municipal Court, Public Health,
Community Planning and Development, Inspectional Services, Public Improvements and General Adm:mstratxve
Services. . :

First Energy and the East Ohio Gas Company, both of which are independent, publicly owned utilities
regulated by the State of Ohio, provide the City's residents with electricity and natural gas. The City of Cleveland
and the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District provide water and sewage service to the City's residents. In the
last decade, the City has invested heavily in replacing and relining its water distribution system in order to
minimize water losses from leaks and to maintain and improve water pressure. in addition to fees paid to the
Northeast Ohio Sewer District, City residents also pay a local surcharge based upon water consumption that is
used by the City for the maintenance and replacement of the sewer lines within the City.

In addition to the basic services, the City continues to make available superior recreational facilities and
programs fo its residents. The Thomton Park city recreation center is situated on a 13-acre campus and its
facilities include an indoor ice arena that provides year-round service, an Olympic size outdoor pool, sand
volleyball courts, autdoor tennis courts and fitness facilities. In addition, an extensive range of recreational
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programs are offered for children and adults. The City also maintains the Shaker Lakes, a 190-acre area that
includes two lakes and a duck pond.

The City offers a high level of public service to its residents as exemplified by its back yard garbage
collection program. Included in this program is the City's recycling sub-program. The City has provided each
resident with containers for the recycling of metal, glass, newspapers and some plastics. All materials are
picked up at the rear of the house at the same time as the non-recyclable trash. In addition, the City also offers
recycling of corrugated cardboard, magazines and other materials at its service center.

The City continues to maintain its significant urban forest, funded primarily through a triennial special
assessment. As testament to its efforts, the City has been recognized with the Tree City USA Award. More
importantly, the City is home to one of the country's largest stands of American Eims and continues in its fight
with the Dutch Elm beetle to maintain this stately resource and keep it from exdinction.

Economic Conditions

The City of Shaker Heights is an inner ring suburb of the City of Cleveland, Ohio. Primarily residential in
nature, it has a diverse base of residents working in many professions and industries. The City's economic
strength is direcily linked to this diversity and the strength of northeast Ohio's economy. While downtown
Cleveland is only twenty minutes by car from the heart of the City, the rapid transit, a light rail public transit
system, provides even more accessibility to downtown Cleveland's business community and attractions. The
Cuyahoga County Regional Transit System has extended the original rapid transit rail line to serve not only
downtown Cleveland but also the Cleveland waterfront area including the recreational/entertainment area known
as the "Flats", the Rock & Roll Hall of Fame and Museum, the Great Lakes Science Museum and the new
Cleveland Browns Stadium. Another contributor to the City's economic strength is its proximity to the University
Circle area of Cleveland. University Circle is the home to major cuitural, educational and medical facilities
including Severance Hall, the home of the world-renown Cleveland Orchestra, the Cleveland Museum of Art,
Case Westem Reserve University, University Hospitals of Cleveland and the Cleveland Clinic, both world-
renowned medical rasearch, teaching and treatment facilities.

All of these factors have contributed to the continuing economic strength of the community. As a
primarily residential community, there is no better indicator of the economic strength of the community than
property values and income taxes. During 19597, the Cuyahoga County Auditor completed a reassessment of
the value of all real estate in the County in order to update valuations assigned to the property during the
Auditor's 1994 appraisal. The Auditors study determined that the value of residential real property had
increased by approximately 7.6% over 1996 values. QOwerall, total property valuation increased by 6.8%. Since
1988, the assessed value of residential property in the City has increased by 46% and commercial property by
12.3%. As reguired by State law, the County Auditor is currently in the process of appraising all property in the
City. Early reports indicate that 2000 residential property values have increased by approximately 13% to 15%
over 1999 values. :

During 1998, the City impiemented a change in the criteria used in accruing income tax revenue from
taxes withheid by ernployers from employees. This change resulted in the City recognizing thirteen months of
revenue from this source in its reported 1998 income fax revenue., Overall, city income tax revenue increased
by 1.6% in 1999 from 1998. After adjusting 1998 revenue for the effect of the change implemented, city income
tax revenue increased by 4.2% in 1989 from 1988 and by 44.2% over 1989 revenue. During 1999, the City has
continued o emphasize the importance of maintaining and improving its housing stock in order to assure that
the City continues to be recognized as one of the nation's premier residential communities.
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Highlights of 1999 and A Look fo the Future

During 1997 and 1998, the City, through its Community Visioning Process, identified as a high priotity
the need for reinvestiment in the community if the City wishes to remain as one of the nation’s premier
communities in which to live. During 1999, the City began a strategic investment planning process to begin to
plan the City's future. A team of nationally known urban planners, coordinated by Urban Design Associates of
Pitisburgh, was hired to lead the process. The first phase of the project resulted in the identification of two
strategic areas of the Clty along with four initiatives. The strategic areas of focus are the Van Aken/Chagin/Lee
and the Van Aken/Chagrin/Warrensville commercial areas of the City. In addition to initiatives in these areas,
Phase | also identified initiatives relating to the development of new residential prototypes and residential
gateways. Phase |l of the project includes identifying specific projects, partners and priorities in order for the City
to begin implementing the plan. This phase will include financial and market analysis to bring the general
concepts identified in Phase | into sharper focus. Two twenty-member task forces comprised of community
stakehclders have been formed to focus on sach of the sirategic areas. Housing is a key component in
achieving the City’s goals, with 52% of the key market being comprised of empty nesters and young, single
professionals. It is encouraging to note that 24% of this potential market is already resides in the City. The task
force reports and plan for action will be completed in mid-2000.

As a primarily residential City with a diverse housing stock, the City considers housing o be its major
indusiry. During 1899, the City remained committed to maintaining and improving its housing stock. Changes in
leadership and siaffing of the Housing Inspection Depariment were reflected in the vigorous systematic and
point-of-sale housing inspection programs conducted during 1998, In conjunction, the City utilized Community
Development Block Grant funds along with City funds, to develop incentive grant programs to encourage code
compliance and renovation. City residents also obtained over $800,000 in low-interest loan funds through the
Cuyahoga County Treasurer's Housing Enhancement Loan Program.  As a result, area realiors have reported
that during 1999, property values in the City are at an all time high and the demand for homes is strong in all of
the City's neighborhoods. 1999 also saw the construction of several new homes in the City.

The City's Pro-Integrative Housing Services Department was singled out for recognition by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development during 1999. The Department received HUD’s Best Practices
Award for Cuistanding Achievement in the category of fair housing and equal opportunity. The Pro-integrative
Services Department promotes a racially diverse community by encouraging homeseekers of ail races to
explore their housing options in areas where they will expand racial diversity across all of the City's
neighborhoods. -

1999 aiso saw the significant improvements o the educational infrastructure in the City. The Shaker
Heights Board of Education completed construction of a several improvements to the high scheol including a
new front entrance and a regulation-size gym. The new entrance includes a front drive and parking area as
well as providing wheelchair accessibility to the building. In addition to these public improverments, the Hathaway
Brown School, one of several prestigious private schools located in the City, began construction of an $18 million
addition to its middle school.

The Northeast Ohic Regional Sewer System (NEORSD) continued construction of the Heights
Interceptor Sewer Project during 1998. The improvement project is part of a multi-million dollar program whose
objective is to supplement the capacity of the City’s existing sewer system in order to alleviate basement flooding
and sewer overflows during significant rain events. During 1999, the NEORSD completed work on a relief sewer
in the Onaway neighborhood, continued work on the Fairmount Boulevard Regional Interceptor Sewer and
announced plans to begin construction of the Van Aken Boulevard section of the project during the spring of
2000.

The City benefited from the award a $1.2 million grant from the Ohio Depariment of Transportation
(ODOT) to finance approximately 80% of the reconstruction of Coventry Road, Kemper Road and Fairmount
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Boulevard. The federal funds were originally awarded to ODOT under the authority of the Intermodal Surface
Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991. Work was begun on this project during the fall of 1999 with completlon
scheduled for ithe spring of 2000.

During 1999, the City took advaniage of an opportunity offered by the Ohic Police and Firemen’s
Disability and Pension Fund to retire the Cily’s $2.9 million pension fiability arising from the establishment of the
pension system in the late 1860°s. The debt was retired for $2.1 million, approximately a 30% discount. The
decision resufted in an $800,000 reduction in the City's overall debt. The retirement was financed by the
issuance of a bond anticipation note. The City anticipates issuing a bond for this debt. Depending upon market
conditions, the decision to refinance this liability will result in the reduction of the life of the ongmal liability by at
least ten years.

Accounting Policies and Budgetary Control

When reviewing the financial statements and other information presented in this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, it is important for the reader to consider the "measurement focus” of the information presented.
"Measurement focus® is the term used to dencte what accountants are attempting to measure and report in a
fund's operating statement. For financial reporting purposes, the City of Shaker Heights financial statements are

prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP} as apphcable to local
governments.,

Under GAAP, the Govemmental and Fiduciary fund fypes use a flow of financial resources
measurement focus. This measurement focus is concerned with whether or not there are moré resources that
may be expended in the near future as a result of events and transactions that accurred during the period of time
being reported upon. To facilitate this measurement focus, the Govemmental and Fiduciary fund types utilize a
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available to finance current expenditures; expenditures are recognized when goods or services
are received and liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary Fund types measurement focus is the economic impact upon the fund of events and
transactions that occur during the reporting pericd. To facilitate this focus, Propriefary Funds utilize the accrual
basis of accounting. The accrual basls of accounting recognizes fransactions as income/revenue or expense
when the transaction occurs without regard to the timing of the related cash flow.

in accordance with Ohio law, the City prepares its budget on a modified cash basis of accounting. This
basis of accounting is not in accordance with GAAP. Under this basis, revenue is recognized when actually
received in cash. Encumbrances are recorded as budgetary obligations upon entering into d” purchase
agreement. Budgetary obligations are comprised of total current year expenditures pius unliquidated
encumbrances. The unencumbered appropriation balances of funds for which the City adopts an annual budget
lapse at year end and revert back 1o the respeciive funds from which they were originally appropriated, thus
becoming available for future appropriation by City Council. The notes to the financial statements contain a
reconciliation of the budget basis financial statements and the financial statements prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

With the exception of fiduciary and capital project funds, City Council annually adopts (or appropriates)
operating budgets for all funds. State law provides that total obligations cannot exceed the total amount
appropriated for the fund, the City maintains its legal level of budgetary control at this level. During the course of
1999, Council did adopt amendments to the budget to account for new funds and grants received.

Council has deemed fiduciary funds to be appropriated for their intended use upon receipt; accordingly
the legal level of budgetary control for these funds is at the fund level. Budgets for capital project funds are
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adopted on a project-by-project basis. Project appropriations lapse only upon completion of the project;
therefore the unencumbered balances of ongoing capital project appropriations are camied over to the
subsequent fiscal year. The City maintains its legal level of budgetary control for capital project funds at the
project level. During the course of 1999, Council adopted appropriations totaling approximately $7.2 million for
both new capital projects as well as fo amend the appropriations for various projects that were originally
appropriated in previous years. - ’ T

in addition to its legal level of budgetary control, the City exercises management control over its budget
at the department level. The Mayor and/or Chief Administrative Officer are authorized fo transfer amounts
between departments so long as the total amount appropriated for each fund does not exceed the amount
approved by Council. A mere detailed discussion of the budgetary process is included in the notes to the
financial statements in the financial section of this report.

The City maintains a fully automated financial accounting system. Budgetary confrol is maintained
through the use of a purchase order system. The purchase order {required before making any purchase in
excess of $500) creates the encumbrance against the current unobligated budget. In addition, City
management requires the solicitation of competitive quotes for material purchases exceeding $500. The City
Charter requires that purchases of $10,000 or more be publicly bid before a contract and the related purchase
order may be authorized. Unliquidated encumbrances do not lapse at year-end but are carried forward to the
next year as a reservation of fund balance to be used for their intended purpose(s). Upon final payment of any
purchase order carried over from a prior year, the unexpended balance of the encumbrance is closed fo the
fund's available fund balance for consideration for future appropriation by City Council.

Internal Accounting and Reporting Control

As previously stated, the City administration is resporisible for the sound administration of the financial
resources of the City. In fulfiling this responsibility, the administration has developed a system of internal
accounting controls upon which it relies to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the
safeguarding of the City’s assets against loss resulting from the asset's unauthorized use or disposition and the
reliability of financial records for preparing financial staterments and maintaining accountability for assets.

It is important to note that the intemal accounting controls built into the Cily's system were developed
within the framework of the concept of reasonable, not absolute, assurance. This concept recognizes that the
cost of instituting and maintaining internal controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from said
controls and that the evaluation of the costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by the City's
management. Regular reviews of internal controls occur within the framework of this policy. We believe that the
City's system of internal accounting controls meet these objectives and provide reasonable assurance of proper
recording and reperting of financial transactions.

Fund and Account Group Structure

As required by generally accepted accounting principies, the fund and account groups of the City are organized
as follows:

Governmenial Funds — Funds used to account for the acquisition, use and balances of expendable financial
resources and the related current liabilities — except those accounted for in propriety funds and fiduciary
funds. Comprised of the following four fund types, governmental funds are used to account for the
City’s governmental — type activities. ’

General Fund - The fund used to account for all financial resources, except for those required to be
accounted for in ancther fund. The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.




Special Revenue Funds - Funds used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than expendable frusts or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for
specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund — The fund used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Project Funds - Funds used to account for the financial rescurces to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and
trust funds).

Proprietary Funds - Fund types used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those often found in the private sector. Unlike other fund groups, all assets, Habilities,
revenues, expenses and transfers relating to the City's business and quasi-business activities are
accounted for through proprietary funds. Proprietary funds include the following fund fypes:

Enterprise Funds - Funds used {o account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the City is that the costs of providing goods
and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges. - - - -

Internal Service Funds - Funds used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other deparirnents of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds - Fund types used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity (Trust
Fund Type} or as a fiscal agent (Agency Fund Type) for individuals, private organizations, other
govemmenial units and/or other City funds. Currently, the sole City trust fund is classified as an
expendable trust fund meaning that the assets of the fund may be expended for its specified purpose.

Account Groups - Accounting entities used to establish control over and accountability for the City's general
fixed assets and the unmatured principal of its general long-term debt. Unlike funds, account groups
are not used fo account for sources, uses and balances of expendable, available financial resources.
Currently, generally accepted accounting principles provide for two account groups. They are as
follows:

General Fixed Asset Account Group - To account for all fixed assets of the City, except those fixed
assets accounted for in the proprietary and trust fund types.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - To account for all long-term obligations of the City,
except for those long-term obligations accounted for in the proprietary and trust fund types.

Overview of General Governmenttal Revenues and Expenditures
A. Revenues and Other Financing Sources

When the term “general government” is used in this transmittal letter or the statistical section of this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, we are referring to the total of the governmental fund types (i.e.
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds)} and the expendable trust fund. Revenues
for general governmental functions are categorized as follows:

Property Taxes - Amounts levied against the taxable or assessed value of all real and public utility



property and tangible personal properly used in business. Real property is assessed at 35% of its true
{market) value as determined by the Cuyahoga County Auditor. The true value of personal property is
based on composite annual allowances and is assessed at 88%, except for the following:

Electric Utility Production ipment: Assessed at 100% of true value (50% of cost).
Perscnal Property of Bural Electric Companies: Assessed at 50% of true value,
Personal Properfy of Railroads: Assessed at 25% of true value.

Telephone Utility Personal Property: Effective in tax year 1995, all lnterexchange

telephone personal property is assessed at 25%. Local exchange telephone personal

property added 10 the tax roles during tax year 1995 and thereafter is assessed at 25%

of true value; existing personal property is assessed at 88% of true value.

Municipal Income Taxes - Taxes levied at the rate of 1.75% on all wages, other compensation and net
profits earned within the City, as well as on the income of residents which Is eamed cutside of the City.
In the latter case, if the resident's income is subject to taxation by ancther municipality, the City allows a
tax credit equal 1o 50% of the income tax paid to the other municipality up to a maximum credit of one
half of the first one percent of income taxed by the other municipality.

Cther Local Taxes - Primarily admission taxes levied on amounts paid for admission to any place,
performance for profit, golf course green fees and annual membership dues by any club or organization
mainiaining a golf course.

State Levied. Shared Taxes - Includes local government taxes levied by the State of Ohic and
received directly from the State or indirectly from Cuyahoga County. This category includes inheritance
taxes, cigarette taxes and liquor and beer pemmit fees, all of which are distributed to the City in
accordance with various state-prescribed formulae.

Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts - Includes reimbursements for state mandated property tax
credits and rollbacks, state ald for health activities, other local, state and federal grants and local

intergovernmental operating contracts.

Charges For Services - Includes charges for general governmental services such as sewer fees,
ambulance run fees, magazine advert:smg, specnal rubbish pickups, cable television franchise fees, and
police training academy fees. - - .

Feeg, Licenses and Permits - Includes charges for zonlng appeal fees building trade Ilcenses
registrations, permits and inspections. =

Interest ings - interest and other profits earned on investments including the difference between
the fair value of the City's investments at December 31 versus the amount paid at purchase, if criginally
purchased during the current year, or the fair value of the investment on December 31 of the prior year,
if the investment was purchased by the City during a prior year.

Special Agsessments - Hevenues from assessments levied on various parcels of property to finance

special benefits conferred on those parcels. Includes assessments for tree maintenance, sireet lighting
and nuisance abatements. :

Eines and Forfeitures - Payments received by the City through the Shaker Heights Municipal Court
from fines, costs, and bond forfeitures for both ¢ivil and criminal cases.

All Other Revepue - Miscellanecus sources of revenue that are not accounted for in any other
category.
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Not all increases in governmenta! fund's resources are classified as revenues. In certain specific
instances, generally accepied accounting principles require that increases in current financial resources be
reportted as other financing sources. Amounts reported as other financing sources include operating transfers
from other funds, proceeds from the issuance of general long-term debt, proceeds from the sale of general fixed
assets (if a material source of revenue) and amounts equal 1o the present value of minimum jease payments
arising from capital ieases where the lease is used to finance the construction or acquisition of a generai fixed
asset.

The following summary schedule compares revenues and other financing sources for general
governmental functions and includes a discussion of material differences from 1898 to 1999

Year Ended December 31, Increase
{Decrease)
Revenue Source 1929 1998 From 1998
Property Taxes $ 5770,937 $ 5,653,784 $117,163
Municipal Income Taxes 17,486,702 17,217,267 269,435
State Levied Shared Taxes 4,582,569 8,597,544 {4,014.875)
Intergovernmental Granis and Contracts 2,360,440 1,833,574 526,866
Charges For Services 3,356,057 3,171,843 18;4,214
Fees, Licenses & Permils 385,808 323,482 62,326
Interest Eamings 506,874 772,261 (265,387}
Special Assessments 1,247,115 1,213,146 33,868
Fines and Forfeitures 798,494 795,100 3,384
All Other Revenue 1,732,223 1,264,611 467,612
Subtotal $38,227,219 $40,842,612 ($2,615,393)
Other Financing Sources 2,864,054 4,203,834 (1,389,780)
Total $41,091,273 $45,046,446 ($3,955,173)

As reported, City income tax revenue increased by 1.6% in 1999 from 1988, This change, however,
is not truly indicative of the change in tax collections from 1998 to 1999. During 1898, the City implemented a
change in the criteria used to accrue income tax revenue from taxes withheld by city employers from
employees for which the employer remits to the City after year-end. This change resulted in the City
recognizing an additional month's revenue from this source in its reported 1998 income tax revenue. After
adjusting 1998 revenue for the effect of the change implemented, income tax revenue increased by 4.2% in
1999 from 1988. Revenue from individual taxpayers, responsible for approximately 68% of the City's total
income tax collections, increased by approximately 5.2% over 1998 collections. Adjusted revenue from
employer withholding, responsibie for approximately 28% of the City's total income tax collections, increased
by approximately 3.8% over adjusted 1998 coliections.

The 1998 increase in revenue from Intergovermnmental Grants and Contracts arises primarily from the
recognition of $900,000 of a $1.2 million grant from the Ohic Department of Transportation for the
reconsiruction of Coventry Road, Kemper Road and Fairmount Boulevard. The project WJJI be completed
during the spring of 2000. . -

The 1999 increase in the All Other Revenue category arises primarily from the sale of the Shaker
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Towne Centire Shopping Center. In the late 1980's pursuant io a Community Redevelopment Plan, the City
acquired all of the property on the site and demolished the existing buildings. The City then solicited
development proposals for the site, selected a developer and sold the property to the developer subject to a
development and use agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, if the shopping center was later sold by
the developer, the City would receive ten percent of the first $1,000,000 of the sale proceeds in excess of the
original project cost and twenty-five percent of all proceeds thereafter after allowing for sale and legal
expenses. [n 1998, the shopping center was sold to Edens and Avant of Columbia, Scuth Carolina. This
resulted in payments of approximately $432,000 1o the City. As the original funding source, ihe City crediied
the proceeds received to its General Capital Improvements Capital Projects Fund.

The 1992 decrease in Other Financing Sources results primarily from changes in one-time interfund
operating transfers related to capital improvement projects that occurred in 1998. During 1998, the General
Fund achieved its available budgetary fund balance objective (see the discussion of general govermmental
fund equity which follows below). As a result, in 1898 $1.9 million dollars was transferred from the General
Fund to the Genera! Capital Improvements Capital Project Fund to further finance the City's 1998 capital
program. Though the City also met its objective in 1999 and approximately $625,000 was eligible for transfer
at year-end, City Council chose not to authorize the transfer until the 2000 cperating budget had been
reviewed and approved. On March 27, 2000, Council authorized a transfer of $600,000 from the General
Fund to the General Capital Improvements Capital Projects Fund. ' o

B. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

General governmental expenditures are categorized under the following functions:

- Functions whose primary purpose is to reduce the amounts
and effects of external harm to individualis and property. This function includes expenditures for
police and fire protection (including emergency medical services), traffic signs and signals, animal
control and street lighting.

Public Health and Welfare - Functions whose primary purpose is to provide for the physical and
mental health of residents by preventing or reducing the number, length and severity of illnesses and

disabilities. This function includes expenditures for public health services, restaurant inspections,
and mental heaith services. ) i

Leisure Time Activities - Functions whose primary purpose is fo provide year-round leisure time
opporiunities for residents and others. This function includes expenditures for maintenance of parks
and public lands, recreation programs, playgrounds, swimming and ice skating.

Community Environment - Funciions whose primary purpose is to provide residents of the
community with a superior living environment. This functicn includes expenditures for city planning

and development, housing and building code enforcement, senior adult services, community relations
and tree maintenance and leaf removal.

Basic Utility Services - Functions whose primary purpose is to provide residents with basic public
services necessary for a safe and sanitary living environment. This function includes expenditures
for maintenance and replacement of water lines, maintenance and replacement of storm and sanitary
sewer lines, and refuse collection and disposal.

Transportation - Functions whose primary purpose is to facilitate the efficient flow of traffic through
the community. This function includes expenditures for street maintenance and repair, traffic signal
maintenance, street sweeping and ice and snow removal.

General Government - Functions whose primary purpose is to provide for the activities of the
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exacutive, legislative and judicial branches, including providing support services o the other general
governmental functions. This function includes expenditures for the Mayor's office, city council
(including related boards and commissions), the municipal court, and general administrative services
including finance, human resources, legal, public service administration and other administrative
support.

Capital Ouytlay - Expenditures for the purchase of long lived tangible assets necessary to the
functioning of the City. Includes expenditures for the purchase of land, buildings, equipment and
improvements with a usefui life of one year or more and a unit cost of at least one thousand doliars.

Debt Service - Expenditures far the retirernent of long-term debt principal and payment of interest on
the City’'s general obligation notes, bonds and other debt. Expenditures for short-terrn debt principal
are accounted for as fund liabilities.

Similar to revenue classification, not all decreases in governmental fund resources are classified as
expenditures. Generally accepted accounting principles require that in certain specific situations, decreases
in current financial resources be classified as other finanging uses. Opérating transfers to other funds and
certain specific types of debt refinancing transactions (of which the City had none) are classified as other
financing uses.

The foilowing summary schedule compares expenditures and other financing uses for the City's general
governmental functions and includes a discussion of material differences from 1998 fo 1999.

Year Ended December 31, increase
{Decrease)
Function 1999 1998 From 1968
Security of Persons & Property $14,434,394 $13,456,343 $978,051
Fublic Health & Welfare 378,668 356,838 21,830
Leisure Time Activities 604,396 578,908 25,488
Community Environment 4,694,019 3,704,847 889,172
Basic Utility Services 3,159,114 2,876,563 282,551
Transportation 1,809,710 1,243,171 666,539
General Govemment 6,959,563 6,717,703 241,860
Capital Outlay 4,711,457 4,265,484 445,873
Debt Service 2,276,151 287,548 1,988,603
Subtotal $39,127,472 $33,487,405 $5,640,067
Qther Financing Uses 3,979,480 5,311,442 (1,331,952)
Total $43,106,982 $38,798,847 $4,308,115

The 1999 increase in expenditures in the Security of Persons and Property activity is the result of
several factors. 1999 expenditures include full year cost for approximately seven firefighters who where hired
during 1998. In addition, five new police officers were hired during 1599 to fili openings on the force which
where created by retirements. Finally, during 1998, the City negotiated new labor agreements with the safety
farces, which granted a 4% cost-of-living increase as well as other benefits.

The 1999 increase in expenditures in the Community Environment activity is primarily the resuit of the
City's Strategic Investment Plan. During 1999, Council appropriated approximately $550,000 for the plan's
development. Approximately $400,000 was expended from the General Capital improvements Fund during
1988 for this project. Approximately $160,000 of the increase Is atiributable to increases in the Housing and
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Building Inspection programs that are funded out of the City's General Fund. During 1993, the City expended
approximately $80,000 more from non-recurring home improvement grant programs than was expended in
1998.

The increase in expendiures in the Transportation activity is directly aftributable to the
Coventry/Kemper/Faimount road reconstruction project. Approximately $1.1 million of the $1.5 million
project budget was expended during 1989. Of this amount, $900,000 was funded by a grant from the Ohio
Department of Transportation.

The increase in 1999 versus 1988 Debt Service expenditures are directly attributable to the City's
decision fo retire its Unfunded Pension Liability to the Police and Firefighters Disabifity and Pensjon Fund.
The $2.9 million liability, which arose from unfunded prior service credit granted by the pension fund when it
was established in the late 1960's, was retired in 1993 for approximately $2.1 million. The retirement was
financed by the issuance of a note which is included as a fund liability in the Police and Fire Pension Special
Revenue Funds.

1993 Other Financing Uses decreased from 1998 primarily because a transfer based upon ending
1999 budgetary fund balance from the General Fund to the General Capital Fund was not authorized for
transfer in 1999 (see the preceding discussion of General Governmental Revenues and Other Financing
Sources). During 1998, approximately $1.9 million was transferred.

General Fund Revenues and Expenditures

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. Since it accounts for all items not legally
required to be accounted for in another fund, the General Fund traditionally accounts for most general
governmental revenue and expenditure activity. In addition, the use of General Fund revenues, within the
overall iegal restraints of the City Charter and Ohio Revised Code, are determined by City Council. The
following schedules compare the General Fund's fiscal year 15999 revenues and expenditures to fiscal year
1998.

Year Ended December 31, Increase

{Decrease)

Revenue Source 1995 1998 From 1998
Property Taxes $5,421,183 $5,311,132 $110,051
Municipal Income Taxes 17,486,702 17,217,267 269,435
State Levied Shared Taxes 2,097,134 2,048,778 47 356
Intergovernmental Grants and Contract 871 ,636 038,128 33,508
Charges For Services 1,809,703 1,872,376 37,327
Fees, Licenses & Permits 372,383 310,003 62,380
Interest Eamings 385,894 642,646 {256,652)
Fines and Forfeitures 623,585 558,573 65,012
All Other Revenue 1,045,119 949,185 95,934
Subtotat $30,313,439 $29,849,088 $464,351
Other Financing Sources 18,880 13,800 5,080
Total $30,332,319 $29,862,888 $469,431

As the City's General Fund is the primary component of its general governmental activities, no further
discussion of 1999 versus 1998 changes in its revenue is necessary.
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Year Ended December 31, increase
Function 1999 1998 (gi‘gia;;g

Security of Persons & Property $12,032,038 $11,287,438 744,599
Public Health & Welfare 378,668 356,838 21,830
Leisure Time Activities 604,396 578,608 25,788
Community Environment 3,533,282 3,105,976 427,306
Basic Utility Services 2,558,192 2,429,168 129,024
Transportation 721,618 435,307 286 311
General Government 6,661,007 6,328,047 332,960
Capital Qutlay 426,862 238,963 187,899
Subtotal $26,916,063 $24,760,346 $2,155,717
Other Financing Uses 2,713,026 4,495,147 (1,782,121}
Total $29,629,089 $29,255,493 $373,596

As the City's General Fund is the primary component of its general governmental activities, no further
discussion of 1999 versus 1998 changes in its expenditures are necessary.

General Governmental Fund Equity

Governmental and expendable trust funds' equity are the difference between the funds' assets and
liabilities. Fund equity provides the City with the ability to deal with unanticipated liabilities; shortfalls in the
receipt of anticipated revenues, the ability to take advantage of unforeseen economic oppeortunities as they
arise and to avoid any shori-term problems that might arise from the timing of cash flow. In order to maintain
effective management of the City's financial resources and operational activities, it is important that fund
equity be maintained at an appropriate level and monitored. ' a

In recognition of the importance of maintaining an adequate levef of fund equity, City Council adopted
a fund balance policy for the General Fund and General Capital Projects Fund, two funds over which the City
mainiains discretionary control. While not legaliy binding, City Council established the following goals:

General Fund - The City should, as a financial goal, endeavor to carry forward at the beginning of
each fiscal year a General Operating Fund balance of not less than twenty percent of budgeted
operating fund expenditures. Any fund balance in excess of twenty percent is to become availabie
for transfer to the General Capital Fund in order to meet related capital needs of the City. -

General Capital Projects Fund - The City should, as a financial goal, endeavor to begin each fiscal
year with an annual Capital Fund balance sufficient to provide funding for the current year's capital
debt funding requirements plus a one-half million doilar contingent reserve.

The City realized both of these fund financial goals during 1999. Therefore, during 2000, City Council
authorized an operating transfer of approximately $600,000 from the General Fund to the General Capital
Projects Fund pursuant to these goals. General governmental operations during the year produced the
following changes in fund equity for the various governmental funds of the City:
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Year Ended December 31, Increase

{Decrease)

Fund Type 1999 1998 From 1998
General $7,462,863 $6,722,745 $740,118
Special Revenue $1,811,218 $2,439,709 $(628,493)
Debt Service $291,224 $2798,597 $11,627
Capital Projects $5,665,026 $7,721,560 $(2,056,534)
Expendabie Trust $124,517 $170,036 $(45,519)

Cash Management

The investrment of City funds is governed by baoth the City's charter and codified ordinances. The
City's investment goals are fo ensure the safety of principal, ensure the availability of funds to meet the City's

current obligations and to maximize investment vield. No single goal is deemed to be paramount over
another.

The cash rescurces of the City's individual funds are combined into a single pool and invested to the
extent available. The City invests in treasury notes, ireasury bills, repurchase agreements and other
authorized instruments. Repurchase agreements use obligations backed by the full faith and credit of the
United States and its agencies. The City has never invested its funds in any type of investment pool. The
authorized maximum investment maturity is five years from the date of purchase.

Interest eamed on investments is distributed to the General Fund and each of the City's restricted
funds on a pro-rata basis. Interest revenue is allocated o the restricted funds based upon each fund's
available cash balance relative to the total available cash balance of all funds. The remaining revenue is
credited to the General Fund. Beginning in 1998, in accordance with Statement No. 31 of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the City began to recognize the change in the fair value of its
investments as of the end of the year and reflecting any unrealized gain or loss resuliing from market
fluctuations on its operaiing statement. While the City purchases each investment with the intent to hold it to
its ultimate maturity and therefore should not incur any losses, this change more fairly reflects the amount of
funds that the City would achieve if it was forced to liquidate its entire investment portiolio.

investments and deposits at December 31, totaled $24,675,173. These investiments are stated at
their fair value as of December 31, 1989. The City's total revenue from investments for 1999 was $666,653.

Risk Management

The City strives to provide itself with superior risk coverage at the lowest possible cost {o its
residents. Since 1986, when the City completely self-insured its general liabiiity due to skyrocketing premium
costs relative to the insurance coverage provided, the City has been successful in obtaining various forms of
excess liability insurance coverage while still self-insuring a portion of its risk.

Broad Form Excess Ligbility - This insurance includes law enforcement, emergency
medical services, automobile and public officials lizbility insurance and is limied to $10
million. With the exception of EMS and automobile liability (detailed below), the City self-
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insures the first $250,000 of any claim. In certain specific instances where city management
deems that there is a greater than norma! exposure te a clalm the City will purchase
coverage up to $250,000 for the specific event. }

ile Liabili i m - This policy has a $250 deductible for
comprehensive coverage and $500 deductible for collision coverage for vehicies with a value
of $50,000 or greater. The City seli-insures vehicies with a value of less than $50,000.
Automobile liability is limited to one miilion dollars per accident at which point the City's broad
form excess liability policy then provides coverage.

Emergency Medical Insurance Coverage - This policy has a deductible of $250 per

occurrence and an occurrence limit of $250,000 at which point the City's broad form liability
policy would then provide coverage. The aggregate limit of this policy is $500,000.

Property and Marine Commercial Insurance - This policy has a deductible of $1,000.

Coverage is limited to $30,504,189 for property and contents and $1.5 million for contractor's
adquipment. Boiler insurance has a property damage limit of two million dollars with a
deductible of $1,000. The City maintains catastrophic loss coverage of $3 million for physical
damage io all vehicles while in storage. . o

- This policy has an
aggregate limit of $500,000 with a deductible of $1,000.

The City applied for and was accepted in the State of Ohio Workers' Compensation Retrospective
Rating Plan for claims arising out of the years 1894 through 1989. Under the terms of this plan, the City
initially paid a fraction of the premium (the minimum premium) that it would have had to pay as an
experience-rated risk. As costs for the City's injured workers' claims are incurred and paid by the Bureau of
Workers Compensation, the City then reimburses the Bureau for all amounts paid, subject o the individual
claim cost and employer's premium limitation. For the years 1995 through 1999 respectively, the City has
adopted a plan with no {imit on individual claims and an overall premium limitation 200% of the experience
plan premium. For 1994, the City adopted a plan with no limit on individual claims and an overall premium
limitatton of 150% of the experience plan premium. This translates to an overall premium limitation of $1.4 to
$2.0 million per year for each of these years' clfaims. Within these limitations, the City is responsible for
funding all costs for the ten-year period following the claim year. At that time the Bureau will bill the City for
any unresolved claims and then assume responsibility for any future expenses. The City has fully funded its
Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund according to what it believes its true claims cost will be based upon an
oufside consultant's analysis of the City's claims history. Adoption of this plan has resuited in annual cost
avoidances ranging from $425,000 to $565,000 per year or approximately $2.2 million over the five-year
petiod. As with ali risk, the City continues to closely monitor its reserves, adjusting them accordingly as the
need arises.

As of December 31, 1899, the City's Seh‘ Insurance Internal Service Fund had available fund equity
of $2,724,892 to fund this program.

Genera! Fi ssels

The General Fixed Assets of the City include all city owned land, buildings, improvements and
equipment used in the performance of general govemmental functions. Excluded from general fixed assets
are the fixed assets of the proprietary funds. The City has also elected not to capitalize infrastructure such as
roads, curbs and sidewalks. Accordingly, the value of these items is not included in the General Fixed Asseis
Account Group.
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As of December 31, 1999, the general fixed assets of the City fotaled $33,523,404. This amount
represents the historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual histeorical cost is not available. The City
does not recognize depreciation on the assets recorded in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Debt Administration

The State of Ohio limits the total amount of bonded debt issued by a municipality 1o 10.5% of total
assessed valuation of the municipality's real, public utility and tangible personal property. Tolal bonded debt
includes both voted and unvoted debt including short-term notes issued in anticipation of issuing bonds. In
addition, any debt authorized by Council without a vote of the people (referred to as unvoted or councilmanic
debt) is limited by the Siate to 5.5% of total assessed property value. As of December 31, 1999 these
limitations were approximately $68.8 million and $36.2 million. The City is well within these debt limitations.

A. Long-Term Obligations

At December 31, 1988, the City's long-term debt obligations were as follows:

OPWC Sewer imp. Loan (0.00%) $ 625812
Accrued Compensated Absences 2214914
Total $2.840.726

it should be noted that because the City currently has no bonded debt outstanding, it has no current bond
rating. Moody's Investor Services, Inc. withdrew the City’s former bond ratlng of Aal on December 1, 1992
when the last of the City's bonded debt was retired.

The City will utilize a portion of its sewer surcharge to retire the loan received from the Chio Public
Works Commissicnt. The City is funding compensated absences through its operating budget as the
employees usea the absences. , S

B. Shori-Term Note Obligations

At December 31, 1999, the City had total councilmanic note obligations of $3,845,000 with an interest
rate of 3.70%. In addition to financing its Police & Fire Unfunded Pension Liability, the City's note issue also
included $1,740,000 that was borrowed by the City on behalf of the Shaker Heights Public Library to partially
finance the renovation of the former Moreland School building to serve as the new main library. This facility is
owned by the Chy and leased to the Shaker Heights Library. Under the terms of the lease, the Library is
obligated for the financing of this portion of the note. On May 31, 2000, a replacement note in the amount
$3,935,0000 was issued. Included in this note was $1,585,000 to refinance the Library's liability, $1,950,000
1o refinance the City's Police and Fire Pension Note and $400,600 {o finance the acquisition of a fire truck.
The $155,000 reduction relative to the Library improvements was financed by the Library’s annual rental
payment. The replacement note was issued with an interest rate of 5.0% and will mature on May 31, 2001.
Sometime prior to that date, the City plans o issue a bond {o refinance the maturing note.

Despite the City's intent to retire these notes on a long-term basis, the notes are considered to be
short-term debt because the City will not be issuing a bond to refinance the notes until after the issuance of
this repori. Accordingly, the notes are classified as short-term, fund liabilities rather than being accounted for
as general long-term debt. .

Pension Obligations

All employees of the City belong to one of two state sponsored pension plans. Non-uniformed
employees are members of the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). Police officers and
firefighters are members of the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund {(PFDPF). Both refirement
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plans are cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement systems. A more detailed discussion of
both pension plans can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements in the Financial Section of this
report.

Independent Audit
The financial records, books of accounts, and transactions of the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio for the

vear ended December 31, 1989 have been audited by the Office of the Auditor of the State of Ohio, Jim
Petro. The auditor's unqualified epinion has been included in this report.

Certificate of Achievement

i am proud fo report that the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
{commonly referred to as GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement For Excellence In Financial Reporting to
the City of Shaker Heights for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1998. The Certificate of Achievernent is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest
standards for the preparation of state and local government financial reporis.

In order to be awarded a Cerlificate of Achievement by the GFOA, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform o the
program's standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is vaild for a period of only one-year. | believe that the City's current CAFR

continues to conform fo the Certificate of Achievement program's requirements and, as such, we are submitting
it to the GFOA for evaluation.

Acknawledgements

The successful completion of a report of this scope depends upon the dedicated contributions of many
employees. The sincere appreciation of those primarily responsible for the completion of this CAFR is extended
to all contributors, but especially those employees in the Department of Finance, particularly Supervisor of
Accounting John Mockier, Staff Accountants Joseph K Dubovec, Renee T. Mahoney, and Shirley Moore; and
Data System Technician Gail Litfle. Finaily, the Staff wishes to extend its appreciation fo the Mayor, Cify
Council, and the Finance Committee for their support and commitment to responsible fiscal reporting.

RespecHtully submitted

Fenh JBhach

Frank J. Brichacek
Finance Director

William J. Schuchart
Chief Administrative Officer
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City of Shaher Heights, Ohio

Listing of Principal City Officials
as of December 31, 1999

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Mayor Patricia S. Mearns
Councilmember/Vice Mayor Jan M. Devereaux
Councilmember Theresa Abraham-Whalley
Councilmember Allen D. Foster
Councilmember Brian S. Gleisser
Councilmember Kenneth J. Kovach
Councilmember . _Judith H. Rawson
Councilmember . Stephanie W, Turner
Judge K.J. Montgomery

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Chief Administrative Officer William J. Schuchart
Director of Finance Frank J. Brichacek, Jr.
Director of Administrative Services Neil J. Soltis

Director of Law/Pro-Integrative

Housing Services .. Sheryl King Benford
Director of Building James P. Ziegler
Director of Housing Inspection William E. Hanson
Director of Planning Philip Heintzelman
Director of Community Service Stephanie M. Wood
Fire Chief Allen E. Weber
Police Chief Walter A. Ugrinic .
Director of Health Scott H. Frank, M.D.
Director of Public Works Willie Alexander Jr.
Director of Human Resources Mary Gavin-Wagner
Editor of Publications Jane S. Wood
Manager of Senior Adults Mary R. Webb
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Lausche Bldg
615 W Superior Ave

STATE oF OHIO : ) Floor 12

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR _ . Cleveland OH 44113 - 1801
) - Telephone 216-787-3665

JM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE ) 800-626-2297

Facsimile 216-787-3361
www.auditor.state.ch.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Members of City Council

City of Shaker Heights

Cuyahoga County .

3400 Lee Road T
Shaker Heights, Chio 44120

To the Members of Council:

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of Shaker Heights, Cuyahoga
County, Ohio, {the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1989, as listed in the table of contents. These
general-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Qur respansibility is to express
an opinfon on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolfer General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
siatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includss examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinton.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present fairdy, in ali material respecis, the
financial position of the City of Shaker Heights, Cuyahoga County, Ohig, as of December 31, 1999, and the results of
its operations and the cash flows of ifs proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. ~

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we_have also issued a report dated June 18, 2000 on our
consideration of the City's internal conirol over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of the City
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statemenis and schedules listed in
the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required pari of the general-purpose
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general-
purpose financial statements taken as a whole. .

We also have previously audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrofler General of the United States,
the general-purpose financial statements of the City for the year ended December 31, 1998 (which is not presented
herein), and we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. In our opinion, the information in the
comparatwe budgetary schedules, comparatwe balance sheet and oomparatwe statement of revenues expenditures and
changes in fund balance/retained earmnings, related to 1998 is fairly stated in all material respects in relatlon ta the basic
financial statements from which it has been derived.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and therefore express no
opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

June 16, 2000
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 1998

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Travel and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Selfdnsurance Claims
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Eamings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

NET INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

{INCREASE (DECREASE]) IN
RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR

TOTALS
INTERNAL {Memorandum Only)
ENTERPRISE SERVICE 1999 1998

$2,432,697  $2,607,800 $5,040,497  $4,962,462
453 30,426 30,879 15,767
2433150 2,638,226 5,071,376 4,978,229
2,334,918 1,062,954 3,397,872 3,279,179
17,240 758 17,998 17,237
897,971 640,393 1,538,364 1,682,754
264,821 311,297 576,118 538,314
11,427 427,208 438,635 299,927
99,969 8,736 108,705 115,467
3,626,346 2,451,346 6,077,692 5,932,878
{1,193,196) 186,880 {1,006,316) {954,649)
159,779 159,779 177,088

159,779 159,779 177,088

{1,193,1986) 346,659 {846,537) (777,561}
1,115,436 0 1,115,436 1,107,608
0 0 0 0

(77,760) 346,659 268,599 330,047
79,290 4,904 84,194 90,214
1,530 351,563 353,093 420,261
2,911 2,209,376 2,912,287 2,492,026
$4,441 $3,260,939 $3,265,380 $2,912,287

The accompanying notes to the combined financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FiISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers
Cash Payments to Employees
Other Operating Receipts (Payments)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY QOPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Transfers - in
Operating Transfers - Out

NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED FOR})
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIMITIES

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIMITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Contributed Capital

NET CASH tISED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Earned on Investments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginhning of Year
Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TC NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income

Adjustments {o Reconcile Operating Income fo

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activifies:
Depreciation

Change in Operating Assets and Lizabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Recelvables
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Governments
(increase} Decrease in Due From Other Funds
{Increase) Decrease in Inventory
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid items
Increase (Decrease} In Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase {Decrease)} in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase (Decrease} in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Self-Insurance Claims Payable

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

TOTALS
INTERNAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY)
ENTERPRISE  SERVICE 1989 1998
$2,432,697  $2,429,314  $4,862,011  $4,869,221
(1,453,626)  (1,045,834)  (2,200,460)  (2,257,654)
(2,287,412)  (1,038,248)  (3,325,661)  (3.339,067)
453 30,426 30,879 16,008
{1,007,888) 374,657 (633,231) (711,492}
1,090,436 0 1,090,436 1,226,608
0 0 0 o
1,090,436 0 1,090,436 1,226,608
(97,737) 0 {67,737 (140,671)
90,600 0 90,500 127,760
{7.137) 0 (7,137) {12,911}
0 159,779 159,779 177,088
] 159,779 159,779 177,088
75,411 534,436 609,847 679,293
158,453 3,887,269 4,045,722 3,366,429
$233,864  $4,421,705  $4,655,569  $4,045,722
{$1,193,196) $186,880  ($1,006,316)  ($954,649)
99,969 8,736 108,705 115,467
0 {70,119) (70,119) (6,927
0 43,928 43,928 (25,283)
0 {145,928) {145,928) (30,241)
0 721 721 (8,488)
(7,470} 18,854 11,384 455
2,905 5,909 8,814 {16,456)
9,704 2,222 11,926 (72,120)
33,483 20,720 54,203 17,372
46,717 203,804 250,521 (22,201)
0 98,930 98,930 291,579
185,308 187,777 373,085 243,157
($1,007,888) $374,657 ($633,231)  ($711,492)

The accompanying notes to the combined financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

ttin 1

The City of Shaker Heights (the City) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Ohio in 1812,
The City has operaied as a home rule municipal corporation under its own charter since the charter's
adoption by the residents in 1931. The charter provides that the City operate under the Mayor/Council
form of government, with the legisiative power vested in the seven-member Council. The Mayor is the
Chief Executive Officer of the City. The Mayor appoints the Chief Administrative Officer of the City.

The City provides various services including police and fire protection, public health, parks and
recreation, street maintenance, planning and zoning, community preservation and development and
other general governmental services. None of these services are provided by legally separate
organizations; therefore, these operations are included in the primary government.

As defined by generally accapied accounting principles established by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB Statement No. 14), the financial reporting entity consists of the City (the
primary govemment), as well as its component units. Component units are defined as legally
separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary govermment are financially
accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a voting majority of the component
unit's board, and either &) the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the component
unit, or b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a fmanc:al benefit fo or impose a financial
burden on the primary government.

Based upon the foregoing criteria, these financial statements do not include any component units.

B. Basis of Presentation

The financial reporiing practices of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicabie fo local governments. The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and
account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity The operations of each
fund are accounted for with a separate set of seli-balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Individual funds and account groups
which are used by the City are summarized in the accompanying combmed fmancaal statements and
are classified as follows: -

Govemnmental Funds

CGeneral Fund - To account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The General Fund balance is available for any purpose, provided it is expended or
transferred in accordance with the Charter and legislation of the City and/or the general laws of the
State of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - To account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects} that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes. The following funds are accounted for by the City as Special Revenue Funds:

Street Maintenance and Repair Fund Fire Pension Fund

State Highway Maintenance Fund Indigent Driver Alcohol Treatment Fund
Food Service Fund Court Computer Legal Research Fund
Sewer Maintenance Fund Clerk’s Computerization Fund

Police Pension Fund Exterior Home Maintenance Fund

B-12



CiTY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polices {continued)

Fair Housing Grant Fund Comrmunity Visioning Fund

Community Preservation Partnership Grant Fund Street Lighting Assessment Fund

Law Enforcement Grant Fund Tree Maintenance Assessment Fund

Court Community Service Fund Ohio Court Security Grant Fund

Court Alternate Dispute Fund High Intensity Prug Trafficking Area Grant
Fund

Debt Service Fund - To account for the accumnulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds - To account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by propretary and trust funds). The
following funds are accounted for by the City as Capital Projects Funds:

General Capital Improvements Fund
Sewer Capital Improvements Fund
Shaker Towne Centre NW Quadrant Capital Improvement Fund

Proprietary Funds

Entemrlse Fund To aocount for operatlons that are ﬁnanced and operated in a manner samllar to
depreciation) of providing goods and services fo the general public on a continuing basis be financed
or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that periodic
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is appropriate for public
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. The Recreation Fund is the only fund in
this category.

internal Service Funds - To account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Cify on a cost-reimbursement basis. The following
funds are accounted for by the City as Internal Service Funds:

Central Stores Fund Central Services Fund
Central Printing Fund Self-insurance Fund
Centra! Garage Fund

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - To account for assets held by the City in an agency capacity for individuals,
private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Agency funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve the measurement of the results of operations. The City's one expendable
trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner as the govemmental funds. The following
funds are accounted for by the City as Trust and Agency Funds:

Law Enforcement Trust Fund Municipat Court Fund

Obstruction Permit Deposit Fund Contractor Deposit Fund

Excavating Permit Deposit Fund Recreation Schelarship Fund
Unclaimed Monies Fund Shaker Family Center at Sussex Fund
Fund for the Future of Shaker Heights Board of Building Standards Fund

B-13



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Polices (continued)

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group - To account for all fixed assets of the City, except those
accounted for in the Proprietary Funds.

General Long -Tenm Obligations - To account for all unmatured iong-term obligations of the City, except
those accounted for in the Proprietary and Trust Funds.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the method by which revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the
timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

All governmental and expendable trust funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis, revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are
recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Agency fund
assets and liabiliies are recognized on the modified accrual basis and do not involve a measurement
focus.

With respect to proprietary activities, the City has adopted statement No. 20 of the GASB, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Qther Governmental Units that ri Fund
Accounting. The City has elected to apply all applicable GASE pronouncements as well as Financial
Accounting Standards Board pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board opinions issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or confradict GASB
pronouncements.

Revenue Recognition - In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrnual basis,
the following revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available: municipal income taxes
withheld by employers, inheritance taxes, sewerage surcharges, investment earnings, fines and
forfeitures and state levied locally shared taxes (including motor vehicle fees). Reimbursement for
federally funded grant projects are accrued as revenue at the time the eligible expenditures are made.
Property taxes and special assessments though measurable, are not available soon enough in the
subsequent year to finance current pericd obligations. Income taxes and sewerage surcharges are
considered to be measurable when billed, however, these revenue sources are not considered to be
available until they have been received by the collecting agency. Accordingly, these lterms are recorded
and revenue recognition is deferred until they become available.

All ather revenue sources, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services and non-employer
withheld income taxes are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they generally are not
measurable until actually received by the City.

Expenditure Recognition - The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are
recorded when the related liability is incurred except for unmatured principal and interest on general long-
term debt which is recognized when paid. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are
not recognized in the govemnmental funds.

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic

resources measurement focus. These funds account for operations that are primarily financed by user
charges. The measurement focus concerns determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital

B-14



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

investment and management control. Revenues are recognized by proprietary fund types in the
accounting pericd when they are eamed and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.
Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are recorded in proprietary funds.

|, Budgetary Process

Tax Budget - A budget of estimated cash receipts and disbursements Is submitted to the County Auditor,
as secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the period January 1 to
December 31 of the following year.

Estimated Besources - The County Budget Commission certifies s actions relative to the submitted tax
budget to the City by September 1. As a pari of this ceriification, the City receives the official certificate
of estimated resources, which states the projected resources of each fund. On or about January 1, this
certificate is amended to include any unencumbered balances from the preceding year. The City must
then revise its budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing fiscal
year will not exceed the amount stated in the cettificate of estimated resources. The revised budget then
serves as the basis for the annual appropriation measure.

Appropriations - A temporary appropriation measure to controt cash disbursements may be passed on or
about January 1 of each year for the period January 1 to March 31. For all operating funds except capital
projects and trust and agency funds, an annual appropriation measure must be passed by April 1 of each
year for the period January 1 to December 31. The appropriation measure may be amended during the
vear as new information becomes available provided that total appropriations do not exceed estimated
resources as certifled. Trust and Agency Funds are deemed to be appropriated for their intended
purpose upon receipt. The City appropriates Capital Project Funds on a project by project basis.

For all funds, except capital projects funds, unencumbered appropriation balances lapse at year end
and revert to the respective funds from which they were originally appropriated, thus becoming
available for future appropriation. Capital projecis are appropriated on a project basis. Project
appropriation balances lapse upon completion of the project; therefore their unencumbered
appropriation balances are carried over to the sybsequent fiscal year.

State law mandates that a fund’s total obligations may not exceed the fotal amount appropriated for the
fund. For afl funds except fiduciary and capital project funds, the City maintains its legal level of
budgetary control at the fund level. For fiduciary funds, the legal leve! of budgetary control is maintained
at the fund level. For capital project funds, the City maintains its legal level of budgetary control at the
project level. Management control is exercised at the department ievel within each fund. Administrative
control is maintained through the establishment of more detailed line item budgets. The Mayor and Chief
Administrative Officer are authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within a fund
s0 long as the total amount appropriated for the fund is not exceeded. -
As provided by the City's Charier and State Law, amendments to the 1999 appropriation ordinance were
approved by City Council. These amendments were deemed to be immaterial in nature and are
reflected in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual for the Year Ended December 31, 1999.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Encumbrances - The City is required to use the encumbrance method of accounting by Ohio law. Under
this systemn, purchase orders and contracts for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve
the porton of the applicable appropriation. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
encumbrances oufstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities.

Il. Budget Basis of Accounting

While reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund equity onh the basis of
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis), the budgetary basis, as provided by law, is
based upon accounting for transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements.

The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes in Fund Balance-
Budgetary Basis and Actual, is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a relevant comparison of
actual resuits to the budget. Since the City does not adopt annual budgets for capital projects or trust
and agency funds, these fund types are not included in this statement. The major differences

between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when
susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash or encumbered (budget) as opposed to
when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed

to reservation of fund balance (GAAP}.

The adijustments necessary to convert the fund balances/equity and the results of operations at the end
of the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis are as follows:

Fund Balance Fund Equity
Special Debit Enterprise Internal
General Revenue Service Fund Service
GAAP Basis (as reported) $7,462,863 $1,811,216 $291,224 $910,200 53,354,424
Increase (Decrease) due to: —
Revenue:
Accrued December 31, 1999
but not yet received in cash (3,429,116) (247 422) -0- (25,000} (636,656)
Expenditures;
Accrued December 31, 1899 o
but not yet paid in cash 2,651,614 3,041,510 988 393,102 2,129,261
Prepaid ltems {5,351) -0- -0- (11,789) -0-
Fund Assets:
Inventory of Supplies (169,205) -0- -0- -0- (26,304)
Fixed Assets -0- -0- -0- {1,032,648) (99,020)
Net Decrease in the Fair Value
of Investments $01,485 -0- -0- -0 0-
Non-GAAP Budget Basis $7.502.290  $4.605.304 $302.212 $233.864 $4.421.705
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Excess of Revenues & Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and

Other Uses Net Income {Loss)
Special Debt Enterprise Internal
General Revenue Service Fund Service
GAAP Basis {as reportad) $ 703,230 § (628,493) 3% 11,627 $ (77.760) $ 346,659
Increase (Decrease) due to:
Revenues: -
Accrued December 31, 1998, ’
received in cash during 1999 2,759,928 178,327 -0- -0 764,537
Accrued December 31, 1899,
but not yet received in cash (3,429,116) — (247,422) -0 (25,000) (938,656)
Expenditures:
Accrued December 31, 1998,
paid in cash during 1989 (2,307,017) (892,244) {1,439) (300,293) (1,797.676)
Accrued December 31, 1989
but not yet paid in cash 2,651,614 3,041,510 988 393,102 2,129,261
Fixed Assets acquisitions
recorded as expenditures o
for budgetary purposes - -0- -0- 7,137 -0
Changes in prepaid expenditures:
Prepaid ltems 56,632 7,660 -Q- (7.470) 18,854
inventory of Supplies -0- -0- -0- -0 721
Nen-cash expense - .
Depreciation expense -0- -0- -0- 99,969 8,736
Net Decrease in the Fair Value of
Investments 541,189 -0- -0- 0. -
Encumbrances-
Current year charges against
prior year's cash fund balance
reserved for encumbrance 624,752 706,687 0- 84,799 148,202
Encumbered at December 31,
1999 but recorded as the
equivalent of cash expenditures
for budgetary purposes {787.719) (660,176) -0- {169.291) (612,158)
Non-GAAP Budget Basis $813503 $1,503859 $11.176 081 $71480

E._Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund types consider ail highly liquid
investiments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash, with a maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

F. Inventory i
Inventory is stated at weighted average cost. The cost of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure

in the Governmental Funds when purchased and as an expense in the Proprietary Funds when used.
Obsolete inventory has not been valued for financial reporting purposes.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

‘Note 1. Summary of Significant A¢ccounting Policies {continued)
G. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets include land, buildings, improvements and equipment owned by the City. When purchased,
such assels are recorded as expenditures in the Governmental Funds and accounted for in the General
Fixed Assets Account Group. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
the actual historical cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market
value on the date donated. The City does not capltaltze interest expenses incurred on debt issued to
finance capital assets.

Infrastructure fixed assets such as sireels, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and sewers are not capitalized
along with the other general fixed assets as they are immaovable and of value only to the City.

Fixed assets in the Proprietary Funds are capitalized in the individual funds in which they are utilized.
Assets which were acquired using general tax revenues and transferred to a Proprietary Fund are
recorded as contributed capital.

Depreciation on fixed assets used in the Proprietary Funds is computed and recorded using the straight-
line method. Depreciation recognized on assets acquired or consfructed with contributed capital is
closed to the contributed capital account. Net income or loss, adjusted by the amount of depreciation on
fixed assets acquired with contributed capital is closed fo retained eamings. No depreciation is recorded
on those assets accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Estimated lives of various classes of fixed assets are as follows:

Building 30 to 50 Years
Improvements 7 10 20 Years
Equipment 3 o 30 Years

H. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City had numerous fransactions between funds, most of
which are in the form of transfers of resources to provide services or to service debt. The accompanying
financial statements generally reflect such transactions as operating transfers. The City also advances
money between funds throughout the year. To the extent that certain transactions between funds had
not been paid or received as of December 31, 1989, interfund amounts receivable or payable have been
recorded as Due To/Due From Other Funds.

l._Total Columns on Combined Statements

Total columns on the combined stalements are captioned "Memorandum Only" fo indicate that they
are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial
position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and are not comparable to a consolidation. Interfund elirninations have not been made in
the aggregation of this data. :

J. Reclassifications

Certain amounts shown for 1988 have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, ORIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMEBER 31, 1999

Note 2. Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments (Including Repurchase Agreements)

A. Deposits - All deposits are in the financia!l institutions noted below and are carried at cost,

Insured o Carrying Amount  Bank Balance  Fund

(FDIC) Bank One $19,325 $17,022 Pool

(FDIC) Fifth Third Bank 100,000 100,000 General Capital
{(FDIC) FirstMerit Bank 26,548 26,548 Pool/General Capital
{FDIC) Huntington National Bank 15,998 15,999 Pool

(FDIC) KeyBank (314,802) 100,000 Pool/General Capital
(FDIC) National City Bank (1,695,001) 50,241 Pool

(FDIC) National City Bank 26,591 26,591 Bond Retirement
(FDIC) National City Bank 100,000 100,000 Municipal Court
Uninsured ) . i ) i

Cash on Hand 23,495 N/A Pool

Collateral held by City's agent in the Financial Institution’s Name:

Fifth Third Bank 1,684 1,684 General Capital

KeyBank -0- 129,373 Pool/General Capital

National City Bank 272.150 317,786 Municipa! Court
Total Deposits ($1.424,201) $ 885244

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Fach fund type's
pottion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in City Treasury Cash".
Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or building and loan associations located in
Ohio. Any public depository in which the City places a deposit must pledge as coilateral eligible
securities of aggregate face value equal to the excess of the deposit that is not insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation. At year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was
($1,424,201) and the bank balance was $885,244. The bank balance covered by federal deposit
insurance was $436,401 and the remaining $448,843 was covered by collateral heid by third party
trustees in collateral pools in the name of the respective depository institutions securing all public
funds on deposits pursuant to Section 135.18 of the Ohio Revised Code, The statutes further require
the classification of monies held by the City into three categories, active, inactive, and interim
deposits. Active monies are those required to be kept in a cash or near cash status for immediate use
by the City. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the City treasury or in depository
accounts payable or withdrawable on demand. Inactive monies are those which are not required for
use within the current two year period of designation of depositories. Interim monies are those monies
which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period
of the depositories.
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NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 2. Deposits with Financial institutions and Investments (continued)

B. Investments - The City's investment policies are governed by the City's charter and ordinances. The
charter authorizes the City to invest in the following securities:

1) Bands or notes which are issued by and are obligaticns of the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio.

2) Bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasuty bills or other securities issued by and
constituting direct obligations of, or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the
faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest thereon.

3) Bonds or notes which are issued by and are the obligations of the State of Chio, provided
that such bonds or noles have a mating assighed to them by Standard and Poors
Corporation or Moody's Investor Services, Inc. which rating:

A, As to bonds, is one of the two highest rating categories that may be
assigned; and
B. As fonotes, is the highest rating category that may be assigned.

in order to be eligible investments under points (2} or (3), there must be no outstanding default for the
payment of the principal or interest on such securities and the securities must mature or be subject to
redemption at the option of the City within five years of the date the City purchased such security.

In addition, effective September 27, 1996 State law specifically prohibiis investment in stripped principal or
interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives. The issuance of {axable notes for
the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short seliing are also prohibited. All investments must
be purchased with the expectation that the investment will be held to maturity.

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above are pemmitted provided that the fair value of
the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by at
least two percent and be marked to the market daily. The term of the agreement may not exceed thirty
days.

Payment for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investment to
the Finance Director or qualified trustee or, if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon
receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

Except for non-participating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the
investment’s guoted market price at December 31, 1999. Non-participating investment coniracts such as
repurchase agreements and non-negatiable certificates of deposits are reported at cost.

The City's investments at December 31, 1999, carried at fair value, are as noted below:

Investments o Fair Value Fund
Held by City's counterparty: '
Repurchase Agreement $3,440,000 Pool
Held by the City or its Agent in the City’s Name:
1.8, Treasury Notes : 22659 374 Pool
Total Investments 26,099,374

C. Risk Categorization - Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 3 "Deposits
with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase
Agreements," requires the City to categorize its investments into one of three credit risk categories.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered for which the securities are héld by the City
or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
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NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 2. Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments {continued)

securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes
uninsured or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent, but not in the City's name.

Type of investment Category 2  Category 3 Fair Value
U.S. Govemnment Securities $22659,374 B -0- $22,659,374
Repurchase Agreements -0- 3.440.000 3,440,000
Total Investmenis $22 659374 $3440.000 $28.099.374

Note 3. Property Tax |

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public ufility and tangible personal property
located in the City. The City receives property taxes from the following sources:

Real Estate - Residential, commercial and public utifity real property is taxed at 35% of market value.

Tangible Personal Properly - The true value of personal property is based upon composite annual
allowances and is assessed at 88%, except for the following: |

Electric Utility Production Equipment Assessed at 100% of True value (50% of cost).

Rural Electric Companles - Assessed at 50% of true value.
Railroads - Assessed at 25% of true value.
Telephone Utility -  Effective in tax year 1995, all interexchange telephone

personal property is assessed at 25% of true vaiue.
Local exchange telephone personal property added to
the tax roles during tax year 1995 and thereafter is
assessed at 25% of true value; existing personal
property is assessed at 88% of true value.

Real property taxes (other than public utility property) are levied after October 1 on the assessed
value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Assessed values are established by the
Cuyahoga County Auditor at 35% of the current market value, and reappraisal of all property is
required every six years with a triennial update. The last reappraisal was completed for tax year 1894
affecting collections beginning in 1885, This appraisal was updated during 1987.

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due January
20; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due January 20 with the remainder payable by June 20.
Taxes not paid become delinquent after December 31 of the year in which payable. Under certain
circumstances, state statute permits earlier or later payment dates to be established.

Taxpayers become liable for tangible personal property taxes (other than public utility property} on
January 1 of the current calendar year based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and
assessed values determined as of the close of the most recent fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended
on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Since 1992, tangible personal property used in
business {except for public utilitties) was assessed for ad valorem taxation purposes at 25% of its true
value. Amounts paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county taxpayers may
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Note 3. Property Tax {continued) ) -

pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due April 30, if paid semi-annually, the first
payment is due April 30 with the remainder payable by September 20. Under Ohio law, personal
property taxes do not attach as a lien on the personal property.

Public utility real and tangible personal property taxes collecied during the calendar year were levied
in the preceding calendar year based on assessed values as of January 1 of that preceding year, the
lien date. The majority of public utility tangible personal property currently is assessed at 35% of its
true value. Public utility property taxes are payable on the same dates as real property taxes
described previously.

While property tax rates are levied by the City, the Cuyahoga County Auditor is statutorily responsible
for administering and collecting real property taxes on the behalf of all taxing authorities in the county,
including the City.

The assessed values per category applicable to the 1989 and 1898 collections are as follows:

Tax Collectj ion Year
2000/1999 1999/1998
Real Estate (other than public utility) $620,415,380 $520,808,980
Public Utilities Real and Tangible Personal Property 21,083,560 | 23,210,870
Tangible Personal Property (other than public utility) 11.173.500 _10.729.785
Total Valuation $652.672 550 749 63

The tax rate levied to finance the City's services for the years ended December 31, 1899 and December
31, 1998, was $9.90 per $1,000 of real estate and personal property valuation. A receivable totaling
$5,960,580 and corresponding deferred revenue have been recorded in the General Fund ($5,599,370),
Police Pension Special Revenue Fund ($180,810), and Fire Pension Special Revenue Fund ($180,610).
This total includes $315,917 for the portions of the taxes levied prior to Becember 31, 1998, which are
delinguent, and $5,644,673 which was levied on January 1, 1999, on the assessed value of property on
October 1, 1989. This amount is measurable, but not available in the current period.

The receivable and related deferred revenue does not include property tax entilements in the amount of
$766,385 ($719,910 General Fund, $23,238 each to Police Pension and Fire Pension Special Revenue
Funds) that the City expects to receive in 2000 from the State of Ohio to finance 2000 operations. These
entitliements are based ypon 1899 lacal prapertty tax relief granted by the State to qualified classes of teal
property owners in the form of Homestead Exemptions and tax rollbacks.

Note 4. City Income Tax o ) —

The City income tax is applied to the gross salaries, wages and other personal service compensation
eamed by residents of the City and 1o the eamings of nonresidents working within the City. This tax also
applies to the net income of businesses operating within the City. The fax rate was 1-3/4% of eamings
for 1899 and 1958. Residents of the City are granted a credit up to one-half of 1% for taxes paid o other
municipalities. A receivable totaling $6,139,759 has been recorded in the General Fund. This total
includes $2,326,550 for the porifon of taxes that is due in December, hut not received untii January of the
following year, and $3,813,209 which has been billed, but is not available in the current period.
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Note 5. Receivables

DECEMBER 31

, 1999

Receivables at December 31, 1999 inciude the following:

General

TAXES:
fncome Tax:

Current $2,326,550

Deferred 3,813,209
Property Tax

Delinquent 296,770

Deferred 5,302,600
Admissions Tax 3.426
TOTAL TAXES 11,742,555
ACCOUNTS:

Collection Cost -
Reimbursement 354,869
Franchise Fees 56,419
Ambulance Fees 92,450
Sewer Surcharge -0-
Miscellaneous 12.625
TOTAL ACCOUNTS 516,403
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS:

Current -0-

Deferred 3,293
ACCRUED INTEREST 297,481
LOANS -0-
LEASES 1.020.328
TOTALS 13,580,060

Note §. Due from Other Governmenis

Special Capital Intemal Trust and

Bevenue Brolects Service  Agency Jotals
$ -0 $ -0 $ -0 $ -0 $2,326,550
-0- -0- -0- -0- 3,813,209
19,146 -0- -0- -0- 315,916
342,074 -0- -0- -0- 5,644,674
0- L0 -0- 0 3426
361,220 -0- -0- -0- 12,103,775
o o -0- 0 354869
-0- -0- -0- -0- 56,419
. D -0- -D- -0- 92,490
473,236 -0- -0- -0- 473,236
473,236 - 213,253 0 1,202,892
-0 -0- 77,082 0- 77,082
1,327,432 - ~0- -0- 1,330,725
-0- -0- -0- -0- . 297,481
-0- -0- -0 547,616 547,616
—— 2295786 - 23 2316114

$2161.888 S2200786 2 §280335 §547616 S18.075689

Receivables due from other governments at December 31, 1999, include the following:

Special Capital Intemnal
eneral Bipiecis _Senice
Local Government Contracts $ 101,207 5 -0- % -0- $ -0
Auto Registration Fees - =0 11,549 -0- -0-
Gas Tax -0- - 30,930 -0- -0-
Liquor Tax 1,431 -0- -0- -0-
Estate Tax -0- -0- 345,548 -0-
Local Govemment — State 21,432 -0- -0- -0-
State Grants 12,727 B -0- -0-
Federal Grants 770 86,664 760,524 -O-
Other —159.319 -Q- Q- 5

$206.886  $129443
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Total

$ 101,207
11,549
30,930

1,431
345,548
21,432
12,727
847,958
—159.846
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Interfund Balances

DECEMBER 31, 1999

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 1999 include the following:

Due From
Description _ Dther Funds
General Fund $375.754
Special Revenue Funds:
Street Maintenance and Repair Fund -0-
State Highway Maintenance Fund 0
Sewer Maintenance Fund -
Indigent Driver Alcchol Treatment Fund 105
Court Computer Legal Research Fund 3,185
Clerk of Courl's Computerization Fund 10,623
Exterior Home Maintenance Fund 0-
Law Enforcement Grant Fund 0
Court Community Service Fund 277
Court Altemate Dispute Resolution Fupd 950
Tree Maintenance Assessment Fund -0-
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Grant
Fund -0-
Total Special Revenue Funds 15.140
Debt Service Fund -0-
Capital Projects Funds
General Capital Projects Fund 108,481
Recreation Enterprise Fund 25,000
internal Service Funds
Central Garage Fund 35,000
Cenfral Printing Fund -0-
Central Services Fund 0
Self Insurance Fund 611,321
Total Intemal Service Funds 646,321
Trust and Agency Funds
Law Enforcement Trust Fund 6,400
Municipal Court Fund -0-
Shaker Family Resource Center Q-
Total Trust and Agency Funds 6 400

Total Interfund Balances §1 !177!296

Note 8. Changes in General Fixed Assets

Due to Other

Funds

$5563.095

11,044
491
8,387
-0-
1,104
2577
65,836
40,970

5

o

Changes in general fixed assets during the year ended December 31, 1999, were as follows:

Class

Land

Buildings

Land Improvements
Machinery & Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total

6,253,593 -0- -g-
2,688,743 60,261 2,975
11,635,340 1,332,694 172,776
243 890 8.500 -Q-
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$32.147268 $1565776  $189,640

Completed

Jan. 1, 1989  Additions Deletions Congtruction
$11,325,702 $ 166,321 $ 13,889

$ 0
-0-

4,426
212,878
(217,304

0-

Dec. 31, 1999

$11,478,134
6,253,593
2,750,455
13,008,136
_33.088
$33.923.404




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1989

Note 8. _Changes in General Fixed Assets {continued)

Project Expended

Construction in Progress Projects e Authorization 4o Date
Police Department Renovation

Communication Center ~ Engineering Services $ 24,060 $ 23,252

RestfLocker Room — Engineering Services . 5,940 3,334

Maivern Playground Project 450 _ €.500

TOTALS : $39.450 - $33.086

Note 9. Proprietary Fund Fixed Assets

Proprietary fund fixed assets at December 31, 1888, were as follows:

Class . Enterprise Internal Service Total
Land $ 86,342 $ -0- $ 86,342
Buildings 1,621,573 -0- 1,621,573
Land Improverments 1,305,444 -0- 1,305,444
Machinery and Equipment 536,518 164775 701,293
Total 3,549,877 164,775 3,714,652
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,517.228) _ {85.755) (2,582 983)
Net $.1.032.649 7 $ 99.020 $1,131.669

Note 10. Compensated Absences

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 18, the City
has accrued a liability for compensated absences (vacation and sick leave) at December 31, 1998 along
with any salary-related benefit liabilites associated with the payment of compensated absences. The
City uses the vesting method to calculate this liability. For govemmental funds, the City has recognized
the cumment portion of this liability at December 31, 1999 that is expected fo be liguidated with expendable
available financial resources. The remainder of the compensated absence lability for governmental
funds is reported in the general long-term debt account group as accrued sick leave benefits. Proprietary

funds report the entire liability for compensated absences calculated at December 31, 1898,

Vacation is earmned by City employees at varying rates based upon length of service. No employee
may accumulate vacation time in excess of three times the individual's annual rate of accrual. In the
case of death, termination or retirement an employee {cr the employee's estats), is paid for the

accurmulated, unused vacation leave.

All full-time employees eamn sick leave at a rate of fitteen (15) workdays per year. In November of
each year full-lime employees of the City have the right to convert accumulated sick leave days

earmed during the last year in excess of a total accumulation of ninety (80} days at the ratio of three

B-25



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1989

Note 10. Compensated Absen confinuec

days of accumulated sick leave for one day's pay. Sick leave not converted under this option may be
used through fime off from work. Dependent upon bargaining unit membership, ful-ime employees
with continuous service with the City ranging from five to fifteen years who terminate employment for
other than disciplinary reasons may receive payment for their accumulated sick leave according fo
various formulae with maximums ranging from 240 to 728 hours.

As of December 31, 1899, the total estimated liability for all unpaid compensated absence and
accrued sick leave benefits was $3,788,169, for all funds and account groups.

Note 11. Short-Term Debt

Notes payable at December 31, 1899, consist of the general obligation bond anticipation notes listed
below. These notes have a term of one year or less and were issued 0 finance improvements to City
owned property and to retire the Unfunded Police and Firemen’s Pension Past Service Liability (See
explanation below). The City has been retiring a poriion of the City Improvement notes as they
mature and issuing new notes for the remaining balance. The City will either convert these notes to
bonds or pay off the notes within the 20-year conversion period as required by the laws of the State of
Chio. '

Net
Balance Addition Balance
General Obligation Bond Anticipation December 31, 1998  (Reduction)  December 31, 1998
8TC NorthWest Quadrant Note, due 3/12/99 )
interest at 3.90% (Ren — 5) City Projects $ 520,000 $ (520,000) $ 0
STC NorthwWest Quadrant Note, due 6/1/00
interest at 3.70% (Ren — 8) Library Projects 1,840,000 7 (100,000} 1,740,000
Police Pension Unfunded Liability Note, due
6/1/00, interest at 3.70% -0- 1,100,090 1,100,090
Fire Pension Unfunded Liability Note, due )
6/1/00, interest at 3.70% - 1,004,910 1.004 910
Total: 360,000 $1.485,000 $3,845 000

The State of Ohio's Police and Firemen Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF) announced that
beginning November 15, 1998, it would allow municipalities to pay off it's Unfunded Past Service
Liahility balance early, at a discount in one lump sum. The amount due was §8% of the first $500,000
owed and 70% of the remaining liability in excess of $500,000 plus accrued interest at 4.25%. On
September 9, 1998, the City executed it's final pay-off of this Accrued Past Service Liability when
$2,073,849 was wired to the account of the PFDPF. The City plans to retire a portion of these notes
as they mature and either issue hew notes for the remaining balance or convert the notes to bonds.

Note 12. Long-Term Obligations

lLong-term obligations of the City at December 31, 1899, consist of the following:

Loans Shelbume Road Sanitary Sewer Replacement, Ohio Public Works
Commission 0% interest Loan, due 7/1/2015, semi-annual
installment of $20,187.50 beginning 7/1/95. $ 625812
Converted  Converted Sick Time (Gross City converted Sick Time of $2,402,801
Sick Time  less Proprietary Funds of $187,987 — See Note 10) 2,214.914

Total:  $2.840726
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Note 12. tong-Term Ohligations (continued
The following is a summary of transactions affecting long-term obligations of the City for the year ended

December 31, 1999; .
Police & Fire Sick Time

| pans __Ligbility Conversion otal
Long-Term Obligation at 1/1/98 $686,187 $2,936,087 $1,572,761 §$5,175,835
Net Change During the Year (40,375) (2,936.987) 842 153  (2.335208)

Long-Term Obligations at 12/31/09  $625.812  §$ 0 . $2214914  $2.840.726

As of December 31, 1939, the City's only future debt service requirement consisted of an Ohio Public
Works Commission non-interest bearing loan. This loan requires an annual principal payment of
$40,375 for the next fifteen years and a final payment of $20,167 which is due on June 1, 2015, totaling
$625,812. '

Legal Debt Margin - Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, at December 31, 1999, the
City had the capacity to issue approximately $68,821,842 of additional voted and unvoted general
obligation debt. Of this total general obligation debt capacity, the City's unvoted general obligation debt
capacity is $36,188,214 at December 31, 1989,

Note 13. Pension and Retirement Plans

A, Public Employess Retirement System of Ohio (PERS)

Plan Description - All employees other than policemen and firemen participate in the Public Employees
Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits fo
plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code provides the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions. The Public Employees Retirement System issues a stand-alone
financial report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to 277 East Town
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 466-2085 or (800) 222-PERS.

Funding Policy - The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. The employee contribution rate is 8.5% of their annual covered salary. The 1999
employer contribution rate for local governments was 13.55% of covered payroll. The Cily's
contributions to PERS for the years ending December 31, 1989, 1998 and 1897 were $1,664,528,
$1,514,108, and $1,474,433 respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. ’

B. Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohig (PFDPF)

Plan Description - All police officers and firefighters employed by the City contribute to the Police and
Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF), a cost-sharing muitiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan. PFDPF provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, Contribution requirements and benefit provisions are
established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code.

The PFDPF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financiat information and required
supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obfained by writing to PFDPF at 140 East
Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to confribute 10.0% of their annual covered salary, while
employers are required o contribute 18.5% and 24.0% respectively for police officers and firefighters.
The City's contributions to PFDPF for the years ending December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 were
$817,710, $711,793 and $701,774, respectively, for police officers and $862,990, $827,165 and
$846,531, respectively for firefighters equal to the required contributions for each year.
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DECEMBER 31, 1999
Note 14, Post Emplovment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 13, the Ohio Revised Code provides that the City
fund post retirement health care benefits through employer contributions io the Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) of Ohio and the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF)
of Ohio.

A, Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) - The PERS of Ohio provides post-retirement health
care coverage to age and service retirees with ten (10) or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit.
Health care coverage for disability and primary survivor recipients is available. The Ohio Revised Code
provides the statutory authority requiting the City to fund post-retirement health care through the Cliy's
contribution to PERS. A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of
post-retirement health care.

The 1998 employer contribution rate was 13.55% of covered payroll; 4.2% was the portion that was used
to fund health care for 1995.

Other postemployment benefits are financed through employer contributions and investment eamings
thereon. The contributions allocated to retiree health and Medicare, along with investment income on
allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health care provisions are expected to be sufficient 1o
sustain the program indefinitely.

During 1997, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for determining employer
contributions applied to cther postemployment benefits. Under the new methoed, effective January 1,
1998, employer contributions equal to 4.2% of member covered payroll, are used o fund health care
expenses. Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and normal rates were determined for retiree
health care coverage. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net asseis available for
future other postemployment benefits were $9,870 million. Expenditures for other postemployment
benefits during 1999 were $523,599,349 and the number of recipients e!sg:ble for benefits at
December 31, 1999 was 118,062. -

B._Police and Eireman's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF) - The PFDPF of Ohio operates under
the authority of the Chio Revised Code and provides post-retirement health care coverage to any person
who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of
such person. An eligible dependent child is any child under the age of eighteen whether or not the child
is attending school or under the age of twenty-two, if attending school full-time or on a two-thirds basis.
As of December 31, 1898, 11,424 police officers and 3,186 ﬁreﬁghters were eiug;b!e to receive health
care benefits.

The Chio Revised Code provides that health care costs paid from funds of the PFDPF of Ohio shall
be included in the employer's contribution rate. For 1998, the total employer contribution rate was
19.5% and 24.0% of covered payroll for police officers and firefighters respectively. For 1999, the
City's actual contributions to the PFDPF used to pay postemployment benefits were $283,558 and
$251,993 for police officers and firefighters respectively.

Health care funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you go basis. A percentage of covered payroll as
defined by the beoard, is used fo pay refiree health care expenses. The Board defined allocation was
6.5% and 7.0% of covered payroll in 1898 and 1999 respectively. The allocation Is 7.25% in 2000. In
addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to contribute a portion of the cost of
their health care coverage through a deduction from their monthly benefit payment. The PFDPF's
total heaith care expenses for the year ended December 31, 1898 were $78.6 mllllon which is net of
member contribuiions of $5,331,515.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1989

Note 15, Deficit Fund Balances

On December 31, 1999, the Police and Fire Pension Special Revenue Funds along with the Shaker
Towne Centre Northwest Quadrant Capital Project fund had deficit fund balances of $1,004,484,
$893,683 and $1,739,012 arising solely from the issuance of short-term bond anticipation notes in the
amount of $1,100,090, $1,004,910 and $1,740,000 respectively. Since a formal agreement to refinance
this note had not been completed prior to the issuance of these financial statements, the note is
classified as a fund liability. The deficit fund balance will be eliminated when bonds are issued to replace
the note financing and the accounting for the debt Is transferred from the fund to the General Long-Term
Debt Account Group.

Note 16. Operating Transfers

The City's Combined Statemnent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Equity for all
govemnmental fund types and expendable trust funds and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Retained Eamings for all proprietary fund types, displays the total of operating transfers in
and out for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999. A reconciliation of these operating transfers s
detailed below:

Operating Operating
Description Transfers In - Transfers Qut
General Fund $18.880 §2.713026 ~
Special Revenue Funds:
Street Maintenance and Repair Fund 250,000 -0-
Food Service Fund -0- 13,425
Sewer Maintenance Fund 151,257 40,375
Police Pension Fund 712,981 -0-
Fire Pension Fund 732,600 T -D-
Exterior Home Maintenance Fund 55,599 55,455
Community Preservation Partnership Fund 250,000 -0-
Law Enforcement Grant Fund 25,634 5,281
Community Visioning Fund 14,335 -0- -
Street Lighting Assessment Fund 12.000 -0--
Total Special Revenue Funds _2.204.406 _ 114,538
Debt Service Fund 40,375 -0-
Capital Projects Funds:
General Capital Project Fund 67,202 978,035
Sewer Capital Improvernents Fund -0- 151,257
Shaker Towne Cenire NW Quadrant Fund 533,101 17.282
Total Capital Projects Funds 393 1,14 4
Recreation Enterprise Fund 1,115,436 -0-
Trust & Agency Funds
Law Enforcement Expendable Trust Fund -Q- 5344
Total Trust & Agency Funds -Q- 5.344
Totals All Fund Types $3979400  §3.979.490
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Note 17. Direct Financing Leages

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

As of December 31, 1999, the Cily has leased five pieces of real property. All of the leases are
accounted for as direct financing leases. These assefs have been removed from the General Fixed
Assets Account Group as if disposed of. The value of the City's investment in direct financing leases is
reflected as a lease receivable and deferred revenue in the General Fund ($1,020,328) and the Shaker
Towne Cenire Northwest Quadrant Capita! Improvements Fund ($1,978,658) and the General Capital
Improvement Fund ($317,128).

A

Former Malvemn School Building - This lease was originally entered into during 1992 and was most
recently renewed in 1998. Under the terms of the lease, the lessee has the right to renew the lease,
with a scheduled rent increase, for one additional period of two years.

Former Senior Adult Building - This lease was entered into in 1995 and will expire in 2000. Under
the terms of the lease, the lessee has the right to renew the lease, with a scheduled rent increase to
be determined by Council, for one period of five years.

Former Moreland School Building - This property was leased to the Shaker Heights Public Library
during 1991 to serve as the library districts’ new main library facility. The initial lease term expires in
2013 with four ten-year renewal options. Under the terms of the lease, the Library Board of Directors
completed approximately $4.3 million in renovations to the facility. The lease required the City to
finance $2.6 million of the project. The annual basic lease payment is $100 plus the annual debt
service on the financing amortlzed over the life of the lease.

Warrensville Center Road Center Strip/Parking Lots - This lease was entered into with OfficeMax,
Inc. during 1996 and is scheduled fo expire in 2016, Under the terms of the lease, the City
constructed and made necessary improvements to existing parking lots on City owned property
along Warrensville Center Road. These parking lots were subsequently leased to OfficeMax, Inc. for
their exclusive use. The initial ferm of the lease is for twenty years with an additional five-year
option, which may be exercised by the lessee.

3470 Warrensville Center Road - This lease was entered into 1999 and will expire in 2009. Under
the terms of the lease, upon expiration, the lessee has the right to renew the lease with scheduled
rent increases for two five year periods. . .

The foliowing lists the components of the net investment in direct financing leases as of December 31,

1999:
Total minimum lease payments to be received $2,458,368
Less: Amounts representing executory costs {(13.797M
Minimum lease payments receivable 2,444 §71
Less: Allowance for uncollectables -0- _
Net minimum lease payments receivable $2,444,571
Estimated residual value of leased property {unguaranteed) 871,543
Less: Unearned income -0-
Net investment in direct financing leases - $3.316,114
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 18. Risk Management

The City Is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage {o, and desiruction of assets,
efrors and omissions, injuries to employees, and nafural disasters, During 1999, the City contracted with
the following insurance companies:

States Self-insurers Risk Refention Group, Inc. - provided pubhc entity broad form liability ihsurance.
This insurance included law enforcement, public officials, and emergency medical liability insurance, and
is limited to $10,000,000 with a seif-retention of $250,000. This insurance also included excess
insurance Tor automobile liability with a deductible of $1,000,000.

Personal Service Insurance Company - prowded automobﬂe liability insurance. Automobile liability was
limited to $1,000,000 per accident. o

Indiana Insurance Company - provided commercial insurance for property and inland marine. Property
insurance, with a deductible of $1,000, was limited lo $30,504,189 for properly and contenis and
$1,489,176 for contractor's equipment. Boiler insurance had a property damage fimit of $2,000,000 with
a deductible of $1,000. This coverage also included coverage of valuable papers and records, which
was limited to $75,000 with a deductible of $250.

CNA — provided commercial crime and public employee dishonesty insurance with an aggregate limit of
$600,000 and a deductible of $250. In addition, CNA provided commercial inland marine coverage for
the City’s vehicle fieet. This insurance coverage has a maximum §imit of $3,000,000 and deductible of
$5,000.

Western World - provided emergency medical services insurance with an aggrégate limit of $500,000, an
occurrence Iimit of $250,000, and a deductible of $250.

The City accounts for its general liability and property insurance premiums in the Self-insurance Fund
{an internal Service Fund). Al other premiums are accounted for in the General Fund. The claims
liability of $108,770 reported in the Self-lnsurance Fund at December 31, 1888, is based on the
requirements of Govermnmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a
liability for claims be reported if information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at
the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. Setfled claims
have not exceeded commetcial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City makes available a choice of health care plans for full-ime pernanent employees and their
qualified dependents. Our current providers are an HMO and commercial hospitalization insurance
carrier. Hospitalization premiums are paid on a monthly basis through the General Fund. Benefits of
these plans inciude hospitalization and dental insurance. Other insurance carriers provide accidental
death and dismernberment, disability and life insurance benefits.

The State of Ohio is one of six states having monopolistic state funds, which have the exclusive authority
to provide employees with worker's compensation insurance. Historically, under the Ohio Worker's
Compensation System for public emplayer taxing districts, there have been two types of rating plans:
Base Rating and Experience Rating.

Chio law was subsequently amended to include an additional plan called Retrospective Rating, which

was offered to Ohio Empioyers who meet the efigiility requirements and standards. Under the terms of
the Refrospective Rating Plan, an employer is required to make three forms of payment.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Note 18. Risk Management (continued)

e  First a minimum premium payment, which is a fraction of the premium it would have been under the
Experience Rating Plan.

s Second, the employer is responsible for ali selection year claims paid by the Bureau within the next
ten years.

e Third, at the end of the ten-year period, the Bureau will compute a final premium liability for all
remaining, unresolved claims.

The City applied for and has been accepted into the Retrospective Rating Pian for afl years since 1994,
The City's Self-Insurance Fund (an intemal Service Fund} is used to account for and pay Workers'
Compensation claims from the accumulated assets of the fund. The Cily's Refrospective Rating Plan
provides for & $250,000 catastrophic limit per claim, and an unlimited claim limit.

At December 31, 1999 $1,586,393 had been accrued for Workers' Compensation claims, This
represents estimates to be paid for reported claims and incurred but not yet reported claims based on the
current information available.

A recongiliation of changes in the balances of claims liabilities duting the fiscal years 1898 and 1998
were as follows:

Property and Casualty Waorkers’ Compensation
1989 1998 1999 1998
Beginning of the Year Liability $ 161,725 $ 160,993 $1,434,508 $1,143,661

Currant Year Claims and

Changes in Estimates (12,280} 3,842 613,531 473,541
Ciaim Payments (40.675) {3,210} (461.646)  { 182,694) 7
Balance at End of Year $ 108,770 ) §161 125 §1 !5865393 _ §f_] 434508

Note 19, Contributed Capital

During 1999, changes in contributed capital were as follows:

Recreation Central Garage
Sources _ Enterprise Fund - Internal < Service Fund Total
Coniributed Capital Beginning Balance $894,449 $98,389 $992,838
Additions 80,600 -0- 90,600
Deletions {75.290) {4,904} {84 184)
Contributed Capital Ending Bailance $205,759 $93.485 ' §l999!7g44
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1599

MNote 20. Claims and Judgements

Several claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. It is the opinion of management that such
claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financiai condition of the City.

The City has received several federal and state grants for specific purposes which are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to
grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. Howsver, it is the opinion
of management that any such disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

Note 21. Funds With An Excess of Expendifures Over Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 1999, expenditures exceeded appropriations by $22,262 in the
Central Services Internal Service Fund

Note 22. Subsequent Event

On April 24, 2000, City Council passed Ordinance Numbers 00-62, 00-63, and 00-64 authorizing the
issuance and sale of a Various Purpose improvement Note, Series 2000 in the amount of $3,935,000.
This note was issued in anticipation of the issuance of bonds for the purpose of (i) renovating and
improving the former Moreland school building for library and other municipal purposes ($1,585,000),
(i) refunding the obligation of the City of Shaker Heights to the Ohio Police and Firemen's Disability
and Pensfon Fund for the employer's accrues liability ($1,950,000) and (iii) acquiring motorized and
mechanized vehicles and equipment for the Safety Department, including a fire truck together with alj
necessary appurtenances and equipment thereto ($400,000). Of the note proceeds, $1,585,000 and
$1,850,600, respectively, was used fo partially refinance the $1,740,000 Shaker Towne Centre
Northwest Quadrant (Library Projects) Improvement Note; and $2,106,000 Police ($1,100,090) and
Fire ($1,004,910) Unfunded Liabllity notes that were outstanding at 12/31/99 and matured on 6/1/00.
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COURT COMMUNITY
SERVICE FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the collection and use of an additional court cost
imposed by the Shaker Heights Municipal Court, under the authority of
Ohio Revised Code Section 1901-26, oneach DUI and substance related
offenses as well as first-offender cximinal cases to fund court community
service programming.
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GENERAL FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

General Fund is used to account for all financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $6,510,805 $6,075,534
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Taxes 11,742,555 12,088,273
Accounts 516,403 133,151
Deferred Special Assessments 3,293 2,230
Accrued Interest 297,481 119,767
Lease 1,020,328 720,882
Due From Other Funds 375,754 189,523
Due From Other Governments 296,886 90,363
inventory of Supplies 169,205 132,317
Prepaid Items 5,351 61,983
TOTAL ASSETS $20,938,061 $19,614,023
LIABILITIES AND F BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $457,910 $422,888
Accrued Wages And Benefits 562,067 497,286
Compensated Absences 1,078,602 982,528
Due To Other Funds 553,095 404,315
Deferred Revenue 10,823,584 10,584,261
Tota! Liabilities 13,475,198 12,891,278
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 479,900 397,566
Reserved For Prepaid ltems 5,351 61,983
Reserved For Inventory of Supplies 169,205 132,317
Unreserved 6,808,407 6,130,879
Total Fund Balance 7,462,863 6,722,745
TOTAL. LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALLANCE $20,938,061 $19,614.023
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMB

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
Municipal Income Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Public Health and Welfare
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Cutlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Qut
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures And Other Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Increase (Decrease) In Reserve For Inventory

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1, 1998
1999 1998
$5,421,183 $5,311,132
17,486,702 17,217,267
2,097,134 2,049,778
971,636 938,128
1,909,703 1,872,376
372,383 310,003
385,994 642,646
623,585 558,573
1,045,119 949,185
30,313,439 29,849,088
12,032,038 11,287,439
378,668 356,838
604,396 578,608
3,533,282 3,105,976
2,558,192 2,429,168
721,618 435,307
6,661,007 6,328,047
426,862 238,963
26,916,063 24,760,346
3,397,376 5,088,742
18,880 13,800
(2,713,026) (4,495,147)
(2,694,146) {4,481,347)
703,230 607,395
6,722,745 6,134,175
36,888 (18,825)
$7,462,863 $6,722,745




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANGCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

ARA TALS 15C, ENDE: Bl 1,1998 -
1989 1998
Varjiance Variance
Favorable Favecrable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorablie)
venue [o] ipancin re
Bgvenue;: _
Property Taxes $5,339,335 $5,421,133 $81,848 $5,367,297 $6,311,132 ($56,165)
BMunicipal! Income Taxes 17,400,000 17,742,052 342052 16,540,000 16,775,787 235,787
Other Local Taxes 0,000 50,437 437 40,000 50,258 10,258
State Levied Shared Taxes 2,059,650 2,097,361 37,711 1,944,650 2,028,490 83,840
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts 1,011,100 826,820 (84,27C) 958,300 843,011 (15,289)
Charges for Services 1,706,500 1,914,477 207 577 1,565,600 1,779,750 213,150
Fees, Licenses and Parmits 274,850 372,383 97,633 264,850 310,003 45,1563
Interest Eamings 975,000 749,475 (225,521) 925,000 1,115,328 190,326
Fines and Forfeitures 625,000 625,585 585 600,000 619,457 19,457
Other Revenues 208,520 473,241 163,721 396,303 553,369 157,066
Oth frrancing Sou H N
Operating Transfers In 24,345 23,801 (444) 15,600 14,182 {1.418)
Advances [n 146,400 78,827 {67 573) 107,000 32,064 (74,936}
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Scurces $29,922,100 $30,475,756 $553,656 $28,725,600 $29,532,839 $807,239
an i ses
Current: )
Security of Persons and Property $12,221,300 $11,900,862 $320,438 $11,667,600 $11,530,696 $136,804
Public Health and Weifare 387,300 378,321 16,978 372,300 350,165 12,135
Leisure Time Activities 595,500 €08,508 {13,008) 590,400 £BE 978 3,422
Community Envirenment 3,597,000 3.482.074 114,926 3,264,800 3,211,682 53118
Basic Utility Services 2,437,700 2,594, 566 {156,866) 2,428,700 2,504,084 {65,384)
Transportation 643,300 790,414 {147 114) 641,600 427 450 214,150
General Government 6,542,700 6,528,500 14,200 6,557,900 6,300,783 257,117
Capital Cutlay 459,500 421,556 ar.944 335,000 274,150 60,850
Other Financing Uses: _ .
Operating Transfers Qut 28753800 2,688,026 ' 187,874 4,685,100 4,666,147 18,953
Advances Qut 271,500 271,426 74 10,600 10,600 o
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $30,031,700 $29,662,253 $369 447 $30,563,300 $29,872,135 $691,165
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over{Under} Expenditures and Other Uses ($109,680} $8123,603 $923,103 (%$1,837,700} ($338,296} $1,498,404
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 6,525,820 6,525,820 1) 6,554,312 6,554,312 o
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 {62,957) {82,857} o (75,077} (75,007} o
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (773,042) (624,752} 148,290 {588,922) {470,118) 118,804
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $5,560,221 $6,631,614 $1,071,393 $4,052,613 $5,669,821 $1,617,208
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years BY06T6 855,259
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 v ,

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
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State Highway Maintenance

Food Service

Sewer Maintenance

Police Pension

Cify O/ SMQP‘MI:?AIJ , O/uo
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND GROUP

Combining Financial Statements

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable txusts or for major capital pro;ects} that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified purposes.

Street Maintenance and Repair One of two funds legally required by the Ohio Revised

Code (the other being the State Highway Maintenance
Fund) to account for revenue from the state gasoline
tax and motor vehicle registration fees. The Revised
Code requires that 92.5% of these revenues be used for
the maintenance and repair of streets within the City.

One of two funds legally required by the Ohio Revised
Code (the other being the Street Maintenance and
Repair Fund) to account for revenue from the state
gasoline tax and motor vehicde registration fees. The
Revised Code requires that 7.5% of these revenues be
used exclusively for the maintenance and repair of state
highways within the City's General Fund.

To account for fees collected by the City Health Department
for food service operation and vending machine licenses.
As required by state law, a portion of each license fee is
remitted to the State and the balance is transferred to the
City's General Fund.

To account for funds derived from a surcharge levied
upon all users of the sewer system within the City. This
surcharge pays for sewer system maintenance, replacement
and repair. The surcharge is levied in addition to the
treatment and disposal rate set by the Northeast Ohio
Regional Sewer District.

To account for the payment of current and accrued
police pension liability to the Police and Firemen's
Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio. The Ohio Revised
Code requires that the City levy .3 mills of property tax
annually for the partial payment of this liability. The
remaining liability is financed by an operating transfer
primarily from the City's General Fund.

|
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Combining Financial Statements

Fire Pension

Indigent Driver/
Alcohol Treatment

Court Computer
Legal Research

Clerk's Computerization

Exterior Home Maintenance

Fair Housing Grant

Community Preservation
Partnership Program

To account for the payment of cuxrent and accrued fire
pension liability to the Police and Firemen's Disability
and Pension Fund of Ohio. The Ohio Revised Code
requires that the City levy .3 mills of property tax
annually for the partial payment of this liability. The
remaining liability is financed by an operating transfer
primarily from the City's General Fund.

To account for reinstatement fee monies collected by
the State Bureau of Motor Vehicles in connection with
driving under the influence offenses. Section 4511.191(1)
provides that payments are to be made only upon order
of the Municipal Court Judge for alcohol and other drug
treatment costs for indigent drivers.

To account for revenues from court costs assessed under
the authority of Ohio Revised Code Section 1901.261(A)
by the Municipal Court on the filing of each cause of
action or appeal for the purposes of computerizing the
court and to make available computerized legal research
services.

To account for revenues from court costs assessed under
the authority of Ohio Revised Code Section 1901.261(B)
by the Municipal Court on the filing of each cause of
action or appeal, certificate of judgement or modification
of judgement for the purpose of procuring and
maintaining computer systems for the office of the clerk
of the Municipal Court.

To account for monies rececived from the Cuyahoga
County Community Development Block Grant Program
to be used to provide funding for improvements to
ovwner-occupied homes within the City.

To account for monies received from the Department of
Housing and Urban Development. The funds are to be
used to monitor fair housing practices within the City.

To account for the Gund and Cleveland Foundation
Grant monies to be used for home improvement
education and mortgage assistance.
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Law Enforcement Grant

Court Community
Service Fund

Court Alternate Dispute
Resolution Fund

Community Visioning

Ohio Court Security
Project Fund

High Intensity Drug
Trafficking Area (HIDTA)
Grant Fund

Cify o/ SAaéerkA/eig/Lfd, OAw

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Combining Financial Statements

To account for grants received by the Shaker Heights
Police Department whose primary purpose is to reduce
the amounts and effects of external harm to individuals
and property. The following grants are accounted for
in this fund:
$ 75,000 COPS Universal Hiring Grant
30,469 COPS Domestic Abuse Prevention Grant
28,611 1997 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
20,314 1998 Juvenile Accountability Block Grant
24,862 1998 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant

To account for the collection and use of an additional
court cost imposed by the Shaker Heights Municipal
Court, under the authority of Ohio Revised Code Section
1901-26, on each DUI and substance related offenses as
well as frst-offender criminal cases to fond court
comumunity service programming.

To Account for the collection and use of an additional
court cost imposed by the Shaker Heights Municipal
Court, under the authority of Ohio Revised Code Section
1901-26, on each civil and small claims case to fund
alternate dispute resolution programming and materials.

To account for the Gund and Cleveland Foundation
Grant monies to be used to partially fund the City's
Community Visioning process.

To account for a grant received from the State of Ohio
to be used to upgrade court security by replacing door
entry locks with a computerized keyless entry system.

The City is the grantee and acts as the fiscal agent for the
Federally Funded Ohioc HIDTA. The HIDTA Program
functions as a coordination umbrella by forging
partnerships among local, state and federal law
enforcement agencies in designated areas to combine
resources and efforts in order to reduce drug trafficking
and distribution.

II
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Combining Financial Statements

Street Lighting Assessment

Tree Maintenance Assessment

To account for funds received from the levy of special
assessments against property with frontage on public
streets for the legally restricted purpose of paying the
cost of street lighting within the City.

To account for funds received from the levy of special
assessmentis against property with frontage on public
streets for the legally restricted purpose of paying the
cost of tree care on the City's public right-of-way.
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STREET MAINTENANCE
AND REPAIR

Comparative Financial Statement

One of two funds legally required by the Ohio Revised Code (the other
being the State Highway Maintenance Fund) to account for revenue from
the state gasoline tax and motor vehicle registration fees. The Revised
Code requires that 92.5% of these revenues be used for the maintenance
and repair of streets within the city.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
STREET MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SPECIAL. REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMEER 31, 1998 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANGE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payablie

Total Liahilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$395,405 $515,136
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 a
40,369 41,336
1 0
$435,774 $558,472
$32,773 $33,061
16,992 12,194
32,637 30,815
11,044 9,113
0 0
g [\
93.446 85,183
29,562 167,035
312,766 304,254
342,328 471,289
$435,774 $556,472
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
STREET MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers -In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over {(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR

B-57

1999 1998
$0 $0
771,339 740,345
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

3,148 2,743
774,487 743,088
0 0

0 0

0 0
1,129,394 755,699
0 0

24,054 19,288

0 )

0 0
1,153,448 774,987
(378,961) (31,899)
250,000 125,000
0 0
250,000 125,000
(128,961) 93,101
471,289 378,188
$342,328 $471,289




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
STREET MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues and Qther Financing Sources
Revenues;
State Levied Shared Taxes $765,000 $§772,204 $7,304 $751,500 $755,889 $8,389
Other Revenues 0 3,149 3,149 2. 743 2,743
Qperating Transfers In 250,000 250,000 0 125,000 125,000 2]
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $1,015,000 $1,025452 $10,453 $876,500 $887,632 $11,182
E ditur: r Fi ing Us
Current: .
Transportation $1,275,600 $1,147,216 $128.284 $980,100 $897,894 $82,206
Capital Outlay 12,000 14,777 223 13,500 14,708 (1208}
Total Expenditures and Cther
Financing Uses $1,267,500 $1,168,993 $128,507 $993,600 $912,602 $80,998
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under} Expenditures and Cther Uses ($272,500) {$133,540} $138,960 {$117,100} {$24,870) $92,130
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 516,136 §15,136 0 387,308 387,308 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 {4,937 (4,937) 0 (24,060) (24,060} ]
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {204,039) (54,450) 149,589 (33,531) {32,118) 1,413
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $33,660 $322,209 $288,549 $212,617 $306,160 $93,543
Reserved for Encumbrances - —— TE———
All Budget Years 73,196 208,976
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 W T T 3515136
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State Highway Maintenance

Comparative Financial Statements

One of two funds legally required by the Ohio Revised Code (the other
being the Street Maintenance and Repair Fund) to account for revenue
from the state gasoline tax and motor vehicle registration fees. The
Revised Code requires that 7.5% of these revenues be used exclusively for
the maintenance and repair of state highways within the City's General
Fund.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

STATE HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI ANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Baiance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$88,410 $109,870
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
2,110 2,157
0 0
$90,520 $112,027
$0 $20,543
397 155
0 0
491 434
0 0
0 0
838 21,132
8,191 12,576
81,441 78,319
89,632 90,895
$90,520 $112,027
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

STATE HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Confracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers ~ In
Operating Transfers - Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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BER 31, 1998

1999 1998
$0 $0
48,402 45,894
0 0
0 0
0 0
3,388 5,244
0 0
0 0
Q 0
51,790 51,138
0 0
0 0
0 0
53,053 48,072
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
53,053 48,072
(1,263) 3,066
0 c
0 0
0 0
{1,263) 3,066
90,895 87,829
$89,632 $90,895




Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Revenues:
State Levied Shared Taxes
interest Earnings
Total Revenues and QOther
Financing Sources

Expendit Finanging Uses
Current:
Transpottation
‘Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overf{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Yeat's Resetve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO
STATE HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED D!

ECEMBER 31, 1999

1999 1998
Vatiance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)}
$47,000 $48448 $548 $47,000 $47 498 $498
6,000 3,389 {1,611) 5,000 5,244 244
$52,900 $51,837 ($1,063) $52,000 $52,742 $742
$81,900 $58,210 $23,680 $77,200 $50,516 $15,684
481,900 $58,210 $23,650 $77,200 $60,516 $16,684
($29,000) {46,373) $22,627 ($25,200) ($7,774) $17,426
108,870 109,870 [1] 85,067 85,057 [
0 ] o (225) 225) 0
(33,274) {23,343) 9,931 {462) {462) o
$47,596 $80,15¢ $32,558 $59,170 $76,596 $17,426
T
8,256 33,274
$63,410 $105,570
e - _ ]
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City o/ S/zaéer\kleigéfz», O/u,o

Food Service

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for fees collected by the City Health Department for food
service operations and vending machine licenses. As required by state
law, a portion of each license fee is remitted to the State and the balance
is transferred to the City's General Fund.

H
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FOOD SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $1,398 $1,398
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 0 1]
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 o
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 0 1]
Prepaid Items 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $1,398 $1,398
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 0 1]
Compensated Absences ¢} 0
Due To Other Funds 0 1]
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 0 1]
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0 1]
Unreserved 1,398 1,398
Total Fund Balance 1,398 1,398
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $1,398 $1,398
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FOQOD SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes

Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts

Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Eamnings

Special Assessments

Fines and Forfeitures

All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues QOver

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers - in
Operating Transfers - Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR

1989 1998

$0 %0

0 0

0 0

0 0
13,425 13,479
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
13,425 13,479
0 0

0 a

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
13,425 13,479
0 0
(13,425) (13,800)

(13,425) {13,800)

0 (321)

1,398 1,719
$1,398 $1,398




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO
FQOD SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

Bevenues and Other Financing Sources
Reyenues:
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Current:
Puyblic Health and Welfare
Operating Transfers Qut
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/(Under) Expenditures and Gther Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31

Cutrrent Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
Al Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance ~ December 31

F

OR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1959 1888
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$14.600 $13,425 ($4,175) $14,200 $13,479 ($721)
$14.600 $13,425 ($1,175) $14,200 $13479 {$721)
$300 $0 $300 $400 $0 - $400
13,800 13425 375 13,800 13,800 0
$14,600 $13425 $1,175 $14,200 $13,800 $400
$0 $0 $0 $0 {$321) (%321}
1,398 1,398 0 1,719 1,718 0
'] 0 0 0 4] 1}
4] 0 0 0 0 0
$1,398 $1,398 $0 $1.,719 $1,398 ($321)
/]
— 3 S i
L ] E 3
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Sewer Maintenance

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for funds derived from a surcharge levied upon all users of the
sewer system within the City. This surcharge pays for sewer system
maintenance, replacement and repair. The surcharge us levied in addition

to the treatment and disposal rate set by the Northeast Ohio Regional
Sewer District.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SEWER MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Recejvables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Pue From Other Funds
Due From Other Govermments
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$2,032,805 $1,054,875
0 0
473,236 429,104
16,004 18,005
0 0
o 0
0 472
$2,522,045 $1,502,456
$33,784 $49,754
9,122 6,172
41,267 24,888
9,387 7,486
386,101 371,829
0 0
479,661 460,129
30,344 106,331
2,012,040 935,996
2,042,384 1,042,327
$2,522,045 $1,502,456
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SEWER MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes

Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts

Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings

Special Assessments

Fines and Forfeitures

Al Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR

1999 1998
$0 $0

0 0

) 0
1,431,679 1,285,502
0 0

76,086 83,530
2,001 0

0 0

0 0
1,509,766 1,369,032
0 0

0 0
594,898 434,588
0 0

2,901 137,028
22,792 37,893

0 0

0 0

620,591 609,509
889,175 759,523
151,257 0
{40,375) {187,375)
110,882 {187,375)
1,000,057 572,148
1,042,327 470,179
$2,042,384 $1,042,327




SNt er Financing So
Revenues:
Charges for Services

Interest Eamnings
i i curces:
Operating Transfers In
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

nd Financing Uses

Gurrent:

Basic Utility Services

General Government

Capital Outlay

Other Financing tiges:

Operating Transfers Qut
Total Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Gash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SEWER MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {NON GAAP BUDGET]
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

T CEMB 1, 1988
1989 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorabie} Budget Actuai {Unfavorabie}

$1,282,042 $1,405,323 $123,731 $1,280,000 $1,331,542 $51,542

85,000 T6,085 {8,915) 65,000 83,530 18,530

" 151,258 161,367 Ty o

$1,518,300 $1,633,165 $114,865 $1,345,000 $1,415,072 $70,072

$703,700 $395,068 $308,632 $622,200 '$397.964° $224,236
126,100 140,906 {12,806) 128,100 138,948 (10,848)
26,500 22,7932 3,707 0 22,714 (22,714}
40,400 40,375 26 187,400 187,378 25
$858,700 $588,142 $299,558 $937,700 $747.001 $180,659

$619,600 $1,034,023 $414,423 $407,300 $668,071 $260,771
1,054,875 1,054,875 4] 408,501 405,501 0
{5,815) {5,315) 0 (30,478} (30,478} 0
{128,202) {52.354) 35,848 {122,402) {122,236) 166
$1,540,458 $1,990,729 $450,271 $659,921 $320,868 $260,937

L ] R
42,076 134,017
al '’ fo
ST
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City o/ SAaLerAig/zfd, OAio

Police Pension

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the payment of cuxrent and accrued police pension Liability
to the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio. The
Ohio Revised Code requires that the City levy .3 mills of property tax
annually for the partial payment of this liability. The remaining liabilicy

is financed by an operating transfer primarily from the City's General
Fund.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
POLICE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity in City Treasury Cash $397,632 $283,291
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Taxes 180,610 182,035
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 1] 0
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 0 0
Prepaid Items 0 2,990
TOQTAL ASSETS $578,242 $468,316
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 246,679 188,741
Compensated Absences 58,347 50,608
Due To Other Funds ¢ 0
Deferred Revenue 180,610 182,035
Notes Payable 1,100,096 0
Total Liabilities 1,582,726 421,384
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0 26,984
Unreserved {1,004,484) 19,948
Total Fund Balance {1,004,484) 46,932
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $578,242 $468,315
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
POLICE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers -In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over {Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR

B-73

1999 1998
$174,877 $171,326
0 0

23,131 23,291

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

8,829 34,892
206,837 229,509
845,837 695,953

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
1,071,896 17,398
53,501 65,776
1,971,234 779,127
(1,764,397) (549,618)
712,981 588,267

0 0

712,981 588,267
{1,051,416) 38,649
46,932 8,283
($1,004,484) $46,932




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
POLICE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUJAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1999 1998
Variance Varfance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budpet Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues: — -
Property Taxes $172,262 $174,877 $2,515 $173,133 $171,326 {$1,807)
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts 23,200 23131 (68} 23,200 23,291 b4}
Other Revenues 0 8,828 8,828 ¢ 34892 34,892
Gther Financing Sources;
Operating Transfers in 726,900 712,981 {13,918) 678,500 640,267 {38,233)
Sale of Notes 1,100,000 1,100,090 20 ']
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $2,022,362 $2,019,907 {$2,455) $874,833 $869,776 {$5,057)
Cyment:
Security of Persons and Property $838,900 $790,725 $48.175 $786.100 $741,325 $44,7T5
General Government 16,000 15,207 793 0
Other Financing Uges: —
Debt Service 1,167,200 1,125,397 41,803 83,200 83,174 26
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $2,022,100 $1,931329 $50,771 $869,300 $824 499 $44 801
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $262 $88,578 $88,316 $5,533 $45,277 $39,744
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 283,291 283,291 1] 205,028 205,028 ]
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 0 0 0 0 4] 0
Gurrent Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (193,261) {193,261} 0 (160,275) {160,275) 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved 490,292 $178,608 $88,316 $50,286 $80,030 $39,744
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 219,024 o 193,261
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $397,632 515151
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Fire Pension

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the payment of current and accrued fire pension liability
to the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio. The
Ohio Revised Code requires that the City levy .3 mills of property tax
annually for the partial payment of this liability. The remaining liability
is financed by an operating transfer primarily from the City's General
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FIRE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31.1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 N 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $393,723 $315,013
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 180,610 182,035
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments G 0
Prepaid items 0 3,661
TOTAL ASSETS ] $574,333 $500,709
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 242,124 193,268
Compensated Absences 40,372 34,200
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Deferred Revenue 180,610 182,035
Notes Payable 1,004,910 0
Total Liabilities 1,468,016 409,503
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 1] 31,147
Unreserved {893,683) 50,059
Total Fund Balance {893,683) 91,206
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $574,333 $500,709
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FIRE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $174,877 $171,326
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 23,131 23,291
Charges For Services 1] 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
interest Earnings Q 1]
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue 29 0
TOTAL REVENUES 198,037 194.617
EXPENDITURES:
Current: ‘
Security of Persons and Property 887,482 795,478
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation 4] ]
Generai Government Q 0
Capital Outlay 0 1]
Debt Service:
Principal 979,150 15,900
Interest and Fiscal Charges 48,894 60,111
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,915,526 871,489
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures (1,717,489} (676,872)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 732,600 740,000
Operating Transfers - Qut 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 732,600 740,000
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses {984,889) 63,128
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 91,206 28,078
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR ($893,683) $91,206
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YITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
1999 1498
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
an i ipty Sources ~
Beyenues:
Property Taxes $172,262 $174877 $2,615 $173,133 $171,326 {$1,807)
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts 23,200 23131 (69} 23,200 23,291 91
Other Revenues 0 28 28 [} 0 o
er Fi in .
Operating Transfers In 732,600 732,600 1] 758,800 740,000 {18,300)
Sale of Notes 1,005,000 1,004,910 (80) 0 0 []
Total Revenues and Gther
Financing Sources $1,933,062 $1,935,546 $2,484 $955,133 $934.617 ($20,516)
endi Other Financin:
Quﬁﬂu‘ o
Security of Persons and Property $851,700 $831,844 $19,856 $873,500 $868,612 $15,288
General Government 14,000 13,891 108 0
ther Fi in o i
Debt Service 1,057,100 1,028,044 38,056 75,160 75,011 89
Total Expenditures and Other o
Financing Uses $1,632,800 $1,873,779 $59,021 $9560,000 $834,523 $15AT?
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $262 $61,767 $61,505 $5,133 $84 ($5.039)
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 315,013 315,013 1] 274,548 274,648 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbtances
Outstanding At December 31 Q 1] 0 [} 0 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (224,415} {224,415) 0 (184,144) (184,144} 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved 450,860 $152,365 461,505 $95,637 $90,598 ($5,039)
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 241,358 224,415
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 ; i

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
FIRE PENSION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENCED DECEMBER 31, 1999
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INDIGENT DRIVER
ALCOHOL TREATMENT

Comparative Financial Statement

To account for reinstatement fee monies collected by the State Bureau of
Motorx Vehicles in connection with driving under the influence offenses.
Section 4511.191(L) of the Ohio Revised Code provides that payments are
to be made only upon order of the Municipal CourtJudge for alcohol and
other drug treatment costs for indigent drivers.

B-79



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
INDIGENT DRIVER ALCOHOL TREATMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

EM 31, 1993 AND 1998

ASSETS

1999

1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receijvables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

$8,456

COoONMNODOoOQ

$9,526

(= B I B - N =]

TOTAL ASSETS

$8,561

$9,596

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAL ANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

OO0 0

$1,063

(=~ =~ = =)

Total Liabilities

(-]

1,063

Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

8,561

8,533

Total Fund Balance

8,561

8,633

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

$8,561

$9,586
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
INDIGENT DRIVER ALCOHOL TREATMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998
$0 $0

0 0
7,738 5,955
0 0

0 0

260 470

0 0

0 35

0 0
7,998 6,460
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
7,970 6,580
0 o

0 0

0 0
7,970 6,580
28 (120)

0 0

0 0

0 0
28 {120)
8,533 8,653
$8,561 $8,533




Reyenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts
Interest Earnings
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

Expenditure. er Financit
Gumrent:
General Government
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overl{Under) Expendituras and Other Uses

GCash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumhbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
INDIGENT DRIVER ALCOHOL TREATMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

OR THE FISCAL YEAR END

ED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
SS,OOO $7,703 $1,703 $6,000 $5,955 ($45)
500 260 (240} §00 470 {30)
$6,500 $7.963 $1,463 $6,500 $6.425 {$75)
$12,000 $9,033 $2,957 $9,000 45,887 %3113
$12,000 $9,033 $2,967 $9,000 $5,887 $3,113
($5,500) ($1,070) $4,430 {$2,500) $538 $3,038
9,526 8,526 0 8,988 8,988 [¢]
o [4) 0 a 4] 0
0 0 0 0 o 0
$4,026 $8.456 $4,.430 $6.458 $9,526 $3,038
[ 0
$8.4%5 53536
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COURT COMPUTER LEGAL
RESEARCH

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for revenues from court costs assessed under the authority of
Ohio Revised Code Section 1901.261(A) by the Municipal Court on the
filing of each cause of action or appeal forthe purposes of computerizing
the court and to make available computerized legal research services.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COURT COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Recelvables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Cther Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid [tems

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILIT D FUND B NCE
Liabilities:

Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences

Due To Other Funds

Deferred Revenue

Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrarnces
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$55,706 $35,855
0 1]
0 §03
0 0
3,188 3,501
0 o
0 0
$58,891 $39,859
%0 $0
947 196
0 0
1,104 651
0 0
0 0
2,051 847
0 o
56,840 38,012
56,840 39,012
$58,891 $39,859
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COURT COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOT. OR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes §0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
Infergovernmental Grants and Contracts 10,109 9,690
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 1) 0
Interest Earnings 2,151 1,571
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 40,291 41,527
Al Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 52,551 52,788
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation 0 [
General Government 34,443 31,228
Capital Outlay 280 2,532
Debt Service:
Principal 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 34,723 34,060
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{(Under} Expenditures 17,828 18,728
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 0 0
Operating Transfers - Out a ¢
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOCURCES (USES} 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 17,828 18,728
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 39,012 20,284
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $56.840 $39,012
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHID
COURT COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BAS!S AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARA LS 3G B

1999 19358
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
s and 1 | o
Bevenues;
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts $17,600 $10,611 {$6,989) $18,800 $9,187 {$9,613)
Interest Earnings 2,000 21851 151 500 157 1,07
Fines and Forfeitures 41,700 40,607 (1,093) 41,800 41,103 (697)
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $61,300 $53,369 {$7,931) $61,100 $51,861 {§9,238)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses . .
Current:
General Government $60,300 $33571 $26,723% $59,300 $31,376 $27,924
Capital Qutiay 2,000 279 1,721 1] 2,832 (2,832}
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $62,300 §33,850 $28,450 459,300 $34,208 $25,092
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses ($1,000} $19,519 $20,519 $1,800 $17,653 $15,853
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 35,855 35,855 ] 18,319 18,319 [1]
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Cutstanding At December 31 0 0 0 0 0 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (196) {196} ] (828) (313) 515
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $34,659 $55,178 $20,519 §19.291 $35,659 $16,368
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 528 o 196
Tetal Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $55,706 $35,955
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CLERK'S
COMPUTERIZATION

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for revenues from court costs assessed under the authority
of Ohio Revised Code Section 1901.261(B) by the Municipal Couxt on
the filing of each cause of action or appeal, certificate of judgement or
modification of judgement for the purpose of procuring and maintaining
computer systems for the office of the clerk of the Municipal Court.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CLERK'S COMPUTERIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECE

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncoliectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

TOTAL ASSETS
IABIL AND FUND BA

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

199

1

1999 1998
$135,509 $101,392
0 0
0 0
0 0
10,623 11,690
0 0
0 0
$146,132 $113,082
$0 $43
2,039 1,401
2,654 2,035
2,577 1,410
0 0
0 0
7,270 4,889
18,289 1,156
120,573 107,037
138,862 108,193
$146,132 $113,082
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

CLERK'S COMPUTERIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL ANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persens and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers -In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR

B-89

1999 1998
$0 $0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

4,059 5,116

0 0
134,091 138,506
0 )
138,150 143,622
0 0

o 0

0 0

0 0
83,481 94,714
24,000 18,760
0 0

0 0
107,481 113,474
30,669 30,148
0 0

0 0

0 0
30,669 30,148
108,193 78,045
$138,862 $108,193




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CLERK'S COMPUTERIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BAS!S AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCA!. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 199%

1992 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorahble} Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Interest Eamings $5,000 $4,053 ($941) $3,000 $5,115 $2,116
Fines and Forfeitures 121,300 135,158 13,858 120,000 137,078 17,078
Total Revenues and Cther
Financing Sources $126,300 $139,217 $12,917 $123,000 $142,194 $19,184
xpendity i
Current:
General Government $111,200 $83,385 $28,505 $112,500 $93,711 $18,789
Capital Qutiay 52,000 40,000 12,000 12,000 18,760 {6,760}
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $163,800 $123,395 $40,505 $124,500 $112,471 $12,029
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overi{Under} Expenditures and Other Uses ($37,600) $15.822 $53,422 {$1,500) $29,723 $31.223
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 101,382 101,392 1] T1.779 7,779 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 0 0 a 0 ] g
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {2,557) (2,033) 524 (6,498} {2,667) 3,831
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $61,2315 $115,181 $53,946 $63,781 $98,835 $35,054
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 20,328 o o 2@5‘(
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $135,509 ’ T,
E_ ] e ]
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EXTERIOR HOME
MAINTENANCE

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for monies received from the Cuyahoga County Conmumunity
Development Block Grant Program to be used to provide funding for
improvements to owner-occupied homes within the City.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

EXTERIOR HOME MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMB

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1, 1999 AND 1998

1999 1998
$34.311 $97,911
H 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
65,836 30,222
0 0
$100,647 $128,133
$770 $0
0 0
0 0
65,836 94,145
0 0
c 0
66,606 94,145
19,519 13,285
14,522 20,703
34,041 33,988
$100,647 $128,133
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

EXTERIOR HOME MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 110,746 58,801
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
Interest Earnings (1] 0
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue 0 50
TOTAL REVENUES 110,746 58,851
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 o
Community Environment 110,837 49,425
Basic Utility Services 1] 0
Transportation 0 o
General Government o o
Capital Outlay 1] 0
Debt Service:
Principal 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 110,837 49,425
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures (91) 9,426
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 55,599 0
Operating Transfers - Qut {55,455) 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 144 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under)} Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 53 9,426
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 33,988 24,562
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $34,041 $33,988




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
EXTERIOR HOME MAINTENANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BAS!IS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAF BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabile) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
ther Fi _ _ '
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Grants & Confracts $142,808 $75,132 {$67,676) $200,000 $55,865 ($144,145)
Other Revenues 0 1] 0 0 50 60
Other Financing Sources: -
Opetating Transfers In 55,600 55,599 (1) ] ' o ]
Advances In §0 400 50,400 0 75,000 75,000 1]
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $248,308 $181,1314 {$67,677) $275,000 $130,905 ($144,085)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Current:
Community Environment $131,543 $120,586 $10,957 $139,984 $55,605 $84.379
Other Financing Uses:
Operating Transfers Qut 7,345 5455 1,880 1] 1] 0
Advances Qut 194,545 128,709 65,836 200,000 55,855 144,145
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses §$333.433 $254,750 $78,683 $339,984 $111,460 $228,524
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overl/(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses ($84,628) ($73.819) $11,006 (§64,584) $19,4456 $84 428
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 87,911 7,911 i) 72,286 72,286 1]
Pricr Year's Reserve For Ettcumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 0 o 0 0 0 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Gash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (13,285) {9,770) 3,515 {7,303) {7,105) 198
Cash Fund Balance - Becember 31
Unreserved $1 $14,522 $14,521 {$1) $84,626 $84,627
Reserved for Encumbrances - T—
All Budget Years 20,289 13,285
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 354,811 ' ,
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FAIR HOUSING GRANT

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for monies received from the Department of Housing and
Urban Development. The funds are to be used to monitor fair housing
practices with the City.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FAIR HOUSING GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS . 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $173,291 $78,099
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 0 1]
Accounts 4] 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 0 1]
Due From Other Governments 0 0
Prepaid ltems 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $173,291 $£78,099
LIABILI S AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $229 $350
Accrued Wages And Benefits H
Compensated Absences 0 0
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 1] 0
Total Liabilities 229 350
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 40 2,292
Unreserved 173,022 75,457
Total Fund Balance 173,062 77,749
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $173,291 $78,099
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
FAIR HOUSING GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 112,401 13,500
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits ¢ 0
Interest Eamings 5,252 3,818
Special Assessments 0 g
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 117,653 17,318
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 0 o
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation 0 0
General Government 20,440 18,025
Capital Outiay 1,960 a
Debt Service:
Principal 1] 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,340 15,025
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 95,313 2,293
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 0 0
Operating Transfers - Qut 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 95,313 2,293
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 77,749 75,456
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $173,062 $77,749
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

FAIR HOUSING GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE COF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCE
BUDGETYARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

Reyenues gnd Other Financing Sources
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts
Interest Earnings
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Cumrent;
General Government
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses.

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overf{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

CGash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

FOR THE FISC

AL

YEAR ENDED D

ECEMBER 31, 1999
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1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$53,500 $112,400 $58,900 $23,500 $1 3,:500 ($10,000)
4,000 5,252 1,252 3,000 3,818 818
$57,600 $117 652 §60,152 $26,500 $17,318 {$9,182)
$38,700 $18,208 $20,404 $62,200 $17,087 $45,113
1 1,900 {1,900) 0 0 0
$38,700 $20,196 $18,504 $62,200 $17,087 $45,113
$18,300 $97,4566 $78,656 ($35,700) $231 $35,931
78,099 78,099 0 75,528 75,528 1]
0 1] 0 ] 0 0
2,340) {2,304} 8 0 o a
$94,559 $173,251 $78,692 $39,828 $75,759 $35,931
40 2,340
173,497 § 18,653
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COMMUNITY PRESERVATION
PARTNERSHIP

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the Gund and Cleveland Foundation Grant monies to be
used for home improvement education and mortgage assistance.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION PARTNERSHIP SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DEC R 31, 199% AND 1998
ASSETS ) 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $310,478 $96,158

Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 0 0
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments ¢ 0
Prepaid items 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $310,478 $96,158
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $74
Accrued Wages And Benefits 0 0
Compensated Absences 0 D
Due To Other Funds 1] 0
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities g 74
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 1,426 30,930
Unreserved 309,052 65,154
Total Fund Balance 310,478 96,084
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $310,478 $96,158
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION PARTNERSHIP SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1938

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
intergovernmental Grants and Centracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Qutlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers -~ In
Operating Transfers ~ Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess {Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998

$0 $0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

9,426 4,625

0 0

0 0

0 0

9,426 4,625

0 0
45,032 26,802
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
45,032 26,802
(35,606) (22177
250,000 35,000
0 0
250,000 35,000
214,394 12,823
96,084 83,261
$310,478 $96,084




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIOQ
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION PARTNERSHIP SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEBULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1959 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues and Qther Financing Sources
Revenues: . e
Interast Eamings $2,500 $9.427 $5927 $2,500 $4,625 $2,125
Other Finaneing Sourges:
Operating Transfers In 250,000 250,000 o] 35,000 35.000 0
Totz]l Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $252,500 $250,427 $6.927 $37.,500 $39,625 $2,125
Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses
Current;
Community Environment $317.600 $40,220 $277,380 $77,800 $28,257 $45,543
Total Expenditures and Cther
Financing Uses $317,600 $40,220 $277.380 $77,800 $28.257 $49,543
Excess of Revenues and Cther Sources
Over/(tnder) Expenditures and Other Usas ($65,100) $218,207 $284,307 (540,300) $11,368 $51,668
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 96,138 98,158 0 83,261 83,261 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 0 0 1} (24,342) (24,342) 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {31,004) (8,313) 24,691 (10,141) {(5,133) 5,008
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $54 $309,052 $308,598 $8,478 $65,154 $56,676
Reserved for Encumbrances ~ T—
All Budget Years 1,426 , o 31.004
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $310478 ’ R
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LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANTS

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for grants received by the Shaker Heights Police Department
whose primary purpose is to reduce the amounts and effects of external
harm to individuals and property. The following grants are accounted for

in this fund:
$75,000
30,469
28,611
20,314
24,862

COPS Universal Hiring Grant

COPS Domestic Abuse Prevention Grants
1997 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
1998 Juvenile Enforcement Block Grant
1998 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant

i
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
Law ENFORCEMENT GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998
ASSETS i 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $60,374 $33,032
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Taxes 1] 0
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments G 0
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 14,560 10,374
Prepaid ltems 0 342
TOTAL ASSETS $74,934 $43,748
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities: )
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $5,105 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 0 0
Compensated Absences 333 554
Due To Other Funds 40,970 41,928
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 46,408 42,482
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 3,643 16
Unreserved 24,883 4,250
Total Fund Balance 28,526 1,266
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $74.934 $43,748
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEVBER 31, 1998
1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State L_evied Shared Taxes 0 0
intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 78,012 43,014
Charges For Services 0 o
Fees, Licenses and Penriits 0 a
Interest Eamings 183 1,187
Special Assessments 0 1]
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 78,195 44,201
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 71,288 78,868
Community Environment ¢ 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation ] 0
General Government 0 0
Capital Qutlay 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal 0 o
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 71,288 78,866
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under} Expenditures 6,907 {34,665)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 25,634 26,439
Operating Transfers - Out (5,281) {12,702}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 20,353 13,737
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over {Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 27,260 {20,928)
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,266 22,194
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $28,526 $1,266
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
LAW ENFORCEMENT GRANTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {(NON GAAP BUDGET}
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1959

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorahle Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues an r Fi ing Sources
Revenues: . .
Intergovernmental Grants & Confracts $127,800 $73,827 ($53,973) $59,611 $48,254 ($11,357)
Interest Eamnings [+ 183 183 £§00 1,187 687
Operating Transfers In 28,506 25534 (2,872) 27,700 26,439 (1,261)
Advances In 71,500 71,426 {74) 10,000 10,000 0
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $227,806 $171,070 ($56,736} $97,811 $85,880 ($11,931)
di] ngd Other Fi i s
Current: .
Security of Persons and Property $107,776 $73,352 $34,424 $111,269 $82,685 $28,584
Capital Outiay 3,000 0 3,000 ] 0 0
Qperating Transfers Qut 18,200 5,281 13,919 17,435 12,702 4,733
Advances Qut 111,400 73,827 37,572 67,000 27,064 39,936
Total Expenditures and Cther
Financing Uses $241,376 $152 460 $88,915 $195,704 $122 4517 $73,253
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overf(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses {$13,570) $18,610 $32,180 (§97,893) ($36,571) $61,322
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 33,032 33,032 0 70,725 70,725 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
QOutstanding At December 31 0 1] 1] 0 o 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (16) (16) 0 {2,000) {1,138) 862
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved §$19,446 $51,626 $32,180 ($29,168) $33,016 $62,184
Reserved for Encumbrances - _—
All Budget Years 8,748 16
Total Gash Fund Balance - December 31 $60,374 Bi5,032
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COURT COMMUNITY
SERVICE FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the collection and use of an additional court cost
imposed by the Shaker Heights Municipal Court, under the authority of
Ohio Revised Code Section 1901-26, oneach DUI and substance related
offenses as well as first-offender cximinal cases to fund court community
service programming.




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OQHIO

COURT COMMUNITY SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31. 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE
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1999 1998
$3,193 $2,072
0 0
0 0
0 0
277 210
0 0
0 0
$3,470 $2,282
$0 $265
o 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 265
303 0
3,167 2,017
3,470 2,017
$3,470 $2,282




THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COURT COMMUNITY SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE T FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1988
1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 1]
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts [ 0
Charges For Services 4,680 3,725
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
interest Earnings 100 102
Special Assessments G 1]
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
Al} Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 4,790 3,827
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation 0 0
General Government 3,337 3,185
Capital Outiay 0 o
Debt Service:
Principal 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 G
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,337 3,185
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 1,453 642

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 0 0
0

Operating Transfers - Out 0

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,453 642
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,017 1,375
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $3470 $2,017
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
COURT COMMUNITY SERVICE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1998 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorahle) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues and Other Finanging Sources .
Revenues:
Charges for Services $4,200 $4,623 $423 $4,000 $3,853 ($147)
Interest Eamings 200 100 {100) 0 102 102
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $4,400 $4.723 %323 $4.,000 $3,955 ($45)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses . . .
General Government $4,200 $3,640 $560 $4,000 $3,185 $815
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $4.200 $3.640 $560 $4.000 $3,185 $815
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
COver/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $200 $1,083 $383 $0 $770 $770
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 2,072 2072 0 1,037 1,037 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 Q 0 0 0 0 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {265) {265) 0 0 0 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $2,007 §2,890 $883 $1,037 $1.807 $770
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 303 265
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $3.153 2,072
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COURT ALTERNATE
DISPUTE RESOLUTION
FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the collection and use of an addifional court cost imposed
by the Shaker Heights Municipal Court, under the authority of Ohio
Revised Code Section 1901-26, on each civil ard small claim case to fund
alternate dispute resolution programming and materials.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

COURT ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESOLUTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31. 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS _ . 1899

1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $11,692
Receivables {Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds 95
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid Items

OO0 O0Q

$8,364

QOO0

TOTAL ASSETS $12,642

$9,349

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

(- - -]

$300

[— N — N — O = ]

Total Liabilities

300

Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0
Unreserved 12,642

2,983
6,096

Total Fund Balance 12,642

9,049

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $12,642

$9,349
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THE CiTY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OCHIO
COURT ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESOLUTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS F SCAL c R 31,1998
1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 0 0
Charges For Services 9,985 10,240
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
Interest Earnings 419 254
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 ]
All Other Revenue 7 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 10,404 10,494
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property o 0
Community Environment 0 o
Basic Utility Services 0 o
Transportation i} (1]
General Government 6,811 3,050
Capital Outlay 0 a
Debt Service:
Principal 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,811 3,050
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 3,593 7,444
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating Transfers -In 0 0
Operating Transfers - Out 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 c
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 3,593 7,444
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,049 1,605
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $12,642 $9,049
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIC
COURT ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESCLUTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1259

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues; e
Charges for Services $13,000 $10,020 ($2,930) $11,000 $10,050 ($950)
Interest Earnings 500 419 {81) 0 254 254
Total Revenues and Qther
Financing Sources $13,500 510,439 {§3,061) $11,000 §10,304 {$696)
Ex i Finanging Uses _
Curent;
General Government $13,000 $3,908 $9.092 $11,000 $5,953 $5,047
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $13,000 $3,908 $9,092 $11,000 $5,953 §$5,047
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $500 $6,531 $6,031 $0 $4,351 $4,351
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 8,364 8,364 <] 810 810 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
GCutstanding At December 31 0 ] 0 [+] 0 +]
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumhbrance {3,203} {3,203) [} 0 0 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $5,661 $11,692 $6,031 $810 $5,161 $4,351
Reserved for Encumbrances - -
All Budget Years 0 3,203
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 §i1.652 $5.364
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COMMUNITY VISIONING

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the Gund and Cleveland Foundation Grant monies to be
used to partially fund the City's Community Visioning process.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMMUNITY VISIONING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALLANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS L 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $0 $10,201
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 0 0
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 o
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 0 0
Prepaid ltems 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $0 $10,201
L ITIES AND FUND BALANC
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 %0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 1] 0
Compensated Absences 1] 0
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 0 0
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0 0
Unreserved 0 10,201
Total Fund Balance 0 10,201
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $0 $10,201
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIOD

COMMUNITY VISIONING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

wWIT MPARA 10 FOR D C
1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 0
intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 0 10,000
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
Interest Eamings 804 201
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 1]
All Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 804 10,201
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services /] 0
Transportation 1] 0
General Government 25,340 0
Capital Outlay 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal 0 1]
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 25,340 0
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures {24,536) 10,201
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In 14,335 0
Operating Transfers - Qut 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 14,335 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (10,201} 10,201
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,201 0
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $0 $10,201
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMMUNITY VISIONING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {(NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

MPA TO H ER 31 )
1999 1998
) Vartance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Sou
enues: i
Intergovermnmental Grants & Contracts $0 $0 $0 $10,000 %10,000 %0
Interest Earnings o 804 804 [+ 201 201
ihancin rees: L
Operating Transfers In 16,000 14,335 {1,665) 0 ) 0 0
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $16,000 $15,139 ($861) £10,000 $10,201 $201
ndi ng Other Fj in
Cuyrrent:
General Government $26,000 $25,340 $660 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $26,000 $25,340 $6€0 $10,000 $0 $10,000
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overf{Under} Expenditures and Other Uses ($10,000) {$10,201) ($201) $0 $10,201 $10,201
Cash Fund Balance - January 1 10,201 10,201 0 1] 0 0

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 0 o 1] 0 ] 0

Curent Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance 0 0 0 0 Q 0

Cash Fund Balance - December 31

Unreserved $201 $0 ($201) $0 $10,201 $10,201
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 0 o
Total Cash Fund Balance -~ December 31 35 N 10,301
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OHIO COURT SECURITY
GRANT PROJECT FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for a grant received from the State of Ohio to be used to
upgrade court security by replacing door entry locks with a
computerized keyless entry system.

B-119




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
OHIO COURT SECURITY GRANT PROJECT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS - 1599 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $28,125 %0
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Taxes 1] 0
Accounis 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments g 0
Due From Cther Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 0 0
Prepaid ltems 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $28.125 $0
LIABILITIES AND FUND BA
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits 0 0
Compensated Absences 0 [+
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Deferred Revenue 0 0
Notes Payable 1] 0
Tota!l Liabilities 0 1]
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 0 0
Unreserved 28125 0
Total Fund Balance 28,125 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $28,125 $0
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
OHIO COURT SECURITY GRANT PROJECT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 19958
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes . 0 0
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 28,125 0
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
Interest Earnings ] 1]
Special Assessments ) 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue 0 0
TOTAL REVENUES 28,125 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 1]
Transportation 0 (]
General Government 0 0
Capital Outlay 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal o 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 28,125 0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers -In 1] o
Operating Transfers - Out \] 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 28,125 0
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $28,125 30
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
OHIC COURT SECURITY GRANT PROJECT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfaverable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Intergovernmental Grants & Contracts $28,125 $28,125 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Revenues and Cther
Financing Sources $28,125 $28,126 $0 $0 $0 $0
Current;
General Government $0 1] $0 50 $0 $0
Capital Outiay 28,125 0 28,125 Q 0 ]
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $28,125 $0 $28,125 %0 $0 $0
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Querf{Under} Expenditures and Other Uses $0 $28,125 $28,125 $0 $0 $0
Cash Fund Batance - January 1 0 0 0 [} 0 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 0 0 0 0 o ]
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance 0 0 a 0 0 8
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $0 $28,125 $28,125 $0 $0 $0
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 0 o
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 28,125 $0
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HIGH INTENSITY DRUG
TRAFFICKING AREA
(HIDTA) GRANT FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

The City is the grantee and acts as fiscal agent for the Federally Funded
Ohio HIDTA. The HIDTA Program ctions as a coordination
umbrella by forging partnerships among local, state and federal law
enforcement agencies in designated areas to combine resources and
efforts in order to reduce drug trafficking and distribution.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31. 1999 AND 1998
ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $4,979 $0
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Taxes 0 1]
Accounts 0 0
Deferred Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds a 0
Due From Other Governments 6,268 0
Prepaid ltems (1] 0
TOTAL ASSETS $11,247 $0
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages And Benefits i) 0
Compensated Absences 0 0
Due To Other Funds 11,247 0
Deferred Revenue 1] 0
Notes Payable o o
Total Liabilities 11,247 0
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances 1] ¢
Unreserved 0 0
Total Fund Balance 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $11,247 $0

B-124



THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes 50 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes 0 V]
Infergovernmental Grants and Contracts 16,803 0
Charges For Services ] 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits ¢] 0
Interest Earnings 0 0
Special Assessments 0 0
Fines and Forfeitures 0 0
All Other Revenue ) 1]
TOTAL REVENUES 16,803 0
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 16,803 (1]
Community Environment 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0
Transportation 0 0
General Government 0 1]
Capital Outlay 0 0
Debt Service:
Principal o D
Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 16,803 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 0 1]
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Operating Transfers - In 0 0
Operating Transfers - Out 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 0 0
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $0 $0
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Revenues;
Intergovernmental Grarnts & Contracts
Other Finansing Sources:
Advances In
Total Revenues and Gther
Financing Sources

Expenditwres and Other Financing Wsex
Current:

Security of Persons and Property
Capital Outiay

Advances Out
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Qver/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - Decembeyr 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
Al Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

1999 1898

Variance Variance

Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
$26,000 $10,535 {$14,455) £0 $0 $0
25,000 5,400 {18,800) 0 0 0
$50,000 $16,935 {$33,055) $0 50 $0
$25,000 $11,956 $13,044 §0 $0 $0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 ] [/} 0
$25.000 $11,956 $13,044 30 %0 $0
$25,000 $4.979 ($20,021) $0 $0 $0
1} aQ [+] 0 1] q
Q o o o [+] 0
0 0 0 L] 0 0
$25,000 $4,979 ($20,021) $0 $0 $0

e - _ _Q_
$4979 3G
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STREET LIGHTING
ASSESSMENT

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for funds received from the levy of special assessments
against property with frontage on publicstreets for the legally restricted
purpose of paying the cost of street lighting within the City.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

STREET LIGHTING ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid ltems

TOTAL ASSETS

Ll ITIES AND FUND B NCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefifs
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

‘Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Tota! Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

99 AND 1998

1999 1998
$155,513 $138,274
] 0
0 0
603,455 1,112,219
0 0
0 (1]
0 0
$758,968 $1,250,493
$0 $45.514
0 0
0 0
0 ]
603,455 1,112,219
] 0
$03,455 1,157,733
o 0
155,513 92,760
155,513 92,760
$758,968 $1,250,493




THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
STREET LIGHTING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BAL.ANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Property Taxes
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
Charges For Services
Fees, Licenses and Permits
Interest Earnings
Special Assessments
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Uinder) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998
$0 $0

0 0

0 0

0 0

o 0

0 0
559,705 547,205
0 0

0 0
559,705 547,205
508,952 549,006
0 0

0 0

o 0

0 0

o 0

0 0

0 0
508,952 549 006
50,753 {1,801)
12,000 12,000
0 0
12,000 12,000
62,753 10,199
92,760 82,561
$155,513 $92,760




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
STREET LIGHTING ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE CF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {(NON GAAP BUDGET)}

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1998 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues and Qther Financing Scurces
Reyenues:
Special Assesments $548.400 $559,705 $11,305 $548,400 $547,205 {$1,185)
QOther Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 12,000 12,000 0 12,000 12,000 0
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Scurces $560,400 $571,705 $11,305 $560,400 $559,205 ($1,185)
nd Other Fil ing Jses _
Current:
Security of Persons and Property $582,300 $508,952 $73,348 $565,900 $549,006 " $16,894
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses $582,300 $508,952 $73,348 $565,900 $549,006 $16,894
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Cverl{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses ($21,900) $62,753 $84,653 ($5,500) §$10,199 $15,699
Cash Fund Balance - January { 138,274 138,274 Q 82,561 82,561 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 0 Q 0 ¢ 1] 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {45,614) {45,514) 0 4] 0 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $70.860 $155,513 $34,653 77,061 $92,760 %$15,699
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 0 45514
Total Cash Fund Baiance - December 31 LR
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TREE MAINTENANCE
ASSESSMENT

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for funds received from the levy of special assessments
against property with frontage on public streets for the legally
restricted purpose of paying the cost of tree care on the City's public
right-of-way.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
TREE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31. 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity in City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance

For Uncollectibles)

Taxes

Accounts

Deferred Special Assessments
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Abseices
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$313,804 $257,499
0 0

0 0

707,973 1,368,236

0 0

0 0

0 195
$4,021,777 $1,625,930
$1,315 $27,566
16,846 7.134
4,453 0
7,669 6,184
707,973 1,368,236

0 0

738,256 1,409,120
24,755 29,958
258,766 136,852
283,521 216,810
$1,021,777 $1,625,930




THE CITY OF SBHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
TREE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
REVENUES:
Property Taxes $0 $0
State Levied Shared Taxes o 0
intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 0 0
Charges For Services 0 0
Fees, Licenses and Permits 0 0
Interest Earnings 0 0
Speciaf Assessments 685,409 665,941
Fines and Forfeitures 0 o
All Other Revenue 768 498
TOTAL REVENUES 686,177 666,439
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property 0 0
Community Environment 585,956 516,567
Basic Utility Services 0 (H
Transportation 0 0
General Government 0 25,404
Capital Outiay 33,510 17,699
Debt Service:
Principal 0 0
interest and Fiscal Charges a 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 619,466 559,670
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures 66,711 106,769
OTHER FINANCING SOURGES {USES)
Operating Transfers - in 0 0
Operating Transfers - Qut 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over {Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 66,711 106,769
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 216,810 110,041
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $283,521 $216,810
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Revyenyes and Other Financing Sources
Revenues:
Special Assesments
Other Revenues
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

nditures and er Finangin es
Current;
Community Environment
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Qverf(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Gash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
TREE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1939

O} FO| C, ER 1898
159% 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavarable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$674,500 | $685410 $10910 $674,500 $665,941 ($8,659)
0 767 767 0 498 498
$674,500 $686,177 $11,677 $674 500 $666,438 ($8,061}
$695,800 - $566,644 $129,156 $656,100 $539.427 $116,673
32,000 49,324 {17,324) 10,000 51,779 {41,779)
$727,800 $615,968 $111,832 $666,100 $591,208 $74,884
($53,300) $70,209 $123,509 $8,400 $76,233 $66,833
257,499 257,499 1] 135,292 135,392 0
{850} (850) 0 {1,593} (1,593) 0
(62,631) _(49,260) 13,371 {15,133) {15,014) 118
$140,718 $277,698 $136,880 $127,066 §$184,018 $66,952
35,206 63,481
TE——————T o ra—
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

Debt Service Fund is used to account far the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long term debt principal and interest.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $292,212 $281,036
Cash With Fiscal Agent 26,591 26,591
Due From Other Funds 0 0

TOTAL ASSETS $318,803 $307,627

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Due To Other Funds $988 $1,439
Matured Bonds and interest 28,591 26,591
Total Liabilities 27,579 28,030
Fund Balance:
Reserved for Debt Service 291,224 279,597
Total Fund Balance 291,224 279,597

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $318,803 $307,627
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
Interest Eamings
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General Government
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Fiscal Charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{(Under} Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers - In

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures And Other Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING CF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998
$12,677 $16,903
50 0
12,727 16,903
1,100 999
40,375 40,375
0 0
41,475 41,374
(28,748) (24,471)
40,375 40,375
40,375 40,375
11,627 15,904
279,597 263,693
$291,224 $279,597




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FLIND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND AGTUAL (NCN GAAP BUDGET)

s and 1 Ei in

Revenues:

Interest Earnings

Other Revenues

QOther Financing Sources:

Operating Transfers in

Sale of Notes

Note Premium
Total Revenues and Other

Financing Sources

urces

an er Fihancin:

Gument:
General Government
Other Financing Uses:
Payment of Debt
Total Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Excass of Revenues and Other Sources
Qver/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Fund Balance - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Totat Cash Fund Balance - December 31

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1399

TALS FO! CA NDE (i) 1, 1998
1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$15,000 | $12,677 [$2,323) $13,041 $16,902 $3,862
201,400 201,359 {41} 244 500 244 500 0
573,600 573,476 124} 530,959 520,934 (25)
3,445,000 3,425,000 {20,000) 2,360,000 2,360,000 v}
2,000 1,634 (366} 0 3,540 3,540
$4,237,000 $4,214 146 ($22,854) $3,208,500 $3,215877 $7.377
$46,516 $30,086 $16,430 $49.800 $3,251 $46,549
4173434 4,172,884 600 ' 3,200,200 3,200,198 2
$4,220,000 $4,202,970 $17,020 $3,250,000 $3,203,449 $45,551
$17,000 $11,176 {$5,824) {$41,500) $12,428 $53,823
281,038 281,036 0 268,608 268,608 0
4] 4] [+ 0 0 2]
4] 0 0 0 0 0
$298,036 $202.212 {$5,824) $227,108 $281,036 $53,928
0 0
NI $251,038
TN ——
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND GROUP

Combining Financial Statements

Capital Projects Funds are created to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other
than those financed by propriety funds and trust funds).

General Capital
Improvements

Sewer Capital
Improvements

Shaker Towne Centre-
North West Quadrant
Capital Improvements

To account for Estate Tax monies designated
by City Council to be used to fund major
capital improvement projects and the
acquisition of major capital equipment. By
Council policy, all Estate Tax revenue in excess
of $500,000 is credited to this fund annually.

To account for the construction and the
reconstruction of storm and sanitary sewers
within the City. The projects are generally
financed partially by operating transfers
fromm the Sewer Maintenance Special
Revenue Fund.

To account for the improvements to the area
of the City known as Shaker Towne Centre -
N.W. Quadrant. The project includes the
acquisition of property in the area, the
demolition of existing structures, the partial
financing of the renovation by the Shaker
Heights Public Library of the former
Moreland School building to serve as their
new main library, the acquisition and
renovation by the City of the former main
library building to serve as a Community
Center and the construction of a sportsfield,
playground and loop path.
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GENERAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for Estate Tax monies designated by City Council to be used to
fund major capital improvement projects and the acquisition of major |

capital equipment. By Council policy, all Estate Tax revenue in excess of
$500,000 is credited to this fund annually.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Leases
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Vouchers and Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages And Benefits
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Notes Payable

Notes Premium Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Reserved For Appropriations
Unreserved
Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$7,062,167 $8,291,950
37,128 317,471
107,483 194,145
1,108,072 862,740
111,580 450,000
$8,704,440 $10,116,306
$727,790 $185,594
39,961 83
0 o
669,076 455,281
0 0
0 0
1,436,827 640,958
1,341,026 413,716
2,187,851 1,175,128
3,738,736 7,886,504
7,267,613 9,475,348
$8,704,440 $10,116,306




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEVMBER 31, 1998
1999 1998
REVENUES:
State Levied Shared Taxes %$1,665,694 $5,761,527
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts 956,530 115,157
All Other Revenue 469,607 23,617
TOTAL REVENUES 3,091,831 5,900,301
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Security of Persons and Property 21,853 34,810

Leisure Time Activities 0 t]

Community Environment 418,912 6,077

Basic Utility Services 6,024 564

Transportation 5,645 4,093

General Government 83,747 70,191

Capital Outlay 3,852,642 2,745,958
Debt Service:

Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,388,823 2,861,693
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures {1,296,992) 3,038,608

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Operating Transfers - In 67,282 1,923,159

Operating Transfers - Out {978,035} {585,559)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {910,743) 1,337,600
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources

Over {Under) Expenditures And Other Uses (2,207,735} 4,376,208
FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,475,348 5,099,140
FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR $7,267,613 $9,475,348
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SEWER CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the construction and the reconstruction of storm and
sanitary sewers within the City. The projects are generally financed
partially by operating transfers from the Sewer Maintenance Special
Revenue Fund.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSET

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Leases
Due From Other Funds
Due From Other Govermments
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Vouchers and Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages And Benefits
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Notes Payable

Notes Premium Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances
Reserved For Appropriations
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 1998
$136,425 $607,336
0 0
0 0
o 0
0 0
$136,425 $607,336
$0 $23,685
0 0
0 0
¢ 0
0 0
0 0
0 23,685
42,854 387,831
0 92,379
93,571 103,441
136,425 583,651
$136,425 $607,336




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

SEWER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUES:
State Levied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over {(Under) Expenditures And Other Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998

$0 $0
16,817 498,008

0 0

16,817 498,008

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 12,243

0 0

0 0
312,786 1,061,157
0 0
312,786 1,073,400
{295,969) (575,392)
0 147,000
{151,257) 0
{151,257) 147,000
{447,226) (428,392)
583,651 1,012,043
$136,426 $583,651







Cillg o/ SAaLerAiglztd, OAio

SHAKER TOWNE CENTRE
NORTH WEST QUADRANT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the improvements to the area of the City known as Shaker
Towne Centre - N.W. Quadrant. The Project includes the acquisition of
property in the area, the demolition of existing structures, the partial
financing of the renovation by the Shaker Heights Public Library of the
former Moreland School building to serve as their new main library, the
acquisition and renovation by the City of the former main library building
to serve as a Community Center and the construction of a sportsfield,
playground and loop path.

B-151



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
SHAKER TOWNE CENTRE NORTH WEST QUADRANT CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECE

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

lLeases
Due Frorn Other Funds
Due From Other Governments
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Vouchers and Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages And Benefits
Due To Other Funds
Deferred Revenue

Notes Payable

Notes Premium Payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved For Encumbrances

Reserved For Appropriations
Unreserved

Total Fund Balance

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

1999 AND 199
1999 1998

$0 $62,853
1,978,658 2,079,072
988 1,439

0 94,738

0 0
$1,979,646 $2,238,103
$0 $32,930

0 0

0 100,000
1,978,658 2,079,072
1,749,000 2,360,000
0 3,540
3,718,658 4,575,542
0 12,885

0 3,881
{1,739,012) {2,354,205)
(1,739,012) (2,337,439)
$1,979,646 $2,238,103
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO

SHAKER TOWNE CENTRE NORTH WEST QUADRANT CAPITAL

IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOT. FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDE

REVENUES:
State | evied Shared Taxes
Intergovernmental Grants and Contracts
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures And Other Uses

FUND EQUITY AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
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CEMBER 31, 1998

1999 1998

$0 $0

5,261 94,739
201,309 244,500
206,570 339,239

0 0

0 300

0 0

0 0

0 0

28,986 2,252
12,631 122,934
82,335 87,988

123,952 213,474

82,618 125,765
533,101 550,559
{17,292) (16,859)
515,809 533,700
598,427 659,465
(2,337,439) (2,996,904)
($1,739,012) ($2,337,439)
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Comparative Financial Statements

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Recreation Enterprise To account for funds received from
recreation program fees, charges and passes
and for the cost of furnishing recreation
services to the residents. Recreation activities
accounted for include ice skating, swimming
and general recreation programs. Any excess
of operating cost over operating revenue
is subsidized by an operating transfer
from the General Fund.

{Note: This is the only fund in this group.)

B-155




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
RECREATION ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31. 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS

Equity In City Treasury Cash

Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Accounts

Due From Other Funds

Prepaid tems

Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQU]TY

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Accrued Wages And Benefits
Compensated Absences
Due To Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments
Retained Earnings
Unreserved

Total Fund Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY

1999 1998
$233,864 $158,453
0 0
25,000 0
11,789 4,319
1,032,648 1,034,881
$1,303,302 $1,197,653
$30,788 $27,883
68,181 58,477
196,462 162,979
97,671 50,954
393,102 300,293
905,759 894,449
4,441 2,911
910,200 897,360
$1,303,302 $1,197,653
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

RECREATION ENTERPRISE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAlL YEAR FNDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Travel and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Self-Insurance Claims
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Qut

NET INCOME {LOSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR

B-157

1999 1998
$2,432,697 $2,388,826
453 731
2,433,150 2,389,557
2,334,918 2,234,145
17,240 17,059
897,971 945,535
264,821 291,159
11,427 5,626
99,969 105,160
3,626,346 3,598,684
(1,193,196) (1,209,127)
1,115,436 1,107,608
0 0
(77.760) (101,519)
79,290 85,310
1,530 (16,209)
2,911 19,120
$4,441 $2,911




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
RECREATION ENTERFRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {NON GAAP BUDGET)

1999 19538
Variance Variance
Favarable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
R | Other Fi ing &
Charges for Services $2,588,400 $2,432,697 ($155,703) $2,453,500 $2,388,82¢ ($54,674)
Other Revenues 0 453 453 1,000 972 (28)
Operating Transfers In 1,278,200 1,090,436 {187,764) 1,240,000 1,226,608 {13,392}
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $3,866,600 $3,523,586 ($343,014) $3,694,500 $3,616,406 ($78,084)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Gurrent: . - -
Perscnal Services $2,368,400 $2,298,742 $69,658 $2,315,000 $2,304,157 $10,843
Travel and Education 24 300 15,393 8,907 22,800 17,386 5414
Contractual Services 1,088,800 906,760 182,040 1,008,800 1,007,069 1,731
Materials and Supplies 365,500 283,150 62,350 325,300 293,326 31,874
Additions and Improvements 5,200 1,857 7343 17,600 3445 14,055
Operating Transfers Out 40,000 10,000 0 0 0 1]
Advances Qut 6,400 6,367 33 30,600 30,549 51
Debt Service 400 398 2 0 0 0
Total Operating Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses $3,863,000 $3,532,667 $330,333 $3,720,000 $3,655,932 $64,068
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Overf/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses %$3.600 ($9,081) ($12,681) ($25.500) ($39,526) ($14,026)
Cash Retained Earnings - January 1 158,453 158,463 0 173,375 173,375 4]
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 {3,992) (3,992) 0 0 0 o
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {94,710) (84,799) 9,911 {113,720) {74,098) 38,622
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $63,351 $60,581 ($2,770} $34,155 $59,751 $25,596
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 173,283 98,702
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31

R IH! e,

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
RECREATION ENTERPRISE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers
Cash Payments to Employees
Other Operating Receipts (Payments)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Transfers-in
Operating Transfers-Out

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Contributed Capital

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Earned on Investments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year

1999 1998
$2,432,697 $2,388,826
{1,153,626) (1,326,352)
(2,287,412) (2,298,342)

453 972
(1,007,888) (1,234,896)
1,090,436 1,226,608

0 0
1,090,436 1,226,608
(97,737) (67,204)
90,600 60,570
(7,137} (6,634)

0 0

0 0

75,411 (14,922)
188,453 173,375
$233,864 $158,453

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables
{increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems
Increase {Decrease) in Vouchers and Accounts Payable
increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds

{$1,193,196)

($1,208,127)

Total Adjustments

99,969 105,160

0 241
(7.470) (4,319)
2,905 (42,182)
9,704 (54,608)
33,483 {(5,138)
46,717 (24,923)
185,308 (25,769)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

{$1,007,888)

($1,234,896)
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City o/ S/m.LerAigl;té, O/u,o

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND GROUP

Combining Financial Statements

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies of a government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement
basis.

Central Stores To provide a central cost center to account for
the purchasing of office supplies, road materials,
sidewalk materials, fuel, fire hydrants and other
miscellaneous supplies to be charged back to the
individual City departments as the supplies are
drawn.

Central Printing To provide a centralized cost center to account
for work performed for City departments by the
City print shop.

Central Garage To provide a central cost center to account
for the cost of repairing and maintaining the
City's fleet of vehicles and heavy equipment.
Operating costs are charged back to City
departments based upon the number of vehicles
and equipment maintained and upon the
department's actual utilization of the garage.

l
1
H
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Central Services

Self-Insurance

Combining Financial Statements

To provide a central cost center for work
for other governmental agencies, utilities,
and individuals that is not considered to be a
normal City function and is billable back to
the responsible party. Included in this fund
is the maintenance of the rapid transit tracks
for the Regional Transit Authority, street
openings and closings, public property
damage repair, sidewalk repair and replacement
and other miscellaneous activities.

To account for monies charged to the General
and the Enterprise funds of the City by the Self-
Insurance Reserve Fund. Since 1986 the City has
directly assumed the risk of loss from general
liability claims. The Self-Insurance Reserve was
created by Council to provide for a loss reserve,
for the administration of the self-insurance
activity and to account for the worker's
compensation claims. The Self-Insurance
Reserve is mot available to fund the general
operations of the City.
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CENTRAL STORES

Comparative Financial Statements

To provide a central cost center to account for the purchasing of office
supplies, road materials, sidewalk materials, fuel, fire hydrants and other
miscellaneous supplies to be charged back to the individual City
departments as the supplies are drawn.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO

CENTRAL STORES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $41,460 $64,218
Receivables (Net of Allowarice
For Uncollectibles)
Accounts 0 o
Special Assessments o 0
Due From Other Funds Q o
Due From Other Governments 0 0
inventory of Supplies 26,304 27,025
Prepaid ltems 0 0
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $67,764 $91,243
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $9,725 $24,913
Accrued Wages And Benefits )} 0
Compensated Absences 0 0
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Self insurance Claims Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 9,725 24,913
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments 0 0
Retained Earnings
Unreserved 58,039 66,330
Total Fund Equity 58,039 66,330
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $67,764 $91,243
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO

CENTRAL STORES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Travel and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Self-Insurance Claims
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Earnings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

NET INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

NET INCOME (L.OSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR

AR ENDED DEC

ER 31, 1998

1999 1998
$164,607 $131,191
0 0
164,607 131,191
0 0
0 0
126 0
172,772 133,337
0 0
0 0
172,898 133,337
(8,291) (2,146)
0 0
0 0
(8,291) (2,148)
0 0
0 0
(8,291) (2,146)
0 0
(8,291) (2,146)
66,330 68,476
$58,039 $66,330




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO
CENTRAL STORES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {NON GAAFP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1939

M TH ENI MBER 31, 1998
109% 1998
Variance Variance
Favarable Faverable
Budgst Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
il At Einancing Sources — =
Operating Revenue; ’ : :
Charges for Services $191,000 $164, 607 _{8$28,393) %$191,000 $131,221 ($59,779)
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $191,000 $164,607 {$26,393) $191,000 $131,221 {$58,779)
xpenditures and Other Financing U
Current:
Contractual Services $0 $125 ($125) $0 $0 %0
Materials and Supplies 220,000 173,965 46,035 191,000 147,073 43,927
Yotal Operating Expenditures and
Cther Financing Uses $220,000 $174,090 $45,910 $191,000 $147,073 $43,927
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Qver/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses ($29,000) {$9,483) $19,617 $0 {$15,852) ($15,852)
Cash Retained Earnings - January 1 64,218 54,218 ] 49,909 49,909 [

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 4] 1] 0 (2.387) {2,387} 0

Cutrent Year Gash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund

Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (32,548) (25,830} 6,718 (735) 0 735
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $2,670 $28,905 $26,236 $46,787 $31,670 {($15117)
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 12,555 32,548
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 $ATAED ) L {-r -5 T
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

CENTRAL STORES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
1999 19938
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received From Customers $164.607 $131,221

Cash Payments to Suppliers (187,365) (116,912)

Cash Payments to Employees 0 (1]

Other Operating Receipts (Payments) 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (22,758) 14,309
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Transfers-In 0 0

Operating Transfers-Out 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIMVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 0 0

Contributed Capital 0 0
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Earned on Investments 0 0
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 0 0
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,758) 14,309
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 64,218 49,909
Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year $41,460 $64,218

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in Receivables

{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Governments

{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds
{Increase) Decrease in Inventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems

increase (Decrease) in Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable

Increase {Decrease) in Due to Other Funds

Increase (Decrease) in Self-Insurance Cilaims Payable

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B-171

{$8,291) ($2,146)
0 0

0 30

0 0

0 0

721 {8,488)

0 0
{15,188) 24,913
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
{14,467) 16,455
($22,758) $14,309
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CENTRAL PRINTING

Comparative Financial Statements

To provide a centralized cost center to account for work performed for
City departments by the City print shop.

|

I
ﬂ
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CITY OF SHAKER HEI!GHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL PRINTING INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $1.446 $2,185
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Accounts o 0
Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Govemments 0 0
Inventory of Supplies 0 C
Prepaid Items o 0
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 4,890 5,433
TOTAL ASSETS $6,336 $7,618
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $1,304 $861
Accrued Wages And Benefits [\ 981
Compensated Absences 326 43
Due To Other Funds 614 434
Self Insurance Claims Payable ] 0
Total Liabilities 2,244 2,319
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments 0 0
Retained Eamings
Unreserved 4,692 5,299
Total Fund Equity 4,092 5,299
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $6,336 $7.618
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
CENTRAL PRINTING INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECENMBER 21, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCA

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personaf Services
Travel and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Self-Insurance Claims
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (1.OSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Eamings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

NET INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Qperating Transfers - Out

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR

1999

R ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

1998

$37,423 $31,938
0 ]
37,423 31,933
24,881 18,407
650 135
1,980 840
10,396 13,079
180 54
543 545
38,630 34,060
(1,207) (2,122)
0 0

0 0
(1,207) (2,122}
0 ]

0 0
(1,207) (2,122)
0 0
(1,207) (2,122)
5,299 7,421
$4,092 $5,299




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL PRINTING INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL [(NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

1998 1988
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues and Qther Financing Sources : =
Operating Revepue; T
Charges for Services $40,400 $37,423 {$2,977) $33,400 $31,938 {$1,462)
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $40,400 $37,423 ($2,877) $33,400 $31,938 {$1,462)
Expenditures and Othet Finanging Useg
Personal Services 425,000 $24,387 $613 $21,000 $20,733 $267
Travel and Education 500 673 (173) 0 112 (112}
Contractual Services 2,000 1,980 20 2,000 840 1,160
Materials and Supplies 12,500 10,889 1,611 12,300 13,145 (845)
Total Operating Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses $40,000 $37,925 $2,071 $35,300 $34,830 $470
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $400 ($506) {$506} ($1,900) ($2,892) ($892)
Cash Retained Eamings - January 1 2,185 2,185 0 4,357 4,357 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31 1] 0 0 (181) (181) 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {1.525) {1,118) 407 (524) {624) 0
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $1,060 $561 {$493} $1,652 4660 55992;
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years B85 i B 1,525
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 3735
E ] T
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CENTRAL GARAGE

Comparative Financial Statements

To provide a central cost center to account for the cost of repairing and
maintaining the City's fleet of vehicles and heavy equipment. Operating
costs are charged back to City departinents based upon the number of
vehicles and equipment maintained and upon the department's actual
utilization of the garage.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1989 AND 1998

ASSETS . 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $121,380 $120,855
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Accounts 4] 1]
Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 35,000 22,113
Due From Other Governments 4] 0
Inventory of Supplies ¢ 0
Prepaid tems 0 118
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation} 91,581 98,438
TOTAL ASSETS $247,961 $241.,524

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $7.285 $17,263
Accrued Wages And Benefits 30,669 28,664
Compensated Absences 90,381 82,382
Due To Other Funds 16,811 13,561
Self Insurance Claims Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 145,146 141,870
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments 93,485 98,389
Retained Earnings
Unreserved 9,330 1,265
Total Fund Equity 102,815 99,654
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $247,961 $241,524
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

CENTRAL GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Travel and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Self-Insurance Claims
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Earnings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

NET INCOME (LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

NET INCOME {(LOSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR

1999 1998
$924,452 $909,434
525 0
924,977 909,434
737,038 702,907
0 18
140,177 156,930
34,494 45,249
3,250 1,573
6,857 8,552
921,816 915,229
3,161 (5,795)
0 0
0 0
3,161 (5.795)
0 0
9 0
3,161 (5,795)
4,904 4,904
8,065 (891)
1,265 2,156
$9,330 $1,265




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES 1IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL {NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1859

RANVE TOTALS FOR THE Al TEAN SINLICL o

1999 1998
Variance Variance
Favorable Favcrable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
R { Other Fi ing &
Charges for Services $962,200 $912,080 {$50,110) $917,800 $899,309 {$18,491)
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $962,200 $912,080 {$50,110) $917,800 $839,309 {$18,491)
Expenditures and Qther Financing Uses
Cumrent
Personal Services $752,500 $732,489 $20,011 $712,300 $706,206 $6,094
Travel and Education 2,000 1] 2,000 2,000 18 1,982
Contractual Services 160,600 135977 24.623 156,600 165,434 (8,834}
Materials and Suppiles 37,100 35,249 1,851 36,800 45901 {9,001}
Additions and Improvements 10,000 1,185 8,805 10,000 2,020 7,930
Total Operating Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses $962,200 $904,910 $57,280 $917,800 $919,579 {$1,779)
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Cverf{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $0 $7,180 $7,180 $0 ($20,270) ($20,270)
Cash Retained Earnings - January 1 120,855 120,855 Q 120,841 120,841 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At Becember 31 {610) {610} 0 (1,765) {1,765) 0
Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance {43 880) {35,850) 7.000 {24, 857) {22,451) 2,406
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $76,355 $90,535 $14,180 $94.219 $76,355 !317,864)
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 30,845 44 500

Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO

CENTRAL GARAGE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received From Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers
Cash Payments to Employees
Other Operating Receipts (Payments}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Transfers-In
Operating Transfers-Out

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR})
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Contributed Capital

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Earned on Investments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase} Decrease in Receivables
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Governments
{increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds
{Increase) Decrease in Inventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid items
Increase (Decrease) in Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Selff-Insurance Claims Payable

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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MBER 31, 1998

1999 1998
$911,565 $899,309
{184,649) (194,932)
(726,916) (702,778)
525 0
525 1,599
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 (68,775)
0 67,190
0 (1,585)
0 0
0 D
525 14
120,855 120,841
$121,380 $120,855
$3,161 {$5,795)
6,857 8,552
0 0
0 0
{12,887) (10,125)
0 0
118 (118)
(9,978) 7,035
2,005 (10,809)
7,999 11,286
3,250 1,573
0 0
(2,636) 7,394
$525 $1,599
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CENTRAL SERVICES

Comparative Financial Statements

To provide a central cost center for work for other governmental agencies,
utilities, and individuals that is not considered to bea normal city function
and is billable back to the responsible party. Included in this fund is the
maintenance of the rapid transit tracks for the Regional Transit Authority,
street openings and closings, public property damage repair, sidewalk repair
and replacement and other miscellaneous activities.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL SERVICES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS , _ 1999 1998

Equity In City Treasury Cash $413,674 $260,595
Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)

Accounts 213,253 123,314
Special Assessments 77,082 96,902
Due From Other Funds 0 0
Due From Other Governments 0 43,928
Inventory of Supplies 0 0
Prepaid ltems 0 0
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 1,970 2,727
TOTAL ASSETS $705,979 $527,466
IABILY FU o
Liabilifies:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $31,869 $3,619
Accrued Wages And Benefits 5,353 4,412
Compensated Absences 0 o
Due To Other Funds 204171 3,797
Self Insurance Claims Payable 0 0
Total Liabilities 241,393 11,828
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments 0 0
Retained Earnings
Unreserved 464,586 515,638
Total Fund Equity 464,586 515,638
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $705,979 $527,466
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL. SERVICES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBFER 31, 1998

1999 1998

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services $544.668 $704,271
Other Income 806 7,551
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 545,474 711,822

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services 195,996 214,132
Travel and Education 0 0
Contractual Services 367,187 306,747
Materiais and Supplies 92,212 54,833
Self-insurance Claims 374 1,085
Depreciation 757 631
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 596,526 577,438
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) {51,052) 134,384

NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Interest Earnings 0 0
TOTAL NON-CPERATING REVENUES 0 0

NET INCOME (1LOSS)

BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS {51,052) 134,384
Operating Transfers - In 0 0
Operating Transfers - Qut 0 0

NET INCOME (LOSS} {61,052) 134,384

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution 0 0
iNCREASE (DECREASE]) IN RETAINED EARNINGS {51,052) 134,384
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 515,638 381,254
RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR $464,586 $515,638
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
CENTRAL SERVICES INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE
BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 1959
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DEGEMBER 31,1998

1999 1958
) Variance o T T Variance
Favorable Favotable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)} Budget Actual {Unfavorabte}
Revenues and Other Financing Sources ]
Operating Revenue: .
Charges for Services $682.800 $517,066 (§175,734) $768,500 $672,606 {$86,894)
Other Revenues §,100 2,218 (2,882) 5100 7,551 2,451
Other Financing Sources: B R L
Advances In 200,000 200,000 0 0 0 Q
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $897,900 $719,284 {$178,618) $764,600 $580,157 {584,443)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
current:
Personal Services . $234,100 $185418 $38,682 $220,000 $213,332 $1,667
Contractual Services 330,800 453,549 {62,749} 359,800 282,795 77,005
Materials and Supplies 93,000 92237 763 76,300 54,426 21,874
Additions and Improvements 160,000 158,958 1,042 193,900 179,980 13,920
Total Operating Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses $877,900 $900,162 ($22,262) $850,000 §735,534 $114,466
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over/{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $20,000 {$180,878) ($200,878) {$85,400) ($55,377) $30,023
Cash Retained Earnings « January 1 260,595 260,595 [} 162,744 162,744 0
Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Outstanding At December 31 (5,772) (5,772} 4] (1,135) (1,135) 0
Custent Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance (170,550) (8,930} 161,620 {38,292) (21,959) 16,332
Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved $104,273 $65,015 ($39,268) $37,517 $384,273 $46,356
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years 348 659 176,322
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31 SA13EH ¥
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

CENTRAL SERVICES INTERNAL. SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

COMPA TOTALS FOR THE AL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
1999 1998
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash Received From Customers 518,477 $672,606

Cash Payments to Suppliers (171,149) (361,858)

Cash Payments to Employees {195,055) {217.493)

Other Operating Receipts (Payments) __806 7,551
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 153,079 100,806
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Transfers - In 0 V]

Operafing Transfers - in 0 Y
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 0
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES;

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 1] (2,955)

Contributed Capital 0 0
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 0 (2,955)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Earned on Investments 0 D
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 0 (1]
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 153,079 97,851
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 260,595 162,744
Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year $413,674 $260,595

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY QPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Receivablas
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Governments
{Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid items
Increase {Decrease) in Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Selfinsurance Claims Payable

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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{$51,052) $134,334
757 631
(70,119) (7.198)
43,928 (25,283)
0 816

0 0

0 0
28,250 (278)
941 (3,361)

0 0
200,374 1,085
0 0
204,131 (33,578)
$153,079 $100,806
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SELEF-INSURANCE

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for monies charged to the General and the Enterprise funds of
the City by the Self-Insurance Reserve Fund. Since 1986 the City has
directly assumed the risk of loss from general liability claims. The Self-
Insurance Resexrve was created by Council to provide for a loss reserve, for
the administration of the self-insurance activity and to account for the
“ worker's compensation claims. TheSeif-Insurance Reserve is not available
to fund the general operations of the City.

I
i

i
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SELF-INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSETS . 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $3,843,745 $3,439.416
Receivables {Net of Allowance
For Uncollectibles)
Accounts 0 1}
Special Assessments 0 0
Due From Other Funds 611,321 478,280
Due From Other Governments 0 0
Inventory of Supplies 1 0
Prepaid Items 0 18,736
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 579 1,168
TOTAL ASSETS $4,455,645 $3,937,590
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $2,500 $118
Accrued Wages And Benefits 2,669 2,412
Compensated Ahsences 30,421 17,983
Due To Other Funds 0 0
Self Insurance Claims Payable 1,685,163 1,596,233
Total Liabilities 1,730,753 1,616,746
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Contributed From Governments 0 0
Retained Earnings
Unreserved 2.724.892 2,320,844
Total Fund Equity 2,724,892 2,320,844
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND EQUITY $4,455,645 $3,937,590
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SELF-INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges For Services
Other Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Trave!l and Education
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Self-Insurance Claims
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest Earnings

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES

NET INCOME {LOSS)
BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

NET INCOME (LOSS)

Add Depreciation On Fixed Assets
Acquired By Contribution

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN RETAINED EARNINGS

RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

RETAINED EARNINGS AT END OF YEAR
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1999 1998
$936,650 $796,802
28,095 7,485
965,745 804,287
105,039 108,538
108 25
190,923 272,702
1,423 687
423,404 291,579
579 579
721,476 674,130
244,269 130,157
159,779 177,088
159,779 177,088
404,048 307,245
0 0
o 0
404,048 307,245
0 4]
404,043 307,245
2,320,844 2,013,599
$2,724,892 $2,320,844




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, CHIO
SELF-INSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

BUDGETARY BASIS AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP BUDGET)

1 Othier Fi ing
Operating Revenug: .
Charges for Services
Other Revenues
Non-Operating Revenue;
Interast Eamnings
Advances In
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

E i { Other Fi .t
Cument;

Personal Services

Travel and Education

Contractual Services

Materials and Supplies
Total Operating Expenditures and

Cther Financing Uses

Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Cveri{Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Cash Retained Eamings - January 1

Prior Year's Reserve For Encumbrances
Qutstanding At December 31

Current Year Cash Expenditures
Against Prior Year's Cash Fund
Balance Reserved For Encumbrance

Cash Fund Balance - December 31
Unreserved
Reserved for Encumbrances -
All Budget Years
Total Cash Fund Balance - December 31
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1999 1988
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorahle)
$798,200 $797,242 ($958) $753,200 $745.321 (§7,879)
5,000 29,095 24,095 5,000 7,488 2,485
175,000 7 159,779 7 (15,221) 115,000 177,088 62,088
6,400 6,367 {33) 30,600 30,549 {61)
$984,600 $992483 4$7,883 $903,800 $960,443 $56,643
$92,800 $91,950 $850 $105,000 $100,368 $4,632
3,500 114 3.386 3,500 19 3,481
733,200 643,579 £9,621 730,500 370,185 360,315
2,400 1,673 727 2,000 657 1,343
$831,900 $737,316 $94 584 $841 000 $471.229 $368,771
$152,700 $2E85,167 $102 467 $62,800 $488.214 $426,414
3,433,416 3,439,416 4] 2,855,203 2,885,203 0
(750,321) {150,321) 1] {639,241) (632,241) 0
(76,589) {76,434) 155 (96,571) {92,670) 3,901
$2,765,206 $2,867,828 $102,622 $2,182,191 $2,612,506 $430,315
975,97 826910



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

SELFINSURANCE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received From Cusfomers
Cash Payments to Suppliers
Cash Payments to Employess
Other Operating Receipts (Payments)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating Transfers ~ In
Operating Transfers - Out

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Contributed Capital

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Earned on Investments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash/Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash/Cash Equivalents at End of Year

RECONCIHATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase} Decrease in Receivables
{(increase) Decrease in Due From Other Governments
(Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds
(Increase) Decrease in [nventory
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems
Increase (Decrease) in Vouchers and Accounts Payable
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase (Decrease} in Self-Insurance Claims Payable

Total Adjustments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
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1999 1998
$797,242 $745,321
(489,784) (244,060)

(92,003) (99,884)
29,095 7,485
244,550 408,862
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 (1,737)

0 0

0 (1,737)
159,779 177,088
159,778 177,088
404,329 584,213
3,439,416 2,855,203
$3,843,745 $3,439,416
$244,269 $130,157
579 579

0 0

0 0
(133,041) (20,932)
0 0

18,736 4,892
2,382 (6,458)
257 (2,857)
12,438 11,902

0 0

98,930 291,579
281 278,705
$244,550 $408,862
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUND GROUP

Combining Financial Statements

Trust and Agency Funds are generally wused to account for resources
received by one governmental unit on behalf of a secondary recipient (*pass

through*), governmental or other.

Law Enforcement Trust

Obstruction Permit
Deposit

Excavating Permit
Deposit

To account for the proceeds of property
deemed contraband by the courts and ordered
forfeited to the City. The Ohio Revised Code
permits these funds to be expended only for
the «cost of ©protracted or complex
investigations or prosecutions, to provide
reasonable technical training or expertise or
other such law enforcement purposes as
determined by Council. The fund may not be
used to meet operating costs of the City that
are not related to law enforcement.

To account for the receipt of refundable
deposits required of individuals to insure that
obstructions or openings in public property
created during construction are returned to
pre-construction condition. -

To account for the receipt of refundable
deposits required of individuals who wish to
excavate and/or haul material over public
property. The deposit is to guarantee that the
public property will be cleaned and restored to
its original condition and that the excavation,
if any, will be properly guarded in accordance
with applicable provisions of the City Code.

|
|

!
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Combining Financial Statements

Unclaimed Monies

Fund for the Future
of Shaker Heights

Municipal Court

Contractor Deposit

Fund required by Ohio Revised Code to
account for monies received or collected and
not otherwise paid out according to law.
Monies that are deemed to be unclaimed and
credited to this fund that are not claimed
within a five year period revert to the General
Fund.

To account for the assets, held by the City as
fiscal agent, of the Fund for the Future of
Shaker Heights, Inc. (F.E.S.H.), a non-profit
corporation formed to promote pro-integrative
housing moves within the City of Shaker
Heights.

To account for assets received and disbursed
by the Shaker Heights Municipal Court as
agent or custodian related to civil and
criminial court matters.

To account for the receipt of refundable
deposits required of individuals who perform
construction electrical work, plumbing, sewer
or HVAC work. The deposit is to guarantee
that the work will be performed and inspected
according to City Code.

|
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUND GROUP, (cont.)

Combining Financial Statements

Recreation Scholarship

Shaker Family Center
at Sussex

Board of Building
Standards

To account for funds soliciated to be used for
the purpose of providing financial aid and/or
services to assist disadvantaged youth who
otherwise could not afford to participate in
various Recreation Department programs.
The scholarship program is a non-profit
corporation established under the authority of
section 501 (c) of the Internal Revenue Service
Code.

To account for assets held by the City as fiscal
agent for the Shaker Family Resource Center,
Inc. The purpose of this non-profit
corporation is to enhance the quality of life for
families with young children in the Shaker
Heights City School District by providing
educational, social, recreational and support
programs and services.

To account for state mandated fees collected by
the City's Building Department relating to the
acceptance, reveiew and approval of building
plans and specifications. An amount equal to
3% of fees imposed must be remitted on a
monthly basis to the State of Ohio Department
of Industrial Relations.

i

B-199



ost'IvlS 0cL'z2c8 t07'506% 86e'vZZ$ ¢lo's$ gle'acs 215'v218

0 0 0 0 0 0 LIS'vel

0 0 (] 0 0 0 GlZ'Ze)

o 0 e 0 0 0 et

oSt LYl 051°'z.¢ +02'506 858'¥2 SL0'S G1£'9¢ 0

0 626961 0 0 0 0 0

ost'1v) 0 0 858'VZT 910'c Gl£'98 0

0 0 $0Z'506 0 0 0 0

0 00g8'LS 0 0 0 0 0

0 IZ¥'egl 0 0 (] 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0$ 0% 0% 0% o$ 03 0s

0S¥ LYES 0512258 ¥02'506$ 859'vZZ$ 5L0'5$ g.8'9¢% LS'VZLS

0 0 o 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 125

0 0 0 0 0 0 00¥'9

0 0 919'L¥9 0 0 0 0

ost'LvLS 0g1'zies 88g°'I5¢% £898'¢2T$ SLO'SS gle'aed 065'LLLS

susodag Hnoo sy biey saluoW juuag g FTETTERTLITE]

Jojrenuod lediiuniy layeus jo paunejoun HuneAedxyg  uonINNSqO MeT]

alnyng ayj IsnaL
10} pundg slqepuadxy
SANNS ADNTIOV

8661 1€ H3EWTD30 °0d STV101 SAILVUVANOD HIIM
6661 ‘£ ¥3gWAD3A
133HS JONYIVE ONINIFWOD
SANNd ANVIONAS
OIHO 'SLHOIAH HINVYHS 40 ALID

JONVYIVE ONNd
ANV S31LMTIavIT V1oL

aoukjeg pund [ejo

panlasaiuf
SaJUBIQIINOUS 10} PAAISSIY
:eauejeg pung

saiiqery |ejoL
Agelonpld se plaH siunowry
s)isodaq djgepuniay
saouabiy pjoid-uoN ol and
SIUSUMLIDA0D JBULD 01 8hg
spund 18|10 ol ang
s)lyauag puy sabep paniooy

ajqeAed sUNo2ay pue SISYINoA

:sanIgery

SONVYIVE ONNd ANV S3LLITIgvI

81388V IVLOL

soalauaby yjoid-uonN ol ang
SIUBWUIBA0S JAUIO Wold ang
spund J34i0 wol4 ang
sUeo
(ssjquos|iodun Jog
2oUEMO]|Y JO 19N) Sa|QEAIDI9Y
yses Ainseal), A0 u Aunby

S13SSY

B-200



298CLLLS  800'GYE 1S 16ORZLVS SIS 0000¢% 998's$
9£0°021 215'P2L 0 0 0 0
9£0'0L) §22'72) 0 [ 0 0
0 Zve'e 0 0 0 0
918'¢09°} 160'LZL") 160'422°L £Ll 000'0¢ 998's
129'8L1 626'961 626'961 0 0 0
§50'cee 269°20% 869'20% 0 0 0
0v9'668 020416 al0'lie 0 0 998'c
128'vS £26'1S £16'1S el 0 0
G01'591 Lzy'est bev'esi 0 gov'at i}
989'c 0 0 0 0 0
286'.% 0s 0s 0% 0% 0%
z268'cL2'18 809'6v8'1$ 160°b2L'1S elis 000'0£$ 998'$
995'07 svs'el s¥s'ol 0 Shs'9l 0
9Z1'6 129 0 0 0 0
0 00v'e 0 0 0 0
eLV'PYS 919'2¥5 919°'2¥S 0 0 0
189'661'1$ 0zs'vL2' 1S 0£6'951'1L$ (AL gsy'cls 999'6$
8661 6661 spung splepueig IEIIEY) dwysiejoyss
s|ejol spundg Aietanpid Aauahy Buip|ing 22N053Y uolealaay
el jJo pieog Ajjwed
Jaeys
SANNZ ADNIOV

8661 "1¢ YIANAD3A Y04 STVLOL JAILVEVAWOO HLIM
6661 ‘1€ ¥3AIN303A

pshunuod ‘L39HS FONYIVE ONINIBNOD

SANNd AYVIONAald

OIHO ‘SLHOIIH HIMVHS 40 ALID

FONVIVE QNN
anv s3lLavii viol

asuejeg pund jejol

paAlasaluf
S3IURIGUINILT J0) PaNIFSAY
:9augjeg pung

saljljiger jejol

Aejonpid se play siunolly

sysoda sjgqepuniay

sauaby Njord-uoN 01 ang

SjLUAIBAOS JaYJO 01 anQ

spuny oY o1 ang

sjljauag puy sabep paniody

gjqeied 53uUnodoy pue sI9YINOA
ssapy|ige]

JONVIVE ANNd ANV S3ILRIavin

S1388V TWLOL

sojoualiy 1joid-uonN Woid ang
SIUBLUIIDACS JOtj0 WoS anQ
spund Jayjp wold sng
sueo
(sejanoajiodun Joy
AJURMO][Y JO JaN) Sa|deAId8Y
ysen Ainsear] An9 ul Aunb3g

S1355Y

B-201



B-202




I
|

th o/ Slzaéerxkleig/tfd , OAw

LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST

Comparative Financial Statements

To account for the proceeds of property deemed contraband by the courts
and ordered forfeited to the City. The Ohio Revised Code permits these
funds to be expended only for the cost of protracted or complex
investigations or prosecutions, to provide reasonable technical training or
expertise or other such law enforcement purposes as detexmined by Council.
The fund may not be used to meet operating costs of the City that are not
related to law enforcement.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1988

ASSETS 1999 1998
Equity In City Treasury Cash $117,590 $160,910
Due From Other Funds 6,400 0
Due From Other Governments 527 9,126
TOTAL ASSETS $124,517 $170,036
LIABILITIES AND FUN NC
Liabilities:
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $0
Accrued Wages and Benefits 0 0
Total Liabilities 0 0
Fund Balance:
Reserved for Encumbrances 2,242 0
Unreserved 122,275 170,036
Total Fund Balance 124,517 170,036
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE $124.,517 $170,036
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THE CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL. YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR FIS

REVENUES:
Interest Earnings
Fines and Forfeitures
All Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Security of Persons and Property

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Excess (Deficiency)of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

B-205

EN CEMBER 31, 1998
1999 1998

$6,075 $6,594
527 56,459
3,364 9,126
9,966 72,179
50,141 14,791
50,141 14,791
(40,175) 57,388
0 2,235
(5,344} 0
(5,344) 2,235
(45,519) 59,623
170,036 110,413
$124,517 $170,036
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ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and
Liabilities
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
ALL. AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
1993 Additions Deductions 1999
QBSTRLUCTION PERMIT DEPOSIT FUND
ASSETS
Equity [n City Treasury Cash $29,755 $18,720 $12,100 $36,375
LIABILITIES
Refundable Deposits $29,755 $18,720 $12,100 $36,375
EXCAVATING PERMIT DEPOSIT FUND B
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $4,505 $510 $0 $5,015
LIABILITIES
Refundable Deposits $4.505 $510 $0 $5,015
UNCLAIMED MONIES FUND
ASSETS
Equity in City Treasury Cash $156,895 $213,841 $145,878 $224,858
LIABILITIES
Refundable Deposits $156,895 $213,841 $145,878 $224.858
FUND FOR THE FUTURE OF SHAKER HEIGHTS
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $301,488 $83,098 %$26,998 $357,588
Mortgage Loans Receivabile 544,473 179,849 176,706 547,616
Total Assets $845,961 $262,947 $203,704 $905,204
LIABILITIES
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $0 $7,924 $7.924 $0
Due To Non-Profit Agencies 845,961 255,023 195,780 905,204
Total Liabifities $845,961 $262.947 $203,704 $905,204
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR END 3 9
Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
1998 Additions Deductions 1999
— MUNICIPAL COURT FUND
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $364,280 $3,027,181 $3,019,311 $372,150
LIABILITIES
Due To Other Funds $131,108 $1,676,129 $1,683,813 $123,421
Due To Other Governments 54,654 691,560 694,414 51,800
Amounts Held As Fiduciary 178,521 659,492 641,084 196,929
Total Liabilities $364,280  $3,027,181 $3,019,311 $372,150
_ CONTRACTOR DEPOSIT FUND
' ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $141,800 $0 $450 $141,450
LIABILITIES
Refundable Deposits $141,900 $0 $450 $141,450
RECREATION SCHOLARSHIP FUND
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $13,679 $18,204 $26,017 $5,866
LIABILITIES
Due To Non-Profit Agencies $13,679 $18,204 $26,017 $5,866
_ SHAKER FAMILY RESOURCE CENTER
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $26,102 $349,899 $362,546 $13,455
Due From Non-Profit Agencies 20,566 16,545 20,566 16,545
Total Assets $46.668 $366,444 $383.112 $30,000
LIABILITIES
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $7,982 $216,180 $224,162 $0
Accrued Wages and Benefits 3,686 129,698 133,384 0
Due To Other Funds 35,000 0 5,000 30,000
Due To Non-Profit Agencies 0 20,566 20,566 ]
Total Liabilities $46,668 $366,444 $383,112 $30,000
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
1998 Additions Deductions 1999
BOARD OF BUILDING STANDARDS
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $173 $4.871 $4.871 $173
LIABILITIES
Due To Other Governments $173 $4,871 $4,871 $173
TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Equity In City Treasury Cash $1,038,777 $3,716,324 $3,598,171 $1,156,930
Mortgage Loans Receivable 544473 179,849 176,706 547,616
Due From Non-Profit Agencies 20,566 16,545 20,566 16,545
Total Assets $1,603,816 $3,912,718 $3,795,443 $1,721,091
LIABILITIES
Vouchers and Accounts Payable $7,982 $224.104 $232,036 $0
Accrued Wages and Benefits 3,686 129,698 133,384 0
Due To Other Funds 166,105 1,676,129 1,688,813 153,421
Due To Other Governments 54,827 696,431 699,285 51,973
Due To Non-Profit Agencies 859,640 293,793 242,363 911,070
Refundable Deposits 333,055 233,071 158,428 407,698
Amounts Held As Fiduciary 178,521 659,492 641,084 196,929
Total Liabilities $1,603,816 $3.912,718 $3,795,443 $1,721,091
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for all general fixed
assets of the City, except for those fixed assets accounted for im the
proprietary and trust fund types.
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, QHIO
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE
DEC 31. 1999 AND 1998
1999 1998
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
Land $11,478,134 $11,325,702
Buildings 6,253,693 6,253,593
Land Improvements 2,750,455 2,688,743
Machinery and Equipment 13,008,136 11,635,340
Construction in Progress 33,086 243,890
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $33,523,404 $32,147.268
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED
ASSETS BY SOURCE:
General Fund $14,355,365 $14,127.885
Special Revenue Funds 425,066 399,031
Capital Projects Funds 18,650,204 17,539,729
Trust and Agency Funds 81,044 68,398
Donations 11,725 11,725
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE $33,523,404 $32,147,268
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, ORIO

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

December 31, 1999
IMPROGVEMENTS
OTHER THAN
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY LAND BUILDINGS BUILDINGS EQUIPMENT TOTAL
Security of Persons and Prope ST :
Police $0 $1,622 948 $32,236 $2,370,972 $4,026,156
Fire 0 260,162 163,937 2,293,316 2,717,415
Traffic Signs and Signals 0 0 0 391,661 391,661
Animal Control 0 0 0 26,554 26,554
Total Security of Persons
and Property 0 1,883,110 196,173 5,082,503 7,161,786
Public Health o
Public Heatth 189,978 0 0 36,644 226622
Total Public Health 189,978 0 36,844 226,622
Culture and Recreation o
Parks and Public Land
Mainfenance ) 0 327 438 347,887 675,323
Total Culture and Recreation Q 0 327,438 347,887 675,323
Community Environment
Planning and Development 0 0 13,995 30,801 44,796
Building Code Enforcement 0 o 0 160,995 160,995
Office of Senior Aduits ¢ 36,529 1] 101,139 137,663
Public Information 0 0 0 31,045 31,045
Center for Housing
and Cominunity Life 0 48 807 5,825 73,209 127,641
Tree Maintenance 0 0 0 313,662 313662
Leaf Collection 0 0 0 269,358 269,358
Total Community Environment 0 85,336 19,620 980,209 1,085,168
Baslc Utility Service .
Refuse Collection and Disposal ] ) 1,300 2,258,975 2,260,775
Solid Waste Recycling 0 ) 0 161,422 161,422
Storm Sewer Maintenance o a a 334,028 334,028
Sanitary Sewer Maintenance 9 1] 1] 222,228 222228
Total Basic Utility Service 0 0 1,800 2,976,653 2,878,453
Transportation )
Street Sweeping 0 0 1] 215,263 215,263
fce and Snow Controf a 4] 0 500,179 500,179
Street Maintenance and Repair 0 0 0 759,096 759,006
Traffic Signal Maintenance o 0 o 145,117 145,117
Total Transportation 0 0 1] 1,619,655 1,619,655
General Government
Mayor and Council 0 ) ] ] 29,922 29,822
Finance and Administration 9 0 0 76,410 76,410
L.egal Administration o 0 0 25,140 26,140
Service Administration [ 0 0 294,773 294,773
Municipal Court 0 8,100 41,532 170,127 219,759
Public Properties 11,288,156 4,277,047 2,163,353 1,367,214 19,096,310
Total General Government 11,288,156 4,285,147 2,205,425 1,964,536 19,743,314
Construction in Progress 0 o 33,086 33,086
Total General Fixed Assets $11,478,134 $6,253,593 $2,783,540 $13,008,137 $33,523.404

B-213



CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SGHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - BY FUNCTION AND AGTIVITY

EQR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1389

GENERAL GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS FIXED ASSETS
DECEMEER 31, DECEMBER 31,
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY 1998 ADDITIONS DEDUGTIONS TRANSFERS 1999
Security of Persons and Property
Police $3,692,343 $244,733 $23,798 $ 212478 4,026,156
Fire 2,618,744 109,501 10,830 0 2,717,415
Traffic Signs and Signals 446,961 0 55,300 0 391,661
Animal Control 22,368 4,186 0 0 26,554
Total Security of Persans
and Property 6,680,416 358,420 89,928 212,378 7,161,786
Public Health
Public Health 60,301 166,321 0 0 226,622
Total Public Health 60,301 166,321 0 226,622
Parks and Public
Land Maintenance 577,403 96,469 2,875 4,426 675,323
Total Culture and Recreation 577,403 96,459 2,875 4,426 675,323
Planning and Development 40,944 3,852 0 o 44,796
Building Code Enforcement 147,945 13,050 0 0 160,995
Office of Senior Adults 104,195 33,473 1] 0 137,668
Public Information 31,045 1] 0 0 31,045
Center for Housing
and Community Life 127 541 0 0 o 127 641
Tree Maintenance 291,034 22,628 0 (V] 313,662
Leaf Collection 236,236 41,042 7,920 (] 269,358
Total Community Environment 279,040 114,045 7,920 [ 1,085,165
Refuse Collection and Disposal 2,034,331 226,444 0 0 2,260,776
Solid Waste Recycling 161,422 a 0 (1] 161,422
Stom Sewer Maintenance 334,028 1} 0 e 334,028
Sanitary Sewer Maintenance 212,285 9,943 [ 0 222,228
Total Basic Utility Service 2,742,068 236,387 0 0 2,978,453
Transporfation
Street Sweeping 215,263 0 0 0 215,263
Ice and Snow Control 380,094 120,085 0 0 500,179
Street Maintenance and Repair 757,184 1,912 0 0 759,096
Tratfic Signal Maintenance 132,837 12,280 ] Q9 148 417
Total Transportation 1,485,378 134,277 0 0 1,619,658
Council and Mayor 29,922 0 0 0 29,922
Finance and Administration 76,410 0 ] 0 76,410
Legal Administration 24,240 1,800 ¢ 0 26,140
Service Administration 270,978 23,795 [ 0 254,773
Municipal Cowrt 214,386 5273 a o 219,758
Public Properties 18,762,838 422,289 £8.317 0 19,096,310
Total General Government 19,378,774 453,357 88,817 1] 19,743,314
Construction in Progress 243,830 6,500 0 {217,304) 33,086
Total General Fixed Assets $32,147,268 $1,565,776 $189,640 30 $33,523,404
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GENERAL LONG - TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT
GROUP

The General Long -Term Obligations Account Group is used to account for
all long-term obligations of the City, except for those long-term obligations
accounted for in the proprietary and trust fund types.

I
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
GENERAL. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 1998

ASSE

Amount Available In Debt Service Fund
Amount To be Provided For Retirement
of General Long Term Qbligations

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accrued Sick Leave Benefits

i_oans Payabie

Police And Firemen's Pension Liability

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1989 1998
$291,224 $279,597
2,549,502 4,896,338
$2,840,726 $5,175,935
$2,214,914 $1,572,761
625,812 666,187
0 2,936,987
$2,840,726 $5,175,935
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
TABLE #7

____Special Assessment
Fiscal Year Billings Collections
1990 $761,901 $749,943
1991 761,901 750,196
1992 814,521 784,917
1993 814,521 815,777
1994 814,521 811,697
1985 1,075,084 1,092,526
1996 1,075,084 1,084,156
1997 1,075,084 1,055,037
1998 1,270,004 1,198,868
1999 1,265,320 1,181,779

SGURCE: Cuyahoga County Auditor




CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 1999

TABLE #8
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUATION $652,672,550
Overall Debt Limitation -
10 1/2% of Assessed Valuation $68,530,618
Gross Indebtedness $3,845,000
Less: Debt Qutside Limitations
(Bond Anticipation Note - Police Pension} (1,100,090)
{Bond Anticipation Note ~ Fire Pension) {1,004,910)
{Bond Anticipation Note - Library Projects) {1,740,000)
Debt within 10 1/2% Limitaition 0
Add: Debt Service Fund Balance 291,224
Net Debt within 10 1/2% Limitaition 291,224
Legal Debt Margin within 10 1/2% Limitation $68,821,842
Unvoted Debt Limitation -
5 1/2% of Assessed Valuation $35,896,990
Gross Indebtedness Authorized by Council $3,845,000
Less: Debt Outside Limitations
(Bond Anticipation Note - Police Pension) (1,100,080)
(Bond Anticipation Note - Fire Pension) {1,004,910)
{Bond Anticipation Note - Library Projects) (1,740,000}
Debt within 5 1/2% Limitaition 0
Add: Debt Service Fund Balance 291,224
Net Debt within 5 1/2% Limitaition 291,224
Legal Debt Margin within 10 1/2% Limitation $36,188,214

Source; City of Shaker Heights, Finance Department
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

DECEMBER 31,1999
TABLE #9
Percentage Amount
Applicabile Applicable
Debt to City of to City of
Jurisdiction Outstanding _ Shaker Heights Shaker Heights
Direct:
City of Shaker Heights
Exempt General Obligation
Bond Anticipation Notes $3,845,000 (a) _100.00% $3,845,000
Overlapping:
City of Shaker Heights -

School District 17.289.230 (b} 93.53% 16,170,617
Cuyahoga County 141,004,636 (b) 2.58% 3,637,920
Greater Cleveland

Regional Transit 101,865,000 (b} 2.58% 2,628,117
City of Shaker Heights -

Library 8 (b) 0.00% 0
Total Overlapping 260,158,866 22,436,654
GRAND TOTAL $264,003,866 $26,281,654

SOURCE: (a) City of Shaker Heights, Finance Department

(b} Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

DEMOGRAGHIC STATISTICS
DECEMBER 31,1999
TABLE #12
1980 1990
PopuUlation ....cueiermmsscemsrmresssnsimemnroesssmsresmemnstssenn s sen - 32,487 30,867
Per capita income Erestasensessnierss st nrsams e haea e s s $15,669 $32,708
Number of dwelling units 13,241 13,279
Persons per household . 2.54 243
Median AQe ......ccocceenuecceencaeamasesmcesarysassnessssnrrorvenssamesnes avs - 36.5 37.8
% owner - occupied dwelling units temmerenenetaracaanas 65.30% 61.40%
Median FAMIlY INCOME ....cccvecercceememmisccessssesssssmsressasss s sn s $34,241 $65,913
Family income distribution:
$ 0 -8 4,999 .. e e 609 315
$ 5,000 -8 9,999 . v e e 1,057 452
$10,000 - $ 14,999 ......... 1,257 457
$15,000 - $ 24,999 2,659 1,464
over $25,000 7,197 9,912
Total families 12,779 12,600
Education distribution/grades years completed:
LU - OO 3.32% 1.69%
1 I & OO 5.99% 5.67%
12 eheresiEeAEEEEeesrAEEEAS SN AR AR s m 4 8 bo 19.13% 10.54%
< T T 20.98% 21.08%
16 or more tremsenmesssnmrassesenan s vannans 50.58% 61.01%
100.00% 100.00%

SOURCE: 1990 Federal Census and Cuyahoga County Planning Commission
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
EMPLOYMENT DISTRIBUTION BY OCCUPATION
DECEMBER 31,1999

TABLE #13

Number % of

Residents’ employment distribution by occupation: ... Empioyed Total
Managerial, Professional and Speciaity 9,073 57.41%
Technical, Sales and Administrative Support 4,623 29.25%
Service 1,015 6.42%
Farming, Fishing and Forestry 20 0.13%
Precision Production, Craft and Repair 436 2.76%
Operators, Fabricators and Laborers 636 4.03%
Total Employment 15,803 100.00%

SOURCE: 1290 Federal Census and Cuyahoga County Planning Commission
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

DECEMBER 31, 1999
TABLE #14
Percentage
of Total
Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation (1) Vajuation
The Cleveland Electric {Huminating Company $10,122,740 1.55%
Ohio Bell Telephone Company 8,390,840 1.29%
East Ohio Gas Company 4,421,180 0.68%
Edens and Avant Properties 3,272,500 0.50%
Community Links Limited Partnership 2,975,000 0.46%
WKRB Value Partners Limited Partnership 2,867,240 0.44%
OfficeMax Incorporated 2,489,360 0.38%
Somerset Point LTD Partnership 1,850,800 0.28%
Karrington Acquisition Inc. 1,595,300 C.24%
Albert Ratner, Trustee Etal 1,583,120 0.24%
TOTAL $39,568,080 6.06%
TOTAL ASSESSED VALUATION OF CITY $652,672,550

(1) Property assessed at 35% of Fair Market Value

SOURCE: Cuyahoga County Auditor
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CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS, OHIO

OTHER STATISTICS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
TABLE #16
Year incorporated as a village.. 1912
Year incorporated as a city.....cccorirnecens 1931
City Charter adopted 1931
Form of government.... Mayor/Council
Area..... 6.3 square miles
Miles of streets........ " 142
Number of street lights..... S 4,565
Sworn Fire protection:
Number of stations. 2
Number of firemen and officers .... . . 54
Sworn Police protection:
Number of stations...... 1
Number of policemen and officers ..... 72
Sewers:!

Miles of storm sewers..... . 102
Miles of sanitary sewers ........c.-«.. - —— 99
Miles of water mains.. 127

Building:
1999 Permits issued........... 3,004
1999 Valuation of construction...... 336,382,085
Parks and Recreation:
Number of parks.... 14
Number of pools .- 1
Number of ice rinks 1
Numper of fennis courts 10
Number of baseball diamonds ..... 6

SOURCE: City of Shaker Heights, Public Works, Building and Recreation Departments
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88 East Broad Street

STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

QOFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 432161140
e - Telephone 614-466-4514

Jiv PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 514-466-4490
www.auditor.state.ch.us

CITY OF SHAKER HEIGHTS

CUYAHOGA COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and
which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

o uaen Colbtst

Date: J UL 2 0 2000
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